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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 10 MARCH 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh ,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  am sor ry  we have had some few 

minutes  de lay  bu t  le t  us  –  le t  us  cont inue.   Mr  Mole fe  good  

morn ing .  

MR MOLEFE:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The oath  you took two days ago w i l l  

con t inue to  app ly  –  a f f i rmat ion  I  th ink  i t  was.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Good morn ing  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Good morn ing  S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yesterday we were  on  the  po in t  o f  

end ing  o f f  the  top ic  o f  the  100 locomot ives .   I  jus t  want  to  

take  you i f  I  may  back to  the  Fundudz i  Repor t .   Th is  i s  a t  

Bund le  6  cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  p lease to  page 160 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   106?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   160 Cha i rpe rson –  160.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   0  –  okay.   I s  tha t  on  Bund le  5?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bund le  6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bund le  6  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A re  you there  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  jus t  want  to  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  

p lease in  c los ing  to  –  to  two parag raphs under  the  head ing  

Conc lus ion  tha t  be ing  Sub 4  and Sub 5 .   Paragraph  

5 .8 .29 .4  reads there :  

“Transnet  wou ld  have saved R1.2  b i l l i on  i f  i t  

p rocu red a  100 locomot ives  f rom the  Mi tsu i  

a t  R3.188 b i l l i on  than procu r ing  f rom CSR 

at  R4.4  b i l l i on . ”  

You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes th i s  i s  –  th is  does not  compare  w i th  10 

base pr i ce .   I t  compares the  to ta l  p r ice  wh ich  inc ludes the 

o ther  th ings tha t  I  ta lked about  yes te rday tha t  a re  based  

on assumpt ions  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:   So  in  fac t  what  tha t  cou ld  be  is  jus t  a  

d i f fe rence in  the  d i f fe ren t  assumpt ions on  hedg ing ,  fo rex  

and so  on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then they go  onto  to  conc lude in  

the  next  sub paragraph:  

“Mo le fe  and S ingh fa i led  to  conduct  a  20 

cost /benef i t  ana lys i s  when a  dec is ion  to  

change the  locomot ives  f rom the  19E Mi tsu i  

locomot ive  to  the  20CSR locomot ive  was 

taken. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 5 of 258 
 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja  I  do  remember  Cha i rperson tha t  in  the  

memo i t  re fe rs  to  the  –  the  pro jec t  cont inu ing  to  be  NPV 

pos i t i ve  wh ich  means tha t  the  ne t  p resent  va lue  o f  the 

acqu is i t ion  wou ld  be  pos i t i ve .   I  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The net  va lue  o f  the  acqu is i t ion  wou ld  

be?  

MR MOLEFE:   Ne t  –  NPV Net  Present  Va lue .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   The acqu is i t ion  wou ld  be  pos i t i ve  wh ich  

means tha t  i t  has  a  pos i t i ve  va lue  to  Transnet .   NPV is  –  ja  10 

i t  i s  a  ca lcu la t ion  tha t  peop le  make in  the  f inanc ia l  marke ts  

to  de termine 00:  03 :33  and investment  dec is ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   So  genera l l y  as  a  ru le  a  negat ive  NPV 

means you shou ld  no t  do  the  investment .  A pos i t i ve  NPV 

means tha t  you can do the  investment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   In  fac t  I  th ink  in  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   In  the  memorandum.  

MR MOLEFE:   In  the  memorandum or  … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You want  to  … 

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot  remember  exact ly  what  i t  i s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  Mr  Mole fe  can I  ask  you i s  tha t  –  

i s  the  conc lus ion  here  does i t  no t  go  beyond tha t?   I n  o the r  

words you –  you  –  i t  seems f ra i l  to  conduct  a  compar i son 



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 6 of 258 
 

be tween the  one  and the  o ther.   I  unders tand your  po in t  

about  the  NPV we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  perhaps in  a 

d i f fe ren t  contex t  w i th  o ther  peop le .  

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  i t  acknowledged tha t  the  NPV was  

pos i t i ve .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  i f  you  say tha t  was  in  the 

memorandum then I  w i l l  take  your  words fo r  i t  bu t  what  I  

am look ing  fo r  he re  is  was there  a  t ime where  you ac tua l l y  

d id  a  cost  benef i t  ana lys i s  as  be tween the  two poss ib le  

dea ls?  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson when you do cost  benef i t  

ana lys is  there  are  th ings l i ke  account ing  costs  and so  on  

tha t  a re  comparab le .   But  the  to ta l  –  the  t rue  cost  benef i t  

ana lys is  inc ludes  th ings tha t  cannot  be  quant i f ied  in  rands  

and cents  and these are  the  cons idera t ions tha t  we made 

fo r  example  tha t  the  locomot ives  were  fa i l ing  –  then the  

th ree  locomot ives  were  fa i l ing .   And there  is  no  va lue  tha t  

i s  pu t  to  tha t  a l though in  the  end they w i l l  have a  cost .    

So tha t  was not  the  va lue  o f  the  fa i l ing  locomot ives  

is  no t  bu i l t  in to  a  cost  benef i t  ana lys i s  l i ke  tha t   So in  the  20 

end a  cost  bene f i t  ana lys is  –  an  account ing  cost  benef i t  

ana lys is  i s  jus t  a  gu ide .    

In  the  end you have to  go  w i th  wha t  you th ink  wou ld  

be  in  the  in te res t  o f  the  company.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now we under took yesterday to  add I  
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th ink  i t  was 10 pages o f  documents  tha t  you prov ided to  us 

to  the  bund le .   We have done tha t  bu t  i f  you  cou ld  p lease 

go to  Bund le  5  tha t  i s  you r  exh ib i t ;  Exh ib i t  22 .  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i f  a l l  the  admin is t ra t ion  has 

worked out  cor rec t l y  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 114.   

A re  you in  the  r igh t  f i l e  Mr  Mole fe?   Bund le  5  Exh ib i t  22 .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   My –  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  you w i l l  f ind  d i rec t l y  a f te r  10 

114 is  a  ser ies  o f  documents  marked 114.1  –  I  th ink  you  

may have them there  in  f ron t  o f  you.   114.1  runn ing  

th rough to  114.10  do you have those documents?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  these are  the  documents  you gave  

us  yesterday.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You recogn ise  them? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  we have done is  we have 20 

added them so they fo l low d i rec t l y  a f te r  your  a f f idav i t ,  you 

see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wou ld  you l i ke  an  oppor tun i ty  to  

address the  Cha i rperson on the  s ign i f i cance o f  these 
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documents?   Are  there  any par t i cu la r  por t ions  tha t  you  

w ish  to  d raw to  our  a t ten t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Cha i rperson these documents  ind ica te  

the  –  the  cor respondence between  Transnet  Eng ineer ing  – 

sor ry  TFR Eng ineers  de ta i l ing  the  fa i lu res  o f  the  Mi tsu i  

locomot ives .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry  I  cannot  hear  you Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Deta i l ing  the  fa i lu res  o f  the  Mi tsu i  

locomot ives .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .  10 

MR MOLEFE:   So  these d i f fe ren t  mat te rs  and the  tab les  

tha t  show the  ins tances where  the  Mi tsu i  locomot ives  had  

fa i led  in  –  in  the  per iod  p reced ing our  dec i s ion  to  do  the 

award .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  your  ev idence  tha t  these were  brought  

to  your  a t ten t ion  be fore  you made the  dec is ion  to  change 

and go w i th  CSR as opposed to  Mi tsu i?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes they were  brought  to  my a t ten t ion  a t  the  

t ime but  I  have recent ly  been ab le  to  ge t  these documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   That  ac tua l l y  show.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  And when we say they were  

brought  i t  m igh t  be  tha t  i t  i s  the  p rob lems tha t  were  
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b rought  o r  i t  i s  the  le t te rs  g i v ing  you – te l l ing  you about  

the  prob lems.  

MR MOLEFE:   No ,  no t  the  le t te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  the  le t te rs .  

MR MOLEFE:   In  fac t  tha t  the  locomot ives  had been 

fa i l ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Sor ry  I  jus t  for  some 

reason am not  p ick ing  you up c lear ly.   D id  you say the  

locomot ives  had fa i led?  10 

MR MOLEFE:   They were  fa i l ing  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Fa i l ing  the  Mi tsu i  locomot ives .   

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  I  unders tand your  ev idence.  

MR MOLEFE:   Fa i l ing  means b reak  downs.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No I  unders tand.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As  I  unders tand your  answer  to  the  

Cha i rperson you say tha t  –  these documents  bear  ou t  the  

fac t  tha t  there  was tha t  p rob lem and i t  was someth ing  tha t  20 

you knew o f  a t  the  t ime.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was someth ing  tha t  was b rought  to  my 

a t ten t ion  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   And they a l l  re la te  then to  

tha t  top ic  and issue?  
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MR MOLEFE:   Genera l l y  re la te  to  tha t  top ic  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   I  wou ld  l i ke  then i f  I  may to  

tu rn  to  a  d i f fe ren t  top ic  now and tha t  i s  the  procurement  o f  

the  1064 locomot ives .    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now Mr  Mole fe  I  wou ld  –  I  jus t  want  

to  ske tch  some o f  the  ev idence tha t  has been g iven so  tha t  

we can get  to  the  po in t  where  I  can ask  you  a  few 

quest ions around  th is .   

What  we have heard  and a  lo t  o f  ev idence has been  10 

g iven about  th is  was the  bu i ld ing  o f  the  in i t ia l  bus iness 

case fo r  the  1064 locomot ives  and u l t imate ly  i t  wou ld  

appear  f rom the  ev idence tha t  a  f ina l  bus iness case was  

adopted by  the  board  on  the  25 t h  o f  Apr i l .    

Does tha t  accord  w i th  your  reco l lec t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  may be a  l i t t le  b i t  onerous but  

I  want  to  take  you to  the  bus iness case and then to  the 

board  reso lu t ion  jus t  so  we can p lace those two documents  

on  record  and then I  w i l l  ask  you some quest ions f rom 20 

there .  

 I  have asked my co l leagues to  f i sh  ou t  fo r  you two  

f i les .   I  hope tha t  they have managed to  f ind  Exh ib i t  

BB4(b ) .   And cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page  

FQC402.   You  w i l l  see  tha t  th is  i s  an  a t tachment  



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 11 of 258 
 

inc identa l l y  to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  a f f idav i t  and i t  re f lec ts  there  

procu rement  o f  1064 locomot ives  fo r  Genera l  Fre igh t  

Bus iness da ted submiss ion  25  Apr i l  addressed to  Transnet  

Board  o f  D i rec tors .   And i t  a lso  t i t led  Procurement  o f  1064.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Keep your  m ic rophone on Mr  Mole fe  a t  

a l l  t imes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  kep t… 

MR MOLEFE:   So  i t  i s  the  f i le  tha t  keeps i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   P rocurement  o f  1064 locomot ives  fo r  10 

Genera l  F re igh t  Bus iness f ina l  vers ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i f  I  cou ld  ask  you jus t  to  keep 

your  f inger  there  and then tu rn  a l l  the  way to  page 516 tha t  

seems to  be  the  end o f  the  bus iness case.   FQC516 .    

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  I  no te  the re  is  t ha t  th is  

bus iness case was not  s igned –  th is  vers ion  by  you,  Mr  

S ingh and Mr  Gama.   Do you  reca l l  s ign ing  the  f ina l  

vers ion  o f  the  bus iness case?  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja  I  th ink  tha t  i f  the  bus iness case was 

presented to  the  board  i t  must  be  the  f ina l  – the  s igned 

vers ion  must  have been presented  to  the  board .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Cou ld  I  ask  you then p lease  

to  go  to  the  beg inn ing  and then go to  page FQC405.   I  w i l l  
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take  you to  the  las t  paragraph o f  tha t  page.    

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  says :  

“The r i sks  tha t  a re  inherent  in  a  

procu rement  event  o f  th is  na ture  had been  

ident i f ied  and l i t iga t ion  s t ra teg ies  are  in  

p lace .   Accord ing ly  i t  i s  recommended tha t  

the  1064 locomot ive  bus iness case be  

approved w i th  es t imated to ta l  cos ts  o f  the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  R38.6  b i l l i on  as  per  the  10 

corpo ra te  p lan . ”  

And i t  i s  what  i s  in  b rackets  tha t  as  you know has become 

content ious.   So the  ETC is  R38.6  b i l l i on  as  per  the  

corpo ra te  p lan  (exc lud ing  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  o f  fo rex ,  

hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and o the r  p r ice  esca la t ions. )  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You wou ld  conf i rm tha t  tha t  was then  

conta ined in  the  f ina l  bus iness case.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i f  I  cou ld  then ask  you – you can 20 

perhaps keep tha t  open so  tha t  we know what  the  word ing  

is .   Cou ld  I  ask  you … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  I  thought  tha t  was 405 –  2405  

is  tha t  cor rec t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   FQC405.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes –  no  I  can see where  you are  

indeed.   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease Mr  

Mole fe  to  go  to  Bund le  or  Exh ib i t  BB4( f ) .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  

a lso  been taken out  fo r  you.    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And BB4( f )  i s  d iv ided in to  two pa r ts ;  

po in t  1  and po in t  2  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  go  to  the  f i rs t  par t  

and tu rn  to  page  Y IL23.   I t  i s  par t  o f  the  annexures to  Mr  

Laher ’s  a f f idav i t  o r  s ta tement .  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  we a l l  on  the  same page what  

you f ind  there  is  a  cer t i f ied  exer t  f rom the  dra f t  m inutes  o f  

the  spec ia l  meet ing  o f  the  Transnet  board  he ld  on  the  25 t h  

o f  Apr i l  and you  w i l l  see  there  6 .1  Procurement  o f  1063  

locomot ives  fo r  the  TFR Genera l  Fre igh t  Bus iness reso lved 

tha t  the  board  approved the  fo l low ing:  

The bus iness case fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 

locomot ives  or  TFR’s  Genera l  Fre igh t  Bus iness  a t  an  

es t imated cost  o f  R38.6  b i l l i on  as  per  corpora te  p lan  (and 20 

the  same word ing  then as  the  bus iness case exc lud ing  

po tent ia l  a f fec ts  f rom forex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and  

o ther  esca la t ions .  Conf i rm tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes and jus t  to  add tha t  I  p resume tha t  they  

were  approv ing  the  s igned document .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   Which  –  wh ich  I  do  no t  know i f  Transnet  

s t i l l  has  the  s igned document  bu t  tha t  i s  the  document  tha t  

was approved.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You mean the  s igned bus iness case?  

MR MOLEFE:   The s igned bus iness case.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t  we w i l l  have a  –  we w i l l  have  

a  look fo r  tha t  bu t  I  assume you must  be  r igh t  tha t  i f  i t  was 

presented as  you  say.  

MR MOLEFE:   Exact ly.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And adopted a t  the  board  i t  wou ld  

have been s igned .  

MR MOLEFE:   Wou ld  i t  have been  –  i t  wou ld  have been the  

s igned vers ion  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We wi l l  –  a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:   So  a l l  I  am say ing  is  I  do  no t  know i f  what  

you have jus t  seen now.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   I s  an  ear l ie r  d ra f t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   That  was not  s igned .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes bu t  the  po in t  i s  i t  inc ludes the  

same bracketed phrase.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes tha t  –  i t  inc ludes the  R38.6  b i l l i on  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.  So you know what  the  
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con t roversy  i s  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  b racketed ph rase?  

MR MOLEFE:   The R38.6  b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   I  mean  the  cont roversy  i s  tha t  i t  

i s  a l leged by  some and we w i l l  come to  the  ev idence tha t  

ac tua l l y  the  bus iness case in  suppor t  –  in  suppor t  o f  the  

R38…. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Look th is  s ide  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes  I  jus t  wanted to  hear  p roper l y  f rom h is  

eye Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no  I  know ja .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  the  con t roversy  i s  and we w i l l  

come to  the  ev idence in  a  moment  tha t  there  are  some 

wi tnesses who main ta in  tha t  the  bus iness case ETC 

est imate  o f  R38.6  in  fac t  inc luded hedg ing  and esca la t ion  

costs  –  d id  no t  exc lude i t .   You know tha t  cont roversy?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Now what  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  

to  you is  tha t  in  2018 a f te r  these events  Mr  Laher  and Mr  

Moo la  do  you know those gent lemen? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   They were  requested by  the  GCFO.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   to  under take an invest iga t ion  to  

de termine whether  the  bus iness  case ETC est imate  o f  

R38.6  inc luded hedg ing  and esca la t ion .  
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And they were  ass is ted  by  Mr  

Ca l la rd .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   An t  the  conc lus ion  tha t  they came to  

was tha t  the  bus iness case and  ETC est imate  in  fac t  

inc luded those two th ings –  d id  no t  exc lude i t .   We heard  –  

we heard .  

MR MOLEFE:   Was tha t  –  was tha t  the i r  conc lus ion? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  you have heard  tha t  ev idence  10 

and you know o f  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Come aga in .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  was the i r  conc lus ion  yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   And what  was  the  amount  tha t  they 

ca l cu la ted  to  00 :19 :22 ETC wi th  tha t  exerc ise?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  ge t  a  sense you know the  answer  to  

tha t  quest ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Huh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  ge t  a  sense you know the  answer  to  

tha t  quest ion?  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay what  i s  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson le t  me –  le t  us  jus t  cu t  to  the  

chase.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry?  
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MR MOLEFE:   Le t  us  cu t  to  the  chase.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes abso lu te ly.  

MR MOLEFE:   And jus t  exp la in  what  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson when a  p rocu rement  o f  th is  

na ture  i s  done because we saved  an es t imate  how much 

we th ink  i t  w i l l  cos t  to  buy locomot ives  and these  are  b ig  

numbers .   So the  number  tha t  you come out  as  an  –  w i th  as  

an  es t imate  you can assume tha t  f rom a  negot ia t ion  po in t  

o f  v iew tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  the  base.   That  i s  go ing  to  be  10 

the  m in imum f rom which  you move f rom.   And tha t  number  

even i f  you conf ident ia l l y  take  i t  to  the  board  i t  i s  go ing  to  

take  –  to  come out  –  i t  i s  go ing  to  –  to  go  ou t  in to  the  

market .   So th is  number  –  the  R38.6b i l l i on  was  an –  a  

desktop  es t imate .   I t  was not  even  ar r i ved a t  by  do ing  a  –  

by  phon ing  supp l ie rs  a round and say ing  how much  do you 

th ink  you w i l l  se l l  us  a  locomot ive  fo r?   I t  was the  desktop  

es t imate  bu t  i t  had to  be  a  conserva t ive  desktop  es t imate .   

You can imag ine  Cha i rpe rson i f  we had gone out  w i th  an  

ETC o f  R50 b i l l ion  we wou ld  have ended up a t  75  in  the  20 

purchase.   So the  ETC was R38 b i l l i on  i t  i s  no t  a  p r ice ,  i t  

was an es t imate ;  a  desktop  es t imate  tha t  was done a t  

Transnet .   Now peop le  say tha t  the  pr ice  increased f rom 

R38 b i l l i on  to  R54 b i l l i on .   That  cannot  be  t rue  because the  

R38 b i l l i on  was not  a  p r ice .   I t  i s  l i ke  i f  you  want  to  buy a  
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car  and you budget  R100 000.00  and you want  to  buy a  

spec i f i c  ca r.    And then when you go out  to  go  and buy the  

car  you f ind  tha t  i t  i s  R160.000.00.   Do you say there fore  

tha t  you have jus t  incur red  an add i t iona l  R50 000.00 in  

buy ing  the  car?   Jus t  because you es t imate  your  budget  

was R38 b i l l i on  or  the  budget  tha t  –  tha t  you knew wou ld  

become pub l ic  was R38 b i l l i on .   So –  so  le t  us  s ta r t  there .   

We went  ou t  on  tender  w i th  an  ETC o f  R38 b i l l i on .   The 

tenders  came back.  When they  came back they were  

nowhere  near  R38 b i l l i on .   When –  when ac tua l l y  we put  10 

together  –  in  my a f f idav i t  I  ac tua l l y  de ta i l  th is .   I f  I  can  go  

to  my a f f idav i t?   So we went  ou t  w i th  R38 b i l l i on  and the  

market  came back w i th  anothe r  number.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink  you might  be  look ing  fo r  page  

38 Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   38? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Thanks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  h is  a f f idav i t  on  Bund le  5?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bund le  5 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes 39  page 39 paragraph 55.   The –  the  

pr ice  tha t  we went  ou t  w i th  was in  fac t  R38 b i l l i on .   The  

supp l ie rs  came back w i th  a  number.   In  fac t  tha t  was 

between 38 and 49.   I  am jus t  su rp r ised tha t  I  d id  no t  ca tch  
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i t  here .   But  i t  was about  43  o f  44  the  number.   I  am 

surpr i sed tha t  I  d id  no t  wr i te  i t  down here .   And tha t  was  

the i r  o f fe r  when they submi t ted  the  tenders .    

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was the  o f fe r  o f  who?  

MR MOLEFE:   The b idders .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   And so  fo r  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Were  they a l l  more  or  less  around tha t  

f igure  wou ld  you say?  

MR MOLEFE:   A round 43 –  43  –  44 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja  tha t  was the  number  tha t  they gave 43 –  

44  tha t  was the  number  tha t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime we saw what  

the  market  was p repared to  pay and i t  was not  38  b i l l i on.   

And tha t  number  does not  represent  an  i nc rease f rom 38 

b i l l i on  i t  was wha t  the  b idders  sa id  they cou ld  pay.   So now 

they submi t ted  the i r  tenders  and they were  eva lua ted and  

a f te r  they were  eva lua ted the  –  there  was  fu r ther  

negot ia t ion  and the  b iggest  th ing  i n  the  negot ia t ion  was to  

f i x  the  pr ice  so  tha t  there  a re  no  esca la t ions.   A f ter  those  20 

negot ia t ions  o f  hedg ing  and so  on  and so  fo r th  the  f ina l  

p r ice  tha t  the  b idders  were  p repared to  pay was 49  b i l l i on .   

To  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ac tua l l y  the  –  the  f ina l  p r ice  tha t  they 

wou ld  want  Transnet  to  pay… 
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MR MOLEFE:   That  sa id  –  so r ry  tha t  the  b idders  were  

prepared … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  no t  the  o ther  way around.  

MR MOLEFE:   They were  prepared… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To  accept .  

MR MOLEFE:   To  pay w i th  the i r  locomot ives  fo r  the  money.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Wel l  i t  i s  Eng l ish  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes i t  i s  Eng l ish  Cha i rperson.   But  the  f ina l  

p r ice  tha t  the  b idders  were  prepared … 

CHAIRPERSON:   To  accept .  10 

MR MOLEFE:   To  rece ive  fo r  the i r  locomot ives  was R49 

b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:   49?  

MR MOLEFE:   49  b i l l i on  –  49 .547.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you mov ing  away f rom 43 –  44? 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja  i t  increased f rom 43.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:   43  –  44  i t  increased  f rom the  or ig ina l  tender  

p r ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   The pr i ce  o f  the i r  tenders .   I f  you  look a t  

parag raph 57 I  show you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  no  le t  me jus t  –  le t  me make sure .   

F i r s t  you say Transnet  made an es t imate .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And the  es t imate  was 38.6b i l l i on .  

MR MOLEFE:   38  b i l l i on  tha t  was desktop  es t imate .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The tenders  came in .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the  pr i ces  were  … 

MR MOLEFE:   H igher  than… 

CHAIRPERSON:   43  –  44  the reabouts .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you a re  now say ing  the  f ina l  p r ice… 

MR MOLEFE:   A f te r  negot ia t ions .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   A f te r  negot ia t ions   

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  assume tha t  tha t  i s  because –  because  

when you negot ia te  one wou ld  have thought  tha t  you wou ld  

be  want ing  to  b r ing  them down f rom 43 – 44 .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  assume tha t  maybe i t  i s  because i t  took 

t ime and they –  there  was esca la t ion  or  how d id  –  how d id  

you do so  bad ly  ins tead o f  b r ing ing  them down you  

00:26:38.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   So  I  was… 

CHAIRPERSON:   A l lowed them to  go  up.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  was not  pa r t  o f  the  negot ia t ing  team but  

the  b iggest  i ssue  in  the  negot ia t ions  was you must  g ive  us  

a  pr ice  tha t  w i l l  no t  change over  7  years .   So you  cannot  
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come back and say there  was fo rex ,  the re  was th i s  there  

was th is  i t  must  be  f i xed  pr i ce .  And fo r  g iv ing  us  a  f i xed  

pr ice  they wanted to  be  pa id  more  and tha t  was  in  my 

unders tand ing  tha t  was  the  main  component  o f  the  

increase and they  took i t  to  49 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  o r  they  wou ld  do  –  tha t  wou ld  

exp la in  the  increase f rom 43 –  44   

MR MOLEFE:   To  49  

CHAIRPERSON:   To  49 .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Because now you were  speak ing  o f  a  

f i xed  amount  ove r  7  years .  

MR MOLEFE:   Over  7  years  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:   And then on top  o f  tha t  –  tha t  was what  was  

go ing  to  be  pa id  to  the  b idders .   On top  o f  tha t  Transnet  

dec ided to  add onto  tha t  p r ice .   I t  i s  money tha t  i s  no t  

au tomat ica l l y  payab le .   I t  i s  ca l led  a  cont ingence.   So we 

went  to  the  board  and sa id  the  pr i ce  i s  49  bu t  we wou ld  be  

a l lowed an add i t iona l  10% fo r  un foreseen th ings tha t  20 

dur ing  the  procurement  we may requ i re  in  the  locomot ives .   

I t  i s  l i ke  a  cont ingency.   I  th ink  i t  is  s tandard  p rac t ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  tha t  no t  undermine the  who le  idea o f  

a  f i xed  pr i ce?  

MR MOLEFE:   No .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   They bought  the  idea o f  a  f i xed  pr ice  to  

have cer ta in ty.  

MR MOLEFE:   No the  –  cont ingency i s  –  no  tha t  there  was  

a  cer ta in t y  on  what  we had agreed on there  was a  

cer ta in ty.   But  then unforeseen is  I  do  no t  know l i ke  what  

bu t  un foreseen th ings,  ac ts  o f  God  th ings l i ke  tha t  were  to  

happen or  whatever  cou ld  happen tha t  we wou ld  have a  

10% cont ingency.   Now th is  i s  –  th is  i s  s tandard  prac t ice  in  

p ro jec ts  l i ke  th is  tha t  when you have a  pro jec t  amount  you  

add onto  i t  a  usua l l y  10% cont ingency.   So i f  fo r  example  10 

the  procurement  even i f  every th ing  was f i xed  and so  on 

came to  no t  49 .  –  49 .  547 but  came to  50  or  51  tha t  wou ld  

be  covered by  the  cont ingency.   So i t  was approved up to  

54 .   So i t  i s  49  up  to  54  the  10% is  a  cont ingency.   Now 

Cha i rperson in  paragraph 57 I  show you the  summary o f  

the  per  un i t  p r i ce  f rom the  b idders .   So the  p i t y  tha t  th is  

does not  t rans la te  to  the  mul t ip l ied  by  the  number  o f  

locomot ives  bu t  the  pr ice  per  locomot ive  –  the  pr ice  pe r  

locomot ive  a t  –  a t  submi t  –  a t  the  t ime o f  submi t t ing  the  

b id  f rom CSR was fo r  example  32 .46.   The f ina l  p r i ce  a f te r  20 

negot ia t ions  was  50.48 i t  increased by  18 .02mi l l ion  per  

locomot ive .   The increase f rom Bombard ie r  was twenty  

. . . [aud io  cu t ]  m i l l i on  pe r  locomot ive ,  increase.   GE was 

9  m i l l ion  per  locomot ive  and CMR was R 12.42 mi l l ion  per  

locomot ive .   So i f  you  take  the  BAFO mul t ip ly  by  the  
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number  o f  locomot ives ,  you w i l l  come to  the  number  tha t  I  

am ta lk ing  about ,  about  43 .   And then i f  you take  the  f ina l  

p r ice  mul t ip ly  by  the  number  o f  locomot ives ,  you w i l l  come 

to  49 .547 b i l l i on .  

 So there  is  no  one,  Cha i rpe rson,  who sa t  in  a  

room and jus t  increased the  pr i ce  f rom R 38 b i l l i on  to  

R 54 b i l l i on ,  cos t ing  the  taxpayers  15  b i l l i on .   Noth ing  l i ke  

tha t  happened.   I t  i s  a  fundamenta l  m isunders tand ing  o f  

the  process and what  happened,  wh ich  i s  why I  cou ld  no t  

unders tand tha t  MNS does not  unders tand i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   I  th ink  you have 

exp la ined how the  pr ice  inc reased  but  tha t  was not  what  I  

was dea l ing  w i th  a t  a l l .  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  d id  no t  exp la in  the . . .   Wel l ,  the  ETC is  

no t  the  pr ice .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  unders tand tha t  Mr  Mole fe  bu t  

there  a re  two d i f fe ren t  th ings.   The f i rs t  i ssue tha t  shou ld  

be  determined i s  whether  in  t ru th  the  Bus iness Case 

inc luded hedg ing  and esca la t ion  or  whether  i t  exc luded i t  20 

as  was represen ted to  the  board .   That  i s  wha t  I  am 

dea l ing  w i th  now.    

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We are  then go ing  to  dea l  a f te r  tha t  

w i th  the  increase  in  the  ETC.   Do not  wor ry.   We wi l l  come 
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to  tha t  bu t  pe rhaps to  jus t  loca te  my quest ion  be t te r.   

Cou ld  I  ask  you to  go  to  Exh ib i t  BB-4( f )?    

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Laher ’s  exh ib i t .   I  th ink  I  have 

take  you there  a  l i t t le  b i t  ear l ie r.    

MR MOLEFE :   BB-4( f ) .   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   And the  f i rs t  par t  po in t  1  to  

page Y IL-17.    

MR MOLEFE :    Oh,  Cha i rpe rson,  i f  you  may indu lge?  You 

have asked me a  quest ion  tha t  I  d id  no t  answer  ac tua l l y.   10 

Mr  Ca l la rd  made a  ca l cu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    So  d id  Mr  Laher  and i t  i s  in  my,  I  th ink  i t  i s  

in  my a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  cou ld  s t i ck  w i th  th is  fo r  a  

moment?   I  am tak ing  you to  the  ac tua l  foundat ion  o f  

documents .  

MR MOLEFE :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And Mr  Mole fe ,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  

you?  We are  dea l ing  now wi th  whether  there  was a  20 

misrepresenta t ion  o f  the  ETC in  re la t ion  to  exc lud ing  

hedg ing  and esca la t ion .  

MR MOLEFE :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  the  Bus iness case.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  then in i t ia l  Bus iness Case .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We are  go ing  to  come in  t ime to  how 

the  ETC increased,  as  you have exp la ined.  

MR MOLEFE :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now a t  paragraph 66,  and I  take  you 

here  because I  do  no t  want  us  to  m isunders tand one  

another  and I  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Page 17?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 17,  pa rag raph 66.  10 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“ In  January  2018 ,  Mohamed Moola ,  Execut ing  

Manager  o f  F inance Cap i ta l  P rogramme and 

I . . .  [ tha t  i s  Mr  Laher ]  . . . rece ived a  request  

f rom the  then GCFO,  Gary P i ta ,  by  the  TFR 

CFO,  Ms Ko lane,  to  conf i rm tha t  they have a  

Bus iness Case pr ic ing  inc luded  or  exc luded  

fo rex  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  costs . . . ”  

 But  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  cont roversy  he re .  20 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“Upon consu l t ing  w i th  Franc is  Ca l la rd ,  ex-

Transnet  employee,  who was key in  the 

or ig ina l  Bus iness  Case ca lcu la t ions.  
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In  January  2018  and rev iewing the  Bus iness 

Case ca l cu la t ions,  Moo la  and I  conc luded tha t  

the  Bus iness Case ca l cu la t ions ac tua l l y  d id  

inc lude fo rex  and  hedg ing  costs . . . ”  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“ . . .and tha t  the  recommendat ion  w i th in  the  

R 38.6  b i l l i on  Bus iness Case to  the  board  in  

Apr i l  2013 ( tha t  the  ETC exc luded  these costs)  

was incor rec t . . . ”  10 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So tha t  i s  what  I  am ask ing  you 

about .   They came to  the  conc lus ion  tha t  was submi t ted  to  

the  board  was incor rec t .   Now what  i s  you r  answer  to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    The R 38.6  b i l l i on?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   The exc lus ion ,  the  bracketed  

por t ion ,  they conc luded was incor rec t .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.   So my quest ion  is .   I f  they  say the  

R 38.6  b i l l i on  inc luded the  fo rex  and hedg ing  costs .   What  20 

por t ion  o f  the  R  38.6  b i l l i on  was  the  fo rex  and hedg ing  

costs?   And on top  o f  tha t .   Wha t  were  the  assumpt ions  

beh ind  the  cor re la t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    . . .o f  those costs?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    . . .because fo rex  and hedg ing  costs ,  as  I  

po in ted  out  yes terday,  depend on –  because the i r  fu tu re 

based on . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    . . . you r  v iew o f  what  i s  go ing  to  happen on 

the  fu tu re  a re  very  d i f f i cu l t  to  es t imate  go ing  fo rward .   So,  

ja ,  i f  they  exc luded or  inc luded,  i f  they  d id  make a  de ta i led  

ca l cu la t ion .   Wha t  por t ion  o f  i t  was th is  fo rex  and hedg ing  

costs  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  le t  us  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    . . .on  the  R 38.6  b i l l i on?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay but  you accept  tha t  i s  what  i s  

recorded as  the  conc lus ion  here?   I  unders tand what  you  

are  say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    That  may be . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    That  may be the i r  conc lus ion  bu t  f rom 

where  I  was s i t t ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes?  20 

MR MOLEFE :    . . . the  f igure  was R 38.6  b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    They wou ld  go  out  on  tender.   They  wou ld  

come up w i th  numbers .   We wou ld  negot ia te  and tha t  w i l l  

be  the  f ina l  p r i ce .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  f rom where  you were  s i t t ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .d id  the  in i t ia l  Bus iness Case  

inc lude or  exc lude hedg ing  and esca la t ion?  

MR MOLEFE :    There  was no ca lcu la t ion  made o f  exact ly  

how much the  fo rex  and hedg ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  i t  inc lude or  exc lude i t?  

MR MOLEFE :    There  was an assumpt ion  tha t  they wou ld  

be  there .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i t  inc luded i t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  i t  was rep resented to  the  board  

tha t  they were  exc luded.   That  i s  the  who le  po in t .   That  i s  

the  who le  cont roversy.    

MR MOLEFE :    Cha i rperson,  f rom where  I  was s i t t ing ,  the 

f igure  was R 38.6  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Inc lud ing?  

MR MOLEFE :   The 38 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Po in t  6 .  20 

MR MOLEFE :   The ETC was R 38 b i l l i on  tha t  we went  to  

the  board  w i th .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  h is  quest ion  is  and my  
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unders tand ing  is  tha t  you have answered but  he  jus t  wants  

to  make su re  is  t ha t .   H is  quest ion  is  whether  tha t  es t imate  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :   The passage f rom the  Bus iness Case tha t  

we read . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Inc luded.  

MR MOLEFE :   . . .sa id  i t  exc luded . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE :   . . . fo rex .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  10 

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  was your  unders tand ing? 

MR MOLEFE :   Ja ,  my unders tand ing ,  to  pu t  i t  good ly  i s ,  i t  

d id  no t  rea l l y  mat te r.   So the  Bus iness Case  says i t  

exc luded.   That  was the  R 38 b i l l i on  exc luded.   That  i s  

f ine .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  sure  how. . .   I t  is  ra the r  

surpr i s ing  to  me  i f  you say i t  d id  no t  mat te r  whether  i t  

exc luded or  inc luded because I  wou ld  have though t  tha t  i t  

cou ld  s ign i f i can t ly  –  i t  cou ld  make  a  b ig  d i f fe rence in  te rms 20 

o f  your  budget ing  and how much you cou ld  be  ta lk ing  about  

and i t  m igh t  be . . .  

 My assumpt ion  i s  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  to  

know whether  -  when you as  the  management  say to  us  as  

the  board ,  i f  I  was in  the  board ,  when you say your  
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es t imate  o f  what  Transnet  i s  go ing  to  pay is  R 38.6  b i l l i on .  

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you taken tha t  count  a l l  r i sks?   We 

know tha t  i t  i s  an  es t imate  bu t  you have taken account  

every th ing  tha t  you shou ld  take  in to  account?   And i f  you 

say:   Look,  we l l ,  i t  exc luded th is  cos t . . . .   Or  do  you  say we  

inc luded?   

 Cer ta in ly,  I  wou ld  want  to  know whethe r  i t  i s  

exc luded or  inc luded because then  I  can dec ide  wha t  i s  the  

rea l i t y  I  must  work  on  in  te rms o f  the  amounts .    10 

 Because i f  those  costs  a re  bound to  come in ,  

maybe I  may as  we l l  make whatever  dec is ion  on  the  bas i s  

tha t  th is  38  is  qu i te  low,  you know,  in  te rms o f  rea l i t y  

because those costs  w i l l  come in  a t  some s tage.    

 So I  am jus t  say ing ,  I  wou ld  have  expected tha t  

i t  shou ld  mat te r  whether  they a re  inc luded o r  exc luded.   

The board  shou ld  know.  

MR MOLEFE :   Ja .   You see,  Cha i rperson,  what  we are  

t ry ing  to  de termine here  is  whether  the  R 38 b i l l i on  was a  

per fec t  number,  whethe r  i t  was a  number  tha t  re f lec ted ,  20 

rea l l y,  tha t  what  you are  t ry ing  to  de te rmine.   Ja .   I  am 

say ing  i t  d id  no t  and i t  d id  no t  have to .   Ja .   I t  was a  

number  tha t  we wou ld  go  out  to  market  w i th .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :   The number  tha t  re f lec ts  rea l i t y  i s  the 
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number  tha t  b idders  come back w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.   That  i s  what  happens.   The res t  o f  the 

th ings,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :   Once person can say th i s  locomot ive  i s  

R 20 mi l l ion  and another  says th is  locomot ive  is  

R 25 mi l l ion .   The d i f fe rence in  the  f i ve  m i l l ion  can be 

jus t i f ied  us ing  a  myr iad  o f  reasons.   A t  the  end o f  the  day,  

the  quest ion  is ,  the  pr i ce  o f  the  locomot ive  is  what  they pu t  10 

to  you as  and i f  they  are  w i l l i ng  to  pay fo r  i t .   Tha t  i s  the  

f ina l . . .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :   I f  they  come up w i th  a  number  fo r  the  pr ice  

o f  a  locomot ive  tha t  we are  no t  w i l l i ng  to  pay,  there  is  no  

pr ice .   I f  the  b idders  looked a t  our  R 38 b i l l i on  w i th  o r  

w i thout  fo rex  hedges and so  on  and o ther  th ings. . .   

 We cou ld  have put  in  the  cost  pe r  screw tha t  i s  

in  eve ry  locomot ive ,  the  cost  per  whee l  o f  a  locomot ive ,  

the  cost  per  s tee r ing  whee l ,  the  cost  o f  a  b reak ing  sys tem,  20 

the  cost  o f . . .    

 So  we cou ld  have deta i led  i t .   A t  the  end o f  the  

day,  what  mat te rs  i s ,  i s  the  number  a t  the  bo t tom and i t  

was R 38 b i l l i on .   So i t  had fo rex .   The Bus iness Case says  

i t  d id  no t .    
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 So  what  I  am say ing  is .   Th i s  exerc ise  o f  

de termin ing  whether  the  R 38 b i l l i on  inc luded o r  d id  no t  

exc lude fo rex  hedg ing .   I t  does not  mat te r.   What  mat te rs  

i s ,  what  were  the  b idders  w i l l i ng  to  pay?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Myburgh w i l l  con t inue w i th  h is  

quest ions bu t  le t  me put  th is  to  you a t  a ,  maybe a  p r inc ip le  

leve l  o r  a  genera l  leve l .   I f  I  am go ing  to  d r i ve  f rom Durban  

to  Johannesburg  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  am a  fo rmer  Ch ie f  Group Execut ive  10 

o f  Transnet  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :   You are  you go ing  to  d r ive?  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   I  am go ing  to  d r i ve .  Yes .  

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    From Durban to  Johannesburg .  

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And not  go  by  t ra in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   I t  m igh t  no t  mat te r  how much 

pet ro l  I  w i l l  have  to  pu t  in  and the  to l l s ,  how much I  w i l l  

have to  pay in  te rms o f  to l l  cha rges but  fo r  somebody e l se ,  20 

i f  you  te l l  h im on ly  about  –  o r  her  about  on l y  the  pe t ro l ,  the  

cost  o f  pe t ro l  fo r  tha t  t r ip  and you do not  te l l  h im what  –  

tha t  there  are  to l l  charges tha t  w i l l  have to  be  pa id  and so  

on  and so  fo r th .   I t  m igh t  make  a  b ig  d i f fe rence  to  tha t  

o ther  person but  maybe not  somebody e lse .  
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MR MOLEFE :   Ja ,  Cha i rperson,  so  when you are  go ing  to  

d r ive  f rom Durban to  Johannesburg .   What  a re  the  costs?   

So i t  i s  pe t ro l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :   And to l l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :   And what  e lse?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know i f  there  is  any bu t  

those are  de f in i te ly.  

MR MOLEFE :   Those are  the  costs ,  né?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR MOLEFE :   So  there  is  wear  and tear  o f  your  t y res .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :   There  is  the  cost  per  k i lomet re  o f  runn ing  

your  eng ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MOLEFE :   There  is  the  o i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :   Even i f  i t  i s  jus t  a  smal l  amount .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

MR MOLEFE :   R igh t?   And then in  –  on  the  way,  your  ca r  

maybe ch ipped,  the  w indscreen maybe ch ipped.   There  is  

the  damage to  the  pa in t .   Even i f  i t  i s  smal l ,  tha t  i s  a  cost ,  

r igh t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 
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MR MOLEFE :    So  what  I  am say ing  is  tha t ,  a t  the  end o f  

the  day,  the  ques t ion  is .   A re  you w i l l i ng  to  pay R 500,00 to  

t rave l  f rom here  to  Durban or  a re  you w i l l i ng  to  pay 

R 1  000,00.   That  i s  what  mat te rs .   But  go ing  – be ing  

product ive  and say ing :   Ja ,  bu t  you d id  no t  take  in to 

cons idera t ion  the  costs  o f  the  damage to  the  pa in t .   I  

mean,  as  you have jus t  demonst ra ted .   Even the  cost  o f  

the  ty res  was not  fac tored in to  your  own ca l cu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :   And what  I  am say ing  is  tha t ,  the  bo t tom l ine  10 

is .   What  a re  you prepared to  pay to  t rave l  f rom here  to  

Durban?  Prepared to  pay to  t rave l  f rom here  to  Durban,  

even when you do not  know what  the  costs  o f  the  wear  and  

tear  o f  the  ty res  are .   And I  am say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  cost  o f  the  wear  and tea r  o f  the 

ty res  m ight  be  a  long- te rm th ing  bu t  in  the  examp le  I  am 

g iv ing  you,  the  issue o f  the  to l l  charges w i l l  have to  be 

pa id .  

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Pe t ro l ,  you must  have money fo r  pe t ro l .  20 

MR MOLEFE :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You might  a r r i ve  in  Gauteng w i thout  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . your  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MOLEFE :   So  those a re  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i f  you  do not  te l l  the  person about  

the  charges fo r  the  to l l ,  you  know,  i t  seems to  me tha t  tha t  

wou ld  be  cr i t i ca l  bu t  you might  say  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You might  say  the  example  o f  the  to l l  

m igh t  no t  f i t  in to  the  locomot ives .   I  am not  sure  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . in  te rms o f  these costs .  10 

MR MOLEFE :    See,  you are  e leva t ing  the  hedg ing  costs  to  

the  pr ice  o f  the  to l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    There  are  th ings  l i ke  the  hedge o f  cos ts  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE :    . . .a re  l i ke  the  wear  and tear  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    . . .o f  the  ty res .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    And the  o i l  and o ther  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    So  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  Cha i r,  you  can go  

and see the  car  h i re  compan ies .   They charge d i f fe ren t  
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amounts  per  k i lomet re  fo r  h i r ing  the i r  cars .   So i f  you  were  

to  ask :   How do you ar r i ve  a t  th is  amount?    

 They wou ld  show you d i f fe ren t  methodo log ies .   

And the  methodo log ies  are  in f in i te  o f  how those amounts  

are  ca lcu la ted  bu t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  i t ,  i t  i s  jus t  a  gu t  fee l .   

I t  i s  jus t  a  gu t  fee l  Cha i r.   What  mat te rs  i s ,  how much are  

peop le  w i l l i ng  to  rece ive  fo r  a  locomot ive  and how much  

are  you w i l l i ng  to  pay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank  you.   Mr  Mole fe ,  be fore  10 

you engaged in  answer ing  quest ions as  by  the  

Cha i rperson.   I  th ink  tha t  the  record  w i l l  re f lec t  tha t  what  

you sa id  was th i s .   From where  I  was s i t t ing ,  I  assumed 

tha t  the  Bus iness Case inc luded  hedg ing  and esca la t ion .   

Do you reca l l  say ing  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  I  d id  so  bu t  the  Bus iness Case,  as  you  

po in ted  out ,  had then cor rec ted  me,  sa id  i t  exc ludes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    But  what  tha t  re f lec ts  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MOLEFE :    What  tha t  re f lec ts  i s  tha t  tha t  was not  

uppermost  in  my mind.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am not  wor r ied  about  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    What  was uppermost  in  my mind was,  what  

w i l l  the  b idders  be  w i l l i ng  to  pay?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    And to  rece ive .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  so  tha t  you unders tand,  p lease.   

I s ,  tha t  i s  no t  what  we a re  t r y ing  to  de te rmine,  to  use your  

language.   A t  the  moment ,  I  am exp lo r ing  w i th  you an  

a l legat ion ,  as  you know,  tha t  you mis represen ted the  

Bus iness case to  the  board .    

 And the  a l legat ion ,  as  you know,  i s  tha t  you 

misrepresented the  ETC to  the  board  when say ing  i t  

exc luded hedg ing  and esca la t ion  when i t  in  fac t  inc luded i t  10 

and i t  seems to  be  me tha t  you made tha t  concess ion  

ear l ie r  in  your  ev idence.  

MR MOLEFE :    Okay Cha i r,  I  may we l l  have,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You do not  want  to  change your  

ev idence?  

MR MOLEFE :    Come aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You do not  want  to  change your  

ev idence?  

MR MOLEFE :    I  t r ied  to  exp la in  Mr  Myburgh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  20 

MR MOLEFE :    . . . tha t  th is  th ing  tha t  you are  go ing  on  

about  was f rom where  I  was s i t t ing  no t  an  impor tan t  i ssue.   

I  th ink  we are  n i t -p ick ing  about  the  wear  and tea r  o f  the 

ty res ,  rea l l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  us  come to  the  impor tance  
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o f  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE :    . . . in  the  t r ip  f rom Durban to  he re .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I  w i l l  come to the 

impor tance o f  i t  because i t  becomes more  apparent .   So 

when Mr  Ca l la rd  and  Mr  Moo la  say tha t  they re ran the  

numbers  and they came to  a  conc lus ion  tha t  the  or ig ina l  

Bus iness Case inc luded fo rex  and hedg ing ,  you  wou ld  

agree w i th  tha t .  

MR MOLEFE :    No.   You see,  th is  i s  exact ly  my po in t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t?  10 

MR MOLEFE :    So  there  was a  Bus iness Case o f  

R 38 b i l l i on .   Mis te r. . .   I s  i t  Laher?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Moo la  and Laher.  

MR MOLEFE :    Laher?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.    

MR MOLEFE :    Reca lcu la ted  i t  and came to  a  ca lcu la t ion  o f  

R 43 b i l l i on ,  i s  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  they d id  no t  Mr  Mole fe .   You 

rea l l y  a re . . .   I f  you  bear  w i th  me what  happened.   You see,  

these peop le  were  asked to  two th ings.  20 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    F i r s t l y,  they  were  asked to  

de termine,  d id  the  or ig ina l  Bus iness Case inc lude hedg ing  

and esca la t ion .   And you have excepted i t  d id .   Then what  

they were  asked to  do ,  i s  they were  asked –  and Mr  Laher  
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dea ls  w i th  th is :   We were  a lso  requested to  reca lcu la te  the  

ETC in  the  Bus iness Case ad jus ted  to  fac tors  fo r  wh ich  we 

now know . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . i .e .  cont rac t  de l i ve r ing . . .  exchange 

ra te ,  e t  ce tera .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then they came to  tha t  f igure .   

And tha t  re la ted  to  whethe r  the  i ncrease f rom R 38  b i l l i on 

to  R 55 b i l l i on  was jus t i f iab le  bu t  what  they were  f i rs t  ask  10 

to  do  i s  to  de termine whethe r  the  in i t ia l  Bus iness case o f  

36 .8  b i l l i on  inc luded hedg ing  and esca la t ion .   And you  

have accepted tha t  i t  d id .   So I  p resume,  you do not  take  

issue w i th  tha t  pa r t  o f  the  ev idence? 

MR MOLEFE :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And what  i s  a lso  impor tan t  

i s .   Dr  F ine  o f  McK insey gave ev idence before  th is  

Commiss ion .   D id  you have occas ion  to  hear  o r  learn  o f  h is  

ev idence?  

MR MOLEFE :    No.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So on Day 322,  the  

10 t h  o f  December  2020,  Mr  F ine  was examined  by  my  

co l league,  Mr  Chaska lson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Bu t  I  was  issued w i th  a  3 .3  or  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  no .  

MR MOLEFE :    . . . I  was not  imp l ica ted?  Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am go ing  to  read to  you what  

Mr  F ine  sa id .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  l ine  20 .    

“There  a re  a  coup le  o f  po in t  I  jus t  want  to  

s t ress  up  f ron t .   McK insey predominant ly  was  

invo lved in  the  Bus iness Case and tha t  

Bus iness Case d id  conf i rm Transnet ’s  numbers  10 

o f  38 .6  b i l l i on  inc lud ing ,  and to  be  prec ise ,  

inc lud ing  fo re ign  exchange and inc lud ing  

esca la t ions. . . ”  

 You wou ld  agree w i th  tha t  ev idence?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then,  o f  course ,  impor tan t ly  i s  

the  ev idence o f  Mr  Choubey.   Perhaps we can go tha t  and  

no doubt  you w i l l  agree w i th  i t  as  we l l .  

MR MOLEFE :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  you w i l l  f ind ,  and we have been  20 

to  one o f  these repor t s  yesterday.   Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  

to  go  to  Exh ib i t  BB-8(b) .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  and  

th is  i s  aga in  someth ing  d iv ided in to  two par t s .  We a re  
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dea l ing  w i th  pa r t  1 .   And i f  I  cou ld  ask  you. . .   Wel l ,  le t  us . . .  

in  fac t ,  le t  us  go  to  page 1 .    

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  you  w i l l  f ind  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Choubey.   And i f  I  cou ld  take  you,  p lease,  then  to  page  

7  a t  paragraph 4?  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Summary o f  f ind ings,  4 .1 :  

“ I  conc luded f rom the  i nvest iga t ions on  

acqu is i t ions  o f  the  1064 Locomot ives  tha t :  10 

1 .1 .  The va r iab les  and assumpt ions used to  

mode l  18  Apr i l  2013 Bus iness Case were  

reasonab le .  

1 .2 .  The ETC o f  R 38.6  b i l l i on  i nc luded 

esca la t ion  and fo re ign  cu r rency exchange 

ra te  hedg ing  costs  and was an  

acceptab le  es t imate  fo r  the  to ta l  cos t  o f  

acqu i r ing  the  locomot ives . . . ”  

 Now you have accepted tha t ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then he goes on to  dea l  w i th  

another  quest ion  and tha t  was tha t  the  41% increase in  the 

ETC f rom R 38.6  b i l l i on  to  R 54 .5  b i l l i on  was no t  in  i t s  

to ta l i t y  jus t i f iab le .   Now tha t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  quest ion  wh ich  

we a re  go ing  to  come to .  
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MR MOLEFE :    No,  no t  on ly  tha t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    I t  d isp lays  m is te r. . .   What  i s  h is  name?  

Choubey?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Choubey.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.   Mr  Choubey ’s  lack  o f  exper ience.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    . . .and unpro fess iona l i sm.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  fa i r  enough.   We are  go ing  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE :    Because he says the  inc rease in  ETC f rom 

R 38.6  b i l l i on  to  R 54.5  b i l l i on  was not  jus t i f iab le .   

R  54.5  b i l l i on  i s  no t  ETC.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   We a re  go ing  to  come to  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    So  those two numbers ,  R 38.6  b i l l i on  i s  

ETC.   R 54.5  b i l l i on  i s  someth ing  e lse .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE :    R  54 .5  b i l l i on  i s  based on what  the  b idders  

gave us  as  pr ices .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    . . .he  is  compar ing  th ings tha t  a  pe rson w i th  

a  m in imum of  unders tand ing  o f  f inance . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE :    . . .shou ld  no t  be  compar ing .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  the  on ly  po in t  i s .   I  am s t i l l  

dea l ing  a t  the  moment  w i th  the  f i rs t  quest ion  tha t  he  was  

asked to  examine  and there  i t  seems to  be  common cause  

between us .   So le t  us  then go fo rward  in  the  chrono logy.   

We know tha t  on  the  23 r d  o f  May 2014,  you and Mr  S ingh  

and Mr  Gama recommended to  the  BABC tha t  there  shou ld  

be  an increase in  p r ice .   I s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MOLEFE :    We recommended tha t  there  shou ld  be  an 

increase?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now we a re  ge t t ing  to  the 10 

23 r d  o f  May 2014.    

MR MOLEFE :    Can I  see tha t  recommendat ion?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  

page. . .   Ah,  sor ry.   To  Exh ib i t  BB-4(b) .    

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  we have looked a t  i t  a l ready.    

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   A re  you the re?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  the  page.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Exh ib i t  BB-4(b ) .   And I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

take  you,  p lease,  Cha i rpe rson to  page FQC-714.    

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  was the  memorandum tha t  I  

was re fer r i ng  you to .   714.   I t  i s  to  the  Board  Acqu is i t ion  
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and D isposa l  Commi t tee  and i t  i s  f rom yourse l f .   Cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  sor ry.   A re  you not  there? 

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you the re  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease –  you can  

keep your  f inge r  there ,  bu t  can you tu rn  fo rward  to  page 

FQC-731?  I t  i s  s ignature  page.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    731.  

MR MOLEFE :    731?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  731.  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  recommended by  Mr  S ingh,  

Mr  Gama and you in  tu rn  and you s igned on the  

23 r d  o f  May 2014.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you then to  tu rn  back to  

page 714?  20 

MR MOLEFE :    Seven. . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    714.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  you read what  the  pu rpose o f  

your  memorandum was,  in to  the  record ,  p lease?  
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Paragraph 1 .  

MR MOLEFE :    To  no te  the  reasons fo r  the  increase in  

ETC? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   That  i s  A .   And B?  

MR MOLEFE :    “To  request  tha t  the . . .  i s  recommending an 

increase in  the  ETC f rom 1064 to . . .  f rom R 38.6  b i l l i on  to  

R 54.5  b i l l i on . ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  what  the  pu rpose was,  to  request  

a  recommendat ion  o f  an  increase in  the  ETC.   Cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  perhaps Mr  Choubey is  no t  as  

incompetent  as  you thought .  

MR MOLEFE :    Oh,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   I  jus t  saw tha t  too .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Le t  me. . .  le t  me 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Bu t  can we c la r i f y  one th ing?   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can I  f i rs t  go  to  what  was  

recommended and then I  w i l l  g ive  you the  oppor tun i ty.   I  20 

jus t  want  to  f in ish  o f f  th is  document .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  go to  page FQC-731.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There ,  i t  is  recommended tha t ,  a t  
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108,  paragraph B ,  the  BABC . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . recommends an increase.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The es t imated to ta l  cos t  ETC for  the  

acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 Locomot ives ,  Transnet  Fre igh t  

Ra i l . . .  R  38 .6  b i l l i on  to  R 54.5  b i l l i on .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Wha t  i s  i t  tha t  you wanted to  

exp la in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  tha t .   I  th ink  Mr  Myburgh –  to  Mr  

Choubey,  you need to  say exact ly  what  you meant .  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  am go ing  to  come back to  Mr  Choubey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we l l  maybe tha t  m ight  be  too  fa r.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    In  fac t  what  Mr  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  a l l  th ree  o f  us  know noth ing  about .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  about  the  ETC inc rease and ETC,  I  

th ink  tha t  i s  what  you were  ta lk ing  about .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Choubey was asked to  

de termine whethe r  the  increase in  the  ETC was reasonab le  

and jus t i f iab le  and tha t  was the  cor rec t  quest ion  to  be  
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asked based on th is  memorandum submi t ted  and approved 

by  or  recommended by  Mr  Mole fe .   Cha i rperson  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe we  were  a t  c ross-purposes 

and both  o f  you may ind i ca ted  i f  I  m isunders tand  

someth ing .   Mr  Mole fe  had c r i t i c i sed Mr  Choubey fo r  

ta lk ing  about  an  increase o f  ETC f rom 38.6  b i l l i on  to  54  

po in t  whatever  on  the  bas is  tha t  54  po in t  whatever  b i l l i on  

was not  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH:    The ETC.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The ETC.   So but  th is  memo here  tha t  

has go t  h is  s igna ture  a lso  ta lks  a long the  same l ines .   That  

i s  tha t  we were  a l l  ta lk ing  about .  

MR MOLEFE:    Except  tha t  in  substance the  54 .5  b i l l i on  i s  

no t  an  es t imate ,  i t  i s  the  ou tcome o f  negot ia t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  no ,  you were  mak ing  the  po in t .   

My unders tand ing  was s imp ly  tha t  you were  say ing  he  was  

–  we l l ,  f i rs t l y,  us ing  wrong language because 54 is  no t  

ETC.   But  two,  you were  say ing  tha t  i t  re f lec ted  a  

fundamenta l  I  m isunders tand ing  on  h is  par t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  a t  th is  s tage I  am s imply  say ing 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    Perhaps,  Cha i rperson …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a t  leas t  the  language seems to  be  
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same as in  your  memo.   Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  perhaps,  Cha i rperson,  ou r  us ing  o f  

tha t  same language in  th is  memo re f lec t s  a  s im i la r  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    E r ror.  

MR MOLEFE:    Amateur ism.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  fa i r  enough.  

MR MOLEFE:    That  we a l so  heard .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  tha t  i s  fa i r,  tha t  i s  fa i r  enough.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  the  substance,  the  substance  is  tha t  10 

the  d i f fe rence between the  38 .6  b i l l i on  i s  tha t  the  38 .6  

b i l l i on  was an es t imate  o f  what  the  t ra ins  wou ld  cos t ,  54  is  

the  ac tua l  cos t .   So ac tua l l y  on  re f lec t ion  th is  shou ld  no t  

have been cra f ted  as  an  increase in  ETC,  i t  was to  say tha t  

we had budgeted  to  spend 38.6  b i l l i on ,  the  rea l i t y  i s  tha t  

the  t ra ins  a re  go ing  to  cost  54 .5  b i l l i on  a f te r  the  b idder  

submi t ted  the  pr i ce  and a f te r  nego t ia t ion .   And I  th ink  what  

the  memo t r ies  to  capture  i s  the  d i f fe rences tha t  led  to  the 

increase o f  54 .5  b i l l i on  or  ra the r  49  because 5  m i l l ion  o f  i t  

i s  cont ingency.   Ja ,  so  the  ma in  dr ivers  a re  what  i s  20 

captured in  the  memo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

MR MOLEFE:    So  –  and these main  dr ivers  were  the  

ou tcome o f  negot ia t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH:    I s  i t  a  conven ien t  t ime to  take  the  tea  
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ad journment ,  Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON :    We are  –  we s t i l l  have f i ve  m inutes .  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i f  you  want  to  use tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes.  Without want ing to be unchari table to 

you, Mr Mole fe ,  do I  understand you now to say that insofar as 

there was amateurism i t  was now on your part ,  not on Mr 

Choubey’s part .  

MR MOLEFE:    Al l  of  us. 

ADV MYBURGH:    So let  us then have a look at  the reasons 10 

for th is increase.  This is at  page FQC 714.  Execut ive 

summary, paragraph 2: 

“ In summary,  the increase in the ETC of  15.9 b i l l ion 

can be at t r ibuted to the fo l lowing.” 

And you wi l l  see there that  there are four or f ive d i fferent 

reasons.  Do you see that? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And the one causing the greatest increase 

in the ETC was r isk mit igat ion,  forex and escalat ion.  Do you 

see that? 20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And do you understand the controversy, 

controversy is that was actual ly included in the in i t ia l  business 

case. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH:    And you accept then that  that  accounted for 

59% of  the increase? 

MR MOLEFE:    Forex and …[intervenes] 

ADV MYBURGH:    Escalat ion. 

MR MOLEFE:    Escalat ions are funct ions of  assumpt ions that 

change with t ime even with the people that are calculat ing i t .   

So i f  I  was to ask you i f  they were included in the 38 bi l l ion, 

how much was i t  and what were the assumpt ions? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Can we turn to the next  page? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    Page      FQC 715, background. 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Paragraph 14. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Now perhaps one gets a bet ter sense of the 

problem: 

“The acquis i t ion of the 1064 locomot ives was approved 

by the board of  d irectors in Apri l  2013 at  a cost  of  38.6 

b i l l ion.  This excluded the fo l lowing costs.”  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    Hedging and escalat ion.   In other words, 

what is presented to the board is that  th is massive change in 

the ETC is at t r ibutable by and large 59% to the fact that we 

in i t ia l ly  excluded these costs and now they are being included, 

which you accept is wrong.  Your own case is they were 
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included in i t ia l ly.   Do you see the problem, Mr Mole fe? 

MR MOLEFE:    No, I  do not . 

ADV MYBURGH:    Alr ight .   Okay,  so then comes the issue of 

…[intervenes] 

MR MOLEFE:    Chairperson, can I  make a point? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja. 

MR MOLEFE:    With the di fferent assumpt ions that are being 

made on the calculat ion of  th is ETC.  The fact of the matter is 

that  there was a calculat ion of b i l l ion with or without correct 

hedging and assumpt ions and so on,  there was a f igure of  38 10 

bi l l ion.   Then Mr – is i t  Laher,  was asked to calculate ETC.  So 

he calculated ETC and came to about I  th ink 43 bi l l ion, 

thereabouts.   He says in h is evidence that  I  recalculated i t  and 

th is is what I  arr ived at  and then Mr Cal lard a lso made a 

calculat ion of  the ETC.  I  not  sure what h is assumpt ions were 

…[intervenes] 

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes but,  Mr Mo le fe , what you,  with respect 

…[intervenes] 

MR MOLEFE:    No, I  am try ing to – I  am try ing to… 

ADV MYBURGH:    I  am sorry,  carry on. 20 

MR MOLEFE:    So they were actual ly of the ETC, so these 

three calculat ions are based on the f i rst  f igure.   So the  f i rs t  

one is  38  b i l l i on  un less  th is  agreement  o r  a  cont roversy  or  

rep resenta t ions o r  m isrepresenta t ions tha t  i t  d id  o r  d id  no t  

inc lude hedg ing .   So tha t  was 38 b i l l i on .   Mr  I  th ink  Laher  
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ca l cu la ted  to  43  b i l l i on .   Mr  Ca l la rd  made a  ca lcu la t ion  o f  

the  ETC.   So what  he  d id  i s  he  went  back to  the  desk and 

reca lcu la ted  the  ETC and h is  f igure  was 45 b i l l i on  and the  

f ina l  f igure  was 49 b i l l i on .    

A l l  I  am t ry ing  to  say,  Cha i rperson,  i s  tha t  in  the  

ca l cu la t ion  o f  these ETCs,  the  negot ia t ions  and so  on ,  you  

are  bound to  come up w i th  d i f fe ren t  numbers .   But  tha t  was  

not  the  po in t  o f  execu t ive  dec is ion ,  execu t ive  dec is ions  

a re  can you  l ive  wi th  what  the b idders  a re  p repared to  

rece ive  and i f  you  look a t  the paragraph  7  o f  th is  memo,  i t  10 

says:  

“The  NPV o f  the  bus iness case  remains pos i t ive  a t  

11 .68  b i l l ion  and  49  b i l l ion . ”  

So  the  NPV remains pos i t i ve  a t  49  b i l l ion .   From and 

execu t ive  dec is ion  po in t  o f  v iew tha t  is  su ff i c ien t  to  te l l  us 

whether  o r  no t  to  p roceed wi th  the  negot ia ted  49 b i l l ion  

p lus con t ingenc ies o r  no t .   Tha t  is  the  dec is ion-making 

p rocess in  a  t ransact ion  l i ke  th is .   We  hard ly  ever  go t  in to  

–  o r  a t  least  a t  the  leve l  o f  the  CEO, in to  the  pedant ic  

ca lcu la t ions o f  the  assumpt ions beh ind  fo rex esca la t ions 20 

o r  no t .   What  we want  to  know is ,  49  b i l l ion ,  i s  i t  f i xed ,  

does i t  have  a  pos i t i ve  NPV?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  is  th is  an appropriate t ime  now to  

take  the  tea  ad journment .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us take  the tea  ad journment.   We –  

I  am just  go ing  to  add  ano ther  f ive  minu tes in  order  to  

a t tend  to  somebody.   We wi l l  ad journ ,  we  wi l l  resume a t  

twenty  f ive  to .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Thank you.   Mr  Mole fe ,  we were  dea l ing  10 

w i th  FQC page 714.   A re  you s t i l l  there ,  in  EXHIBIT BB4(b).   

I  th ink you probably have i t  in  front of you there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just repeat that  so I  can check whether I  

have got i t  here.  

ADV MYBURGH:    EXHIBIT BB4(b).  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh, ja.   I  have got i t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    And page,  Chairperson, FQC 714.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I t  is  your memorandum to  the BADC, do 

you have i t? 20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  just want  to  turn to one other  th ing.  I f  

you go to page 717, you see at paragraph 23 says:  

“The increase in  the ETC of 15.9 b i l l ion is due to  the 

fo l lowing reasons.”  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  just want  to  drop down to (d),  we have 

already deal t  wi th  others.   (d) says:  

“The cost o f reducing the batch s ize.”  

Do you see that?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And i t  cross-refers to i tem (d) of table 2.   

Could I  p lease take you to that,  i t  is over the page at FQC 

718. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    And you wi l l  see that i f  you look on the 

r ight  hand sa id then you wi l l  see a let ter d  and on the le f t  of  

that i t  ta lks about  batch pr ic ing adjustment,  then you get d 

and the amount attr ibutable to that is 2.7 b i l l ion.  Do you 

conf irm that?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Alr ight .   Now what we know – so th is is  a 

memorandum to the BADC which you s ign on the 23 May.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Would  you agree that on the same day 20 

you made the same recommendation to  the board of  

d irectors in  another memorandum. 

MR MOLEFE:    To reduce the batch pr ice.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Sorry? 

MR MOLEFE:    To reduce the batch, the batches.  
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ADV MYBURGH:    No, you made exact ly  the same 

recommendation that you made here to the BADC at page 

714. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Running through to  page 731.   You made 

the same recommendation to the board.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Let us go to that  document.   That 

document you f ind in another f i le ,  Mr Choudey’s f i le .   

BD8(b).  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Now that f i le  is  d ivided into two parts,  we 

are deal ing wi th part  1 , so i t ’s  EXHIBIT BD8(b.1).   Could  I  

take you p lease to page – these are red numbers on the 

r ight  hand side page 165.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Alr ight ,  could I  just  ask you to conf i rm that 

th is is the same memorandum. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    165, i t  runs through where i t  is  s igned at 20 

182. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Alr ight  and then I  would just  ask you to 

conf i rm that on the 28 May 2014, a few days later,  the board of 

d irectors in fact  approved your recommendat ion. 
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Perhaps I  could take you to the Fundudzi 

report ,  that is  in bundle 6.  I f  I  could take you please to page 

184. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Is i t  bundle 6,  Mr  Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  bundle 6,  Chairperson. 

CHAIRPERSON :    And page 184 did you say? 

ADV MYBURGH:    184,  correct .   I f  I  could ask you, Mr  Mo le fe , 

p lease to have a look at  the heading towards the middle of the 

page, Board Meet ing on 28 May and there at  paragraph 10 

5.9.12.7: 

“On 28 May the board noted the reasons for the 

increase in the ETC and approved an increase in the 

ETC for the acquis i t ion of  the 1064 locomot ives for 

GFB from 38.6 b i l l ion to 54.5 b i l l ion.” 

Do you conf i rm that? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   Except,  Chairperson, the use of ETC in 

a l l  these documents is unfortunate.   The 54.5 b i l l ion was not 

an est imate,  i t  is what the negot iated actual  pr ice was, 49 

bi l l ion p lus 10% cont ingency of  5 b i l l ion.   So i t  is  real ly not  an 20 

increase, the 64.5 b i l l ion is the negot iated pr ice for the 

locomot ives and the negot iat ions had di f ferent  aspects to 

them, d i f ferent th ings that  were negot iated dur ing the 

negot iat ions that  came – that brought the amount to 64 bi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  of course what you sought to do 
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through these two memoranda, one to the – is i t  the BADC? 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the other to the board,  was you sought 

to expla in to them how come there was such a b ig gap 

between the ETC of  R38.6 b i l l ion that  you had to ld them about 

…[intervenes] 

MR MOLEFE:    And  the  actua l  p r ice .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And  the  actua l  p r ice .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Tha t  you  sought  to  exp la in  tha t .  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  th ink  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And in  do ing so  you  b rought  in  the  

issue  o f  these  costs .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And  sa id  they had  been exc luded when 

in  fac t  they  had  been inc luded.   I t  th ink  tha t  i s  where  we 

a re .  

MR MOLEFE:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH:    So, Mr Mo le fe ,  I  just  want to put  i t  to you 20 

that  on your evidence then i t  seems there is a further 

misrepresentation made to the board because you represented 

the [ indist inct]  increase in the ETC, you did not  represent that 

i t  was the contract pr ice. 

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  i t  i s  the  con t ract  p r ice .  
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ADV MYBURGH:    Yes but  you are not  l is tening to my acui ty, 

p lease.  On your own version there is then a misrepresentation 

to the board, another misrepresentation. 

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson ,  I  doub t  i f  anybody 

unders tood  th is ,  even  the use  o f  the  ETC to  mean tha t  the 

54  b i l l ion  was an  est imate ,  i t  was  the  negot ia ted  pr ice ,  i t  

was the  p r ice  tha t  we  were  go ing to  pay fo r  the 

locomot ives.  

ADV MYBURGH:    so your answer is that – wel l ,  do you accept 

that i t  is  a misrepresentation or not?  You made a 10 

recommendat ion.   On the basis of  your recommendat ion i t  was 

then approved in the exact  terms where the board 

…[intervenes] 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  i t  wou ld  be  a  misrepresentation i f  the re 

was anybody in  the  board  who thought  tha t  we  were  s t i l l  

t ry ing  to  est imate .   We were  no t  t ry ing  to  est ima te ,  th is 

was the  actua l  cost ,  the  use  o f  termino logy is  un for tuna te.   

Bu t  f rom the board ’s  unders tand ing  I  am con f iden t  tha t  the 

board  unders tood th is  to  mean th is  is  the  p r ice  tha t  we  a re 

go ing  to  pay fo r  the  locomot ives.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    Where did you tel l  the board that  you had 

already concluded the contract. 

MR MOLEFE:    The  negot ia t ions,  the  negot ia t ions were  

conc luded a t  th is  po in t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Alr ight ,  now …[intervenes] 
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink Mr Myburgh  seems to establ ish 

whether in the memorandum you to ld the board that  the 

negot iat ions had been concluded, th is was going to be the 

pr ice.   You must te l l  me, Mr Myburgh, i f  I  understood your 

quest ion. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes, correct ly reformulated,  thank you, 

Chairperson. 

MR MOLEFE:    Now,  Cha i rperson ,  I  wou ld  have  to  go  and 

look a t  the  po in t  exact ly  when the  board  was  to ld  tha t  the 10 

negot ia t ions were  conc luded.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Could I  ask you then to turn back 

…[intervenes] 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  maybe – I  am sorry – are you going to,  

among other th ings,  look at the memo to see whether that 

point  was made or you are saying no,  I  d id not  make that  point 

in  the memo but the board had been to ld at  some stage before 

the memo that  the negot iat ions had been concluded? 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja , .  E i ther  a t  some stage  o r  in  the memo,  I  20 

am no t  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  w i l l  have  to  go  look exact l y  when the 

board  was to ld  tha t  th is  was  [ inaudib le – speaking 

s imul taneously]   



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 61 of 258 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  tha t  is  f ine ,  I  jus t  wanted  to  

be  sure .    

MR MOLEFE:    [ inaudib le – speaking simultaneously]  the 

pr ice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  wanted to be sure whether as far as the 

memo is concerned there is an acceptance that  is not  there but 

you wi l l  check somewhere but  you are saying you wi l l  check in 

the memo and you wi l l  check elsewhere.   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH:    Thank you.  Mr  Mo le fe ,  could I  p lease ask 

you to go back to Mr Choubey’s f i le, EXHIBIT BB8(b.1)  Now 10 

i f  you p lease to  page 36, Mr Choubey deals wi th the 

increase in  the ETC from 38.6 b i l l ion to 54.5 b i l l ion and 

ult imate ly you wi l l  see that  i f  you go over  the page to  

paragraph 9.52 he says:  

“Our f ind ing was that the increase argued for in the 

memorandum to the board.. .”  

This is  yours.  

“ . . .was unjust i f iab ly h igh.”  

Own emphasis.  And then he deals with the reasons for the 

increase in the STC and he deal  with  – the ETC, I  beg your  20 

pardon, deals with a l l  of  them.  I f  you go,  for example,  to  

page 38, r isk mit igat ion, forex and esca lat ion, Transnet  

engineering cont ingencies, he dea ls wi th batch pr icing. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Page 40 he deals with bui ld-up to the ETC 
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of  54.5 mi l l ion (s ic),  he looks forward,  he looks backwards.   I f  I  

could ask you to have a look at ,  for example,  page 646, 

forward escalat ion,  how did I  arr ive at  the escalat ion costs, 

fore ign codes and hedging costs again at 47.   How did I  

compute the FX hedging costs at  48.   Deals with cont ingencies 

and then th is is h is conclusions …[intervenes] 

MR MOLEFE:    And  he  is  ta lk ing  about  h is  own 

ca lcu la t ions,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Can I ask you please to go – because that 

is what your – you convinced the board to approve, he is 10 

deal ing with their  approval .   Now let  us go to the conclusion 

please. 

MR MOLEFE:    On  page? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Page 50.   He  conc ludes tha t :  

“The  de te r io ra t ion  and  economic cond i t ions,  

in f la t ion  in  fore ign  cur rency,  war ran ted an increase 

in  the  ETC o f  38 .6 . ”  

So  he  says i t  shou ld  have  gone up.  

“An  increase  o f  15 .9  b i l l ion . . . ”  

Wh ich  i s  what  you  sought  approva l  fo r .  20 

“ . . .was,  howeve r ,  no t  jus t i f iab le .   Bar r ing  the 

add i t iona l  costs  tha t  come f rom Transnet  

eng ineer ing  op ine  tha t  an 11% in  the ETC f rom 

36 .6  b i l l ion  to  42 .8  b i l l ion  wou ld  be  reasonab le  

a l lowing  fo r  the  Transnet  eng ineer ing  cost  o f  2 .6  
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b i l l ion ,  an 18% increase  in  the  ETC to  45 .4  b i l l ion 

wou ld  have  been reasonab le . ”  

So  what  do  you  say to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh ,  so  th is  was Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  ca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  beg your pardon? 

MR MOLEFE:    Th is  was Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  ca lcu la t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH:    No, no,  th is is not  Mr Cal lard ’s calculat ion, 

th is is Mr Choubey the expert ’s calculat ion. 

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:    And we are going to come to Mr Cal lard.  10 

Can you please just  d irect  your attent ion to th is? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr  Mo le fe . 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  wi l l  take you and I  know you want to refer 

to Mr Cal lard or Mr Laher.   We wi l l  go there and I  am asking 

you please to address th is conclusion.   What do you say,  is i t  

l ike what you said yesterday that th is is an art and not a 

science? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  exact l y .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    Okay.   Anything else to add to that? 

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson ,  i f  you  look a t  my a f f idav i t ,  so  

the  o r ig ina l  ETC ca lcu la t ion  was 38  b i l l ion  wi th  –  o r  

wi thou t  some o f  the  assumpt ions tha t  i t  had  made.   In  

January 2018,  paragraph  59  o f  my a f f idav i t ,  page  40 ,  i t  
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says:  

“January 2018 Mr  Franc is  Ca l la rd  rev iewed and  

reca lcu la ted  the ETC.   His  rev ised  number  was  

40 .457  b i l l ion . ”  

And  th is  is  in  the  s ta tement  o f  Mr  Yusu f  Laher .   And  then 

th is  number  o f  Mr  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cav i l .  

MR MOLEFE:    No ,  o f  Mr  Ca l la rd .   Was fu r ther  rev ised  by 

a  g roup  o f  Transnet  p ro fess iona ls  to  45 .8  b i l l ion .   Now 

accord ing  to  Mr  Laher ,  th is  amount was 3 .747  b i l l ion  lower 10 

than  the  o r ig ina l  con t racted  p r ice .   So  th is  amount  is  3  

b i l l ion  less than  the  49  b i l l ion .   So  the  ETC was 

reca lcu la ted  by Mr  Ca l la rd  to  40 .457 b i l l ion ,  Mr  Laher 

ca lcu la ted  i t  to  45 .8  b i l l ion  and then Mr  Choubey gave 

another number.  

ADV MYBURGH:    45.4 bi l l ion.  

MR MOLEFE:    45.4 bi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  th ink you must just  repeat  that ,  

you were too far away f rom mic that  last  sentence.  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr Choubey came to a number,  45.4 bi l l ion.  20 

I  th ink this demonstrates my point  that  th is was not  a  

science,  th is is a – the oddest  number,  none of  them is 

wrong,  they just  used di fferent  assumpt ions.   They just  used 

di fferent ,   assumpt ions.   The quest ion is,  Chai rperson,  and 

in fact  there is  a document that  has a lso come to my 
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at tent ion in the last  week that  I  d id not  include which is a  

presentat ion that  Mr Cal lard made when he was calculat ing 

his amounts and I  wi l l  make i t  avai lable to – in a 

presentat ion cal led – ent i t led – the presentat ion has been 

compi led to present  work done to date into the data analysis 

invest igat ion of  the 1064 locomot ives deal  at  Transnet .   I t  i s  

in tended to  so l i c i t  buy- in  fo r  the  approach and  

methodo log ies  proposed to  fac i l i ta te  d iscuss ion  work- in -

progress.   Mr  Ca l la rd  observes in  a  s l ide  in  the  

presenta t ion  tha t :  10 

“The or ig ina l  case was based  on h igh  leve l  

assumpt ion  fo r  p r ice  esca la t ion  and changes to  

fo rex .   He a l so  says there  were  no t  de ta i led  

supp l ie r  quota t ions and thus –supp ly  quota t ions and 

thus are  no t  a t  the  same leve l  o f  de ta i l  as  the  da ta  

rece ived post  RFQ hence d i rec t  compar ison to  the  

or ig ina l  bus iness case is  no t  poss ib le . ”  

This is what Mr Cal lard says in a presentat ion on the 22 

October 2018, a posi t ion that  I  agree wi th but  my point  was,  

there were severa l  calculat ions that  were made and to 20 

demonstrate my point ,  there is not  one calculat ion – two 

calculat ions that  came up wi th the same number of  the ETC.  

They had ranged f rom 38 bi l l ion to 45.something bi l l ion.   

Right?   
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 I f  you are the CEO, a reasonable CEO, that  has to go 

out  to my board.   Which number do you go out  wi th?  Which 

number do you permit  to be a known number that  you are 

prepared to pay and I  wi l l  argue 38 bi l l ion,  that  38 bi l l ion is 

what we are prepared to pay for the locomot i ves?  That  is  

the number that  we went out  wi th  because I  went  to the 

board by put t ing i t  in the business case that  is  the number 

that  we were indi rect ly communicat ing.   I  ta lked about some 

t ime ago a negot iat ion tact ic.   I f  you are going to – i f  you 

know that  you are going to negot iate and granted,  these 10 

calculat ions were not  there but  i f  they had been made they 

would have come with di fferent  bundle.    

 The 38 bi l l ion was a reasonable number to  go out  

wi th.   These calculat ions just  show that  in fact  at  49 bi l l ion 

we were not  so far off  the mark.   The increase was in fact  

not  16 bi l l ion.   I f  you take – even i f  you take the average of  

the three numbers and calculate the di fference or i f  you take 

the range or the midpoint  or whatever of  the three numbers 

that  were ca lcu lated because in valuat ions actual ly  you do 

not  use one number,  you use a range.  20 

So i f  th is was to  be taken as a range,  the increase 

f rom the business case to – or the est imated total  cost  to the 

actual  number,  at  worst  was about  3 bi l l ion.   At  worst  was 

about  3 b i l l ion and yet  – and so and the 3 bi l l ion was an 

outcome of  negot iat ions.  
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ADV MYBURGH:    So i f  I  could just take you i f  I  do not  mind 

to…[intervenes] 

ADV MASUKU SC:   Chair?  Chairperson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes, yes. 

ADV MASUKU SC:   Mr Mo le fe  referred to a document that  he 

has recent ly come across, I  want to conf i rm that  dur ing break I 

brought th is to the at tent ion of Mr  Myburgh . 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay. 

ADV MASUKU SC:   And would appreciate i t  i f  i t  f ind i ts way 

into the bundles of the Commission.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay. 

ADV MASUKU SC:   This is a presentat ion that was prepared 

by Mr Cal lard. 

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  we gave the same undertaking as we 

did yesterday. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja. 

ADV MYBURGH:    Once we have a copy we wi l l  a t tend to that .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja. 

ADV MYBURGH:    Perhaps I  could just  ask my learned f r iend if  

he has an electronic version of  i t  i f  he could in the inter im 20 

send i t  to my junior and we wi l l  process i t  perhaps at  luncht ime 

even. 

ADV MASUKU SC:   Chair,  I  want to conf i rm that  I  have 

already sent to Ms Lee. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay, okay. 
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ADV MASUKU SC:   Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay. 

ADV MYBURGH:    So can I  – Mr Molefe,  le t  me take you to Mr 

Laher’s af f idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That is to whose af f idavi t? 

ADV MYBURGH:    That is where you get  your f igures f rom that 

you have been speaking about.  Go to EXHIBIT BB4(f)  

p lease?  BB4(f) .   Pardon, page YIL18.  Now you wi l l  see at  

paragraph 69 at  the top.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr Cal lard ’s f igure o f 40.457 bi l l ion 

excluded the impact o f using Transnet engineer ing.   Do you 

see that?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr Choubey’s f igure, i f  you excluded 

Transnet eng ineering,  as you know is 42.8.   Do you see 

that?  Do you know that?  

MR MOLEFE:    Come aga in? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr Choubey’s f igure and perhaps I  could 

ask you, you have st i l l  got  h is af f idavi t  open in f ront  of  you. 20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr Choubey’s f igure when excluding 

Transnet  engineering is 42.8. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Do you see that?  Not vast ly d i f ferent ,  is  i t? 
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And then you see Mr Laher’s calculat ion, 

paragraph 70,  of  45.8,  that  now includes Transnet  

engineering.   Do you see that? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And do you see that Mr Choubey, he comes 

to a lmost exact ly the same f igure,  45.4 b i l l ion. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    So maybe i t  is more of  science that  i t  

appears. 10 

MR MOLEFE:    No ,  he  demonst ra ted  very  we l l  bu t  the 

d i f fe ren t  assumpt ions lead  to  d i f feren t  ou tcomes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes.  Now – the outcomes are not  that 

d i f ferent ,  that  is  the point  that  I  make, Mr Laher and Mr 

Choubey, they are very c lose to one another. 

MR MOLEFE:    They a re  no t  there ,  they a re  no t  –  okay,  

they a re  c lose ,  I  agree ,  they a re c lose  bu t  be ing c lose  –  

you  see ,  i f  i t  was  a  sc ience  i t  wou ld  be  p rec ise .  

ADV MYBURGH:    But  you are so far out,  Mr Mo le fe , that  is  

the problem. 20 

MR MOLEFE:    No  bu t  tha t  is ,  as  I  was say ing  ear l ie r ,  tha t  

is  the  number  tha t  you  wou ld  go  ou t  wi th .   I f  I  had to  

choose  be tween …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH:    You were so far out .  

MR MOLEFE:    On  the  low s ide ,  yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  what d id you recommend to the board 

and what d id they accept,  an increase in the ETC to what? 

MR MOLEFE:    No ,  the  accep tance  o f  the  negot ia ted  p r ice 

a t  49  b i l l ion  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH:    No, that  is  not  what they did,  Mr Mo le fe , 

that  …[intervenes] 

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  I  say i t  as  un for tuna te use  o f  

te rmino logy to  ca l l  i t  ETC.   Tha t  was a  p r ice  tha t  was  

negot ia ted .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Do you understand that you are at t r ibut ing 10 

and ta lk ing down to an unfortunate change in terminology what 

might amount to a lmost R10 bi l l ion? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  do  no t  know i f  there  is  a  d ispu te  tha t  the 

49  b i l l ion  o r  the  54  b i l l ion  was the  p r ice  tha t  was a  

negot ia ted  p r ice  o f  the  locomot ives.  

ADV MYBURGH:    I  th ink I  am going to leave th is topic,  I  need 

not  to examine you any further over i t .   I  want to ta lk about 

batch pr ic ing.  Now we have seen that  2.7 b i l l ion of  the 15.0 

b i l l ion increase was at t r ibutable to batch pr ic ing. 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    Could I  just  take you please to the MNS 

report? 

MR MOLEFE:    What  is  ba tch  p r ic ing? 

ADV MYBURGH:    We are going to go to the MNS report .  

MR MOLEFE:    Okay.    
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ADV MYBURGH:    Wou ld  you  p lease  go  –  and  th is  i s  in  

bund le  5 .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Now perhaps to answer your quest ion so 

that we know exact ly what I  am deal ing with, could I  ask you 

please before we get  to that  document to go back to bundle 

BB4(b).   That is your memorandum to the BADC. 

MR MOLEFE:    BB4 l i t t le  b?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja ,  BB4b,  and i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  

tu rn  to  the  tab le  wh ich  we have gone to  a l ready,  a t  10 

F2C718.  

MR MOLEFE:    What  i s  the  number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    718.  

MR MOLEFE:    Th is  i s  71?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    718,  seven hundred and e igh teen.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now you w i l l  see  we have  a l ready 

dea l t  w i th  th is  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  o f  the  cap i ta l  le t te r  D 

in  the  m idd le ,  tha t  p r ic ing  ad jus tment  fo r  reduct ion  o f  ba tch  

s ize  to  40%/60%.   You see tha t?   20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    There  was a  reduct ion  o f  the  s ize .  

MR MOLEFE:    There  was a  reduc t ion  o f?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    O f  the  s ize  o f  the  ba tches.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  now i f  you cou ld  then go as  I  

had asked you to  do ,  to  the  MNS Repor t  a t  bund le  6 .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bund le  6?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bund le  6  next  there .   Now,  what  

MNS do a t  the  foo t  o f  page 332 is  they quote…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ;  a t  what  page d id  you say?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 332.  

CHAIRPERSON:    332.  

MR MOLEFE:    So  what  i s  the  red  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do not  wor ry  about  tha t  i t  i s  very  10 

confus ing ,  jus t  s t i ck  to  the  b lack  ones,  a l r igh t  332  on the  

le f t  hand s ide .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  do  no t  have tha t  o r  number  6 ,  so  are  

look ing  a t  f i l e  number  6?  

CHAIRPERSON:    F i le  number  6 ,  jus t  look  a t  the  bund les  

in  f ron t  o f  you,  bund le  6  on  the  sp ine  and then the  one 

be low tha t ,  bund le  6  on  the  sp ine .   

MR MOLEFE:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  looks l i ke  they found i t ,  o r  i s  tha t  

a  loan,  i s  tha t  loaned to  h im or  i s  i t  h is?   Okay,  page 332 20 

you sa id  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  jus t  want  to  p lace  on record  

one th ing  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page Mr  Mole fe ,  a re  you the re  

332? MR MOLEFE:    332,  what  i s  the  page number  a t  the 

top?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    332.  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh 332.  

CHAIRPERSON:    B lack  numbers?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  jus t  want  to  read in to  the  reco rd  

where  they say paragraph 4 .1 .11  under  the  head ing  batch  

pr ic ing ,  Sect ion  3 .1  o f  the  RFP re la t ing  to  the  acqu is i t ion  

o f  the  465 d iese l  and 599 e lec t r i c  locomot ives ,  read as  

fo l lows quote :  10 

“Transnet  requ i res  f lex ib i l i t y  in  exerc is ing  op t ions  

fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  locomot i ves ,  these opt ions 

may inc lude suspend ing  o r  postpon ing  the  de l i very  

o f  the  locomot ives  un t i l  a  la te r  da te  or  chang ing  

quant i t ies .  Transnet  however  does  not  expect  to  pay  

a  pr ice  premium shou ld  i t  exc i se  any o f  these 

opt ions. ”  

Would  you agree tha t  tha t  was the  c lause in  the  RFP? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  tha t  was in  the  RFP.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  then ask  you p lease to  go  to  20 

the  Fundudz i  Repor t  in  the  same bund le  a t  page 186.   Can  

I  d raw your  a t ten t ion  then to  another  i ssue?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  re la tes  to  186 paragraph,  th i rd  

parag raph f rom the  bot tom 5 .9 .12 .12.   There  they  ta lk  o f  
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the  Transnet  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  f ramework  approved  

by  the  Board  on  29 August  and e f fec t i ve  f rom 1 September  

s ta tes  tha t  quote :  

“ Increas ing  ETC a  pro jec t  a l ready  approved by  the  

Shareho lde r  Min is te r  must  be  repor ted  to  the  

Shareho lde r  Min is te r  i f  the  increase is  in  excess o f  

15%. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  you accept  tha t?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  was  th is  increase –  we l l  I  

p resume you w i l l  accept  tha t  there  was an increase o f  more  

than 15%? 

MR MOLEFE:    Except  I  wou ld  no t  have ca l led  i t  ETC.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  wou ld  no t  have ca l led  i t  ETC,  bu t  yes ,  i t  

was more  than 15%.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    However,  you see i t ,  i t  was a  lo t  

more  than 15%.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  was tha t  repor ted  to  the  

Shareho lde r  Min i s te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    Not  tha t  I  am aware  o f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Why d id  you not  ensure  tha t  tha t  
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happened?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  cannot  reca l l  the  reasons why i t  was not  

repor ted ,  o r  i f  i t  was in  fac t  repor ted  or  i f  there  was any  

communica t ion  by  the  compan ies  to  the  Min is te r  about  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Jus t  so  tha t  we unders tand i t ,  whose 

respons ib i l i t y  u l t imate ly  wou ld  i t  had  been to  repor t  th is  

increase to  the  Shareho lde r  Min is te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  th is  wou ld  have come out  o f  a  Board  

dec is ion ,  r igh t .   I  suspect  maybe company sec re tar ia t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Not  you?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Maybe i t  was me,  I  am not  sure  

Cha i rperson.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  th is  i s  no t  a  secre ta r ia l  i ssue is  

i t ,  I  mean,  i t  i s  a  very  impor tan t  i ssue.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  i t  wou ld  have been me Cha i rperson.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  wou ld  have been me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  now cou ld  I  take  you p lease to  

page 326.   

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  tha t  i ssue,  tha t  we have jus t  come back  20 

f rom what…[ in tervene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  you p lease go to  page 326 o f  

the  same bund le?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  paragraph 3 .3 .6  there  is  re fe rence 
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to  Sect ion  54 .2  o f  the  PFMA,  the re  is  re fe rence to  the  MOI 

and the  DOA and a t  paragraph 3 .3 .8  i t  i s :  

“The f ind ing  i s  tha t  the  fa i lu re  to  seek approva l  f rom 

the  Min is te r ia l  Shareho lde r  was in  cont ravent ion  o f  

the  PFMA,  the  MOI  and the  DOA. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?   

MR MOLEFE:    No.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When were  the  -  on  a  d i f fe ren t  top ic ,  

when were  the  locomot ive  supp ly  agreement  s igned? 

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  want  to  -  when we re fer  10 

to  the  ba tch  pr i c ing ,  and the  sect ion  tha t  you re fer red  to  in  

the  PPM,  tha t  says tha t  the  ba tch  pr ic ing  shou ld  have been  

inc luded,  as  I  ind ica ted  th roughout  the  negot ia t ion  

process,  there  are  teams tha t  inc lude Transnet  lega l  and  

Transnet ,  aud i t ,  in te rna l  aud i t .   

They were  in  fac t  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ions  and they  

sa t  in  the  negot ia t ions ,  someth ing  l i ke  tha t  shou ld  because  

i t  i s  de ta i led ,  shou ld  and wou ld  have been p icked up by  

them,  and fa i lu re  fo r  them to  have p icked i t  up  a t  tha t  leve l  

be fore  they moved on to  the  next  s tage du r ing  the  20 

negot ia t ions ,  I  th ink  someth ing  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  wh i le  you  

are  negot ia t ing ,  you must  know tha t  you cannot  pay fo r  

ba tch  pr ices .   

But  what  came back f rom the  negot ia t ions  was tha t  

par t  o f  what  we need to  pay fo r  i s  ba tch  pr ic ing  because  
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we w i l l  reduce the  ba tches and so  I  jus t  wanted  to  po in t  

ou t  tha t  tha t  was a  fa i lu re  a t  tha t  leve l  dur ing  the  

negot ia t ions  o f  the  ba tch  pr i ces .   

On the  mat te r  o f  the  PFMA i t  i s  a  compl iance issue  

and Transnet  had the  compl iance ,  lega l  and comp l iance I  

th ink  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  in  th is  t ransact ion ,  we were  -  i t  was  

not  compl ian t  because i t  had to  be  repor ted  to  the  

Shareho lde r  Min is te r,  th is  shou ld  have been po in ted  out  

and rec t i f ied  a t  tha t  po in t .   

But  the  cor rec t  peop le  to  adv i se  and te l l  us  to  be  10 

compl ian t  wou ld  have been lega l  and compl iance .   They  

wou ld  have –  and in  fac t  I  th ink  lega l  was par t  o f  the 

negot ia t ions  when they saw tha t  th is  wou ld  t r igge r  repor ts  

to  the  Min is te r,  I  th ink  there  shou ld  have been a  

recommendat ion  to  repor t  the  mat te r  to  the  Min is te r  

because I  th ink  tha t  a l though the  ch ie f  execut ive  takes 

f ina l  respons ib i l i t y.  i s  f ina l  respons ib i l i t y  there .   

I t  i s  no t  poss ib le  in  a  complex  organ isa t ion  l i ke  

Transnet  who keep a  tab  on  every  l i t t le  th ing  one re l ies  on  

the  adv ice  and the  recommenda t ions f rom the  d i f fe ren t  20 

d iv is ions to  look  a t  compl iance cont rac t .    Now I  expressed 

surpr i se  yesterday today about  the  maste r  serv i ces  

agreement  tha t  i t  had been done tha t  I  was not  aware  o f .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  mean,  I  suppose what  i s  

impor tan t  i s  you have accepted now tha t  ba tch  pr i c ing  and  
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the  sp l i t t ing  o f  ba tches was wrong,  and you say i t  shou ld  

have been p icked  up by…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  say  i t  may have been wrong,  perhaps 

when the  peop le  tha t  were  a t  the  negot ia t ions  come here  

and exp la in  exact ly  what  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  we l l  they  have been here ,  you  

see,  tha t  i s  the  th ing  I  want  to  ge t  to  i f  you  do no t  m ind.   

So what  Mr  Laher  says and in  fac t  there  is  a  t ranscr ip t  o f  

th is  exchange…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    So Mr  Laher  was f rom which  depar tment?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Laher  was in  these negot ia t ions .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  wh ich  depar tment?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He was;  he  was par t  o f  the  

locomot ives…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  bu t  f rom where  d id  he  work  a t  the  

t ime?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Mole fe ,  I  do  no t  know the  answer  

to  tha t ,  can I  jus t  te l l  you…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Mole fe ,  the  Ev idence Leader  ask  

quest ions and you respond,  then where  i t  i s  necessary  to  20 

ge t  c la r i f i ca t ion  on  h is  quest ions,  you can ask  fo r  

c la r i f i ca t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  i t  i s  impor tan t ,  Mr  Laher  was f rom 
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the  f inance depar tment ,  he  sa id  he  was a  char te red 

accountant  o r  he  is  a  char te red accountant  here ,  and he 

was pa r t  o f  the  negot ia t ing  team.   Now,  I  unders tand there  

was a  locomot ive ,  negot ia t ing  team and then the re  was a  

S teer ing  Commi t tee ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And who  compr i sed tha t  S teer ing 

Commi t tee?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  i t  was a  team f rom d i f fe ren t  pa r ts  o f  the  

organ isa t ion ,  bu t  i t  inc luded an assurance team,  and the  10 

assurance team inc luded peop le  f rom in te rna l  aud i t  and 

lega l ,  and the  po in t  tha t  I  was mak ing  was tha t  th is  

par t i cu la r  i ssue shou ld  have been p icked up assurance.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We a re  go ing  to  come to  i t .  

MR MOLEFE:    And so  Mr  Laher,  I  am not  aware  tha t  he  

was in  the  assurance team.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t  me jus t  cu t  to  the  chase now.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Were  you not  par t  o f  the  locomot ive  

S teer ing  Commi t tee ,  you S ingh and Mr  Gama? 20 

MR MOLEFE:    I  was tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  so  what…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  I  was not  in  the  negot ia t ing  team.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  who was in  the  negot ia t ions  

was Mr  S ingh.   
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  and Mr  Laher  worked together  

w i th  Mr  S ingh.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  so  le t  me te l l  you  what  Mr  

Laher ’s  ev idence  is  Mr  Laher  says  to  Mr  S ingh -  there  is  a  

t ranscr ip t  o f  th is :  

“That  ba tch  pr ic ing  is  cont rary  to  the  RFP,  we  

cannot  do  th is  no t  a t  th is  la te  s tage,  because then  

we shou ld  go  out  to  tender  aga in  because the  RFP 10 

d id  no t  p rov ide  fo r  i t . ”  

Mr  Laher  to ld  Mr  S ingh tha t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  bu t…[ in te rvene]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  i f  you  do not  m ind jus t  bear  

w i th  me.   D id  Mr  S ingh b r ing  tha t  to  your  a t ten t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    No.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  tha t  i s  the  issue o f  ba tch  

pr ic ing .   Now,  when we get  to  the  Min i s te r ia l  au thor i t y  o r  

approva l ,  do  I  unders tand tha t  you can get  tha t  ex  post  

fac to ,  do  you need to  ge t  approva l  be fore  the  increase and 20 

the  cont rac t  o r  can you jus t  increase i t  and get  approva l  

a f te rwards?  

MR MOLEFE:    Oh i t  i s  poss ib le  to  ge t  i t  ex  post  fac to .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  i t  poss ib le?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  shou ld  i t  be  go t  be fore  or  a f te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  i f  i t  i s  ob ta ined ex  post  fac to ,  i t  has  

the  same e f fec t  as  i t  has  been obta ined befo re .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  what  about  i f  the  Min is te r  says 

no ,  I  do  no t  g ive  approva l?  

MR MOLEFE:    Then there  is  a  p rob lem.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  we l l  tha t  i s  why presumably,  i t  

i s  w ise  to  do  so  be forehand.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  i t  i s  a  prob lem i f  i t  cannot  be  ob ta ined  

ex  post  fac to ,  bu t  once i t  i s  ob ta ined ex  post  fac to ,  i t  i s  10 

quant i f ied .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  d id  no t  happen here ,  so  

there  remains  a  very  ser ious…[ in te rvene]  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  you were  jus t  ask ing ,  I  suppose 

theore t ica l l y,  in  the  e f fec t  o f  ex  post  fac to  approva l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  Mr  Mo le fe  you were  the  Group  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i ce r,  you proposed a  mass ive  i ncrease 

in  the  ETC.   D id  you not  know tha t  you had  to  ge t  

Min is te r i a l  approva l?   

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  I  cannot  reca l l  what  my s ta te  o f  m ind 20 

was a t  the  t ime.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  knew maybe i t  s l ipped maybe,  I  cannot  

reca l l  what  my s ta te  o f  m ind was a t  the  moment ,  what  I  am 

po in t ing  ou t  i s  tha t  perhaps the  lega l  depar tment  o r  
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compl iance shou ld  have then sa id ,  oops,  we ’ re  m iss ing  a  

spend[? ] ,  we need to  ge t  approva l  f rom the  Min is te r.   

You know Mr  Myburgh the  increase in  ETC,  we l l  

what  i s  now ca l led  the  increase in  ETC,  was f rom 

R38b i l l i on  to  R54b i l l i on ,  bu t  we a lso  know tha t  the  ETC 

was reca lcu la ted  by  even Mr  Choubey.  

So,  Mr  Choubey ’s  ca lcu la t ion  i f  i t  i s  to  be  accepted 

or  Mr  Laher  o r  the  ad jus ted  ca lcu la t ion  by  Mr  Laher  and Mr  

Ca l la rd ,  so  i f  we take  those ca lcu la t ions and say,  the  

R38b i l l i on  ca l cu la t ion  was wrong i t  shou ld  never  have been  10 

used.   

The rea l  ca l cu la t ion  wou ld  ac tua l l y  be  R45b i l l i on  

thereabouts  and tha t  the  increase  in  the  rea l  ETC,  wou ld  

have been about  R3b i l l i on ,  and tha t  i s  what  they say even  

in  the  MNS Repor t ,  so  they say  tha t  had the  R38b i l l i on  

been ca l cu la ted  p roper ly,  i t  wou ld  i n  fac t  have been 45 and  

not  38 .   

But  Cha i rperson,  I  submi t  tha t  the  R38b i l l i on  was  

conven ien t  and necessary,  f rom a  negot ia t ion  po in t  o f  v iew 

because i f  we had gone out  w i th  a R45b i l l i on  known f igure  20 

tha t  tha t  i s  where  we are  s ta r t ing ,  we wou ld  have pa id  

more .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  Mole fe…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    We wou ld  have pa id  more  than R49b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  I  cou ld  take  you back to  my 
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quest ion .   In  re la t ion  to  Min is te r ia l  approva l ,  I  take  i t  you  

wou ld  accept  tha t  i f  lega l  and compl iance fa i led  to  ob ta in  

Min is te r i a l  approva l ,  you as  the  group ch ie f  execut ive  must  

car ry  tha t  can,  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  you can jus t  pa lm  

o f f  to  lega l  and compl iance you bear  the  u l t imate  

respons ib i l i t y  obv ious ly.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  w i l l  car ry  the  can,  however,  I  submi t  

tha t  i t  was not  done in ten t iona l l y,  o r  ou t  o f  ma l ice .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  how does one fo rge t ,  sor ry  I  

suppose we lucky  to  have someone  l i ke  you here  to  he lp  us  10 

w i th  th is .   Once you -  you ta lk ing  about  b i l l i ons  o f  rand ’s .   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    How does one fo rge t  to  ge t  

Min is te r i a l  approva l  fo r  an  inc rease o f  b i l l i ons  o f  rand ’s?   I  

mean,  yes te rday,  you po in ted  out  to  me jus t  how much a  

b i l l i on  or  two or  th ree  is  w i th  re fe rence to  Transnet ’s  

p ro f i t s  and tu rnover.   How does one fo rge t  o r  no t  insure ,  

perhaps tha t  i s  a  be t te r  way o f  pu t t ing  i t ,  tha t  th is  

regu la tory  compl iance is  ach ieved? 

MR MOLEFE:    Because I  am human Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  le t  me go to  someth ing  -  

wou ld  you a lso  then accept  tha t  i f  the  Cha i rperson f inds  

tha t  ba tch  pr i c ing  was cont ra ry  to  t he  RFP and ough t  no t  to  

have been a l lowed,  tha t  you must  car ry  the  can u l t imate ly  

fo r  tha t  as  we l l .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  u l t imate ly,  I  am the  ch ie f  

execut ive  and I  shou ld  take  respons ib i l i t y.   However,  I  w i l l  

has ten  to  ment ion  tha t  none o f  these th ings tha t  happened 

here  were  happen ing ,  because  i t  was a  de l ibera te ,  

in ten t iona l  ou tcome tha t  we d id  no t  have Min is te r i a l  

approva l  tha t  ba tch  p r ic ing  is  inc luded.    

I  was ac tua l l y,  I  wou ld  be  a t  pa ins  to  exp la in  tha t  in  

te rms o f  our  there  was a  fa i lu re  in  our  sys tem.   In  a  sense  

tha t  dur ing  the  assurance process,  these th ings  shou ld  

have been po in ted  out .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  take  i t  tha t  when you –  when Transnet  

teams,  d i f fe ren t  teams,  cer ta in ly  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  

Off i cer  hand les  a  mat te r  as  b ig  as  th is  somebody wou ld  be  

tasked w i th  the  funct ion  to  say  p lease h igh l igh t  to  a l l  

concerned…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    …what  requ i rements  or  hu rd les  needed 

to  be  taken care  o f ,  be fore  th i s  who le  th ing  can be 

successfu l .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  in  such a  

–  there  wou ld  be  such a  document  and somebody wou ld  

have sa id ,  hang  on a t  th is  s tage,  we w i l l  need  to  ge t  

Min is te r i a l  approva l .   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Do you accep t  tha t  tha t  i s  what  one 

wou ld  expect?   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  wou ld  you say i t  was not  done 

in  th is  case?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  tha t  i s  why I  was exp la in ing  yeste rday 

tha t  in  a  procurement  p rocess l i ke  th is  tha t  I  gave,  so  i t  i s  

supposed to  be  a  ga in  tha t  was no t  supposed to  be  open i f  

the  ba tch  pr i c ing  was not  cor rec t .   

Where  assurance  was supposed to  say,  you canno t  10 

proceed because  you have inc luded batch  pr ic ing  and you  

are  no t  supposed to  inc lude batch  pr i s ing ,  bu t  the  

assurance repor t ,  and I  wou ld  be  in te res ted  to  ge t  the  

d i f fe ren t  assu rance repor t s  a t  the  d i f fe ren t  ga in ,  inc lud ing  

r igh t  a t  the  end,  where  the  cont rac t  was s igned.   

Because even as  we are  go ing  to  s ign  the  cont rac t ,  

the  assurance peop le  are  supposed to  say,  go  ahead and 

s ign ,  and  I  be l ieve  tha t  there  a re  repor ts ,  the  assurance  

repor t  tha t  sa id  every th ing  was f ine .   

But  i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  f rom an invest iga t ion  20 

po in t  o f  v iew to  f ind  ou t  a t  th is  d i f fe ren t  leve l ,  what  d id  the  

assurance peop le  say?  D id  they no t  p ick  these th ings up ,  

and was there  a t  any po in t  where  fo r  example ,  I  was to ld  

every th ing  is  f ine ,  go  to  the  press  announcement  and s ign 

the  t ransact ion .   
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So  tha t  i s  my po in t  tha t  be tween in te rna l  aud i t ,  

compl iance lega l  tha t  there  was assurance.   In  fac t ,  on  a 

t ransact ion  l i ke  t h is  we even requ i re  ex terna l  assurance,  

and I  cannot  remember  what  a l l  ex terna l  assurance took,  

bu t  as  fa r  as  I  remember,  assu rance g i ven o therwise  I  

wou ld  no t  have moved on i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   Can I  take  you  s t i l l  i n  

bund le  6  p lease,  to  page 289,  you see there  tha t  a t  the  top  

o f  289,  th is  i s  f rom the  MNS Repor t?   10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    They dea l  w i th  members  o f  the 

Transnet  Locomot ive  S teer ing  Commi t tee  in  2014.   I  w i l l  

j us t  ask  you to  conf i rm i t  was you,  Mr  Mole fe ,  Mr  S ingh and  

w i th  th ree  o thers?  

MR MOLEFE:    And then there  was a  sub-commi t tee  o f  tha t  

s tee r ing  commi t tee ,  and tha t  was you,  Mr  Gama and Mr  

S ingh.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you say you were  no t  p resent  in  20 

the  negot ia t ions ;  Mr  S ingh we know was wou ld  you conf i rm 

tha t?   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And wou ld  he  repor t  back to  you on  

the  progress o f  the  negot ia t ions?  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes ,  he  wou ld  in fo rm me o f  what  i s  

go ing  on  in  the  negot ia t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  you expect  h im to  do  tha t  

honest ly  and fa i th fu l l y?   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And Mr.  Gama,  was he pa r t  o f  the  

negot ia t ion?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  he  a lso  repor t  back to  you?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  they bo th  came and repor ted  to  me  10 

what  was happen ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  doubt  tha t  you wou ld  have  

expected h im to  do  so  honest ly  and fa i th fu l l y  as  we l l ,  

obv ious ly?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  we know f rom Mr  Laher  tha t  i t  

took  qu i te  a  l ong  t ime to  compi le  these memos tha t  were  

presented to  the  BADC and the…[ in tervene]  

MR MOLEFE:    Be fore  we move on ,  what  i s  no t  c lea r  in  th is  

l i s t  o f  peop le  are  the  assurance -  exact ly  who the  20 

assurance peop le  were  because i t  i s  f inance and techn ica l ,  

bu t  I  submi t  tha t  there  was lega l  and in te rna l  aud i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  was?  

MR MOLEFE:     Lega l  and in te rna l  aud i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  wou ld  assurance a lways be the  same 
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depar tments  or  un i ts ,  o r  i t  cou ld  change depend ing  on the  

sub jec t  mat te r?  

MR MOLEFE:    They g ive  d i f fe ren t  t ypes o f  assurance,  as  

assurance f rom a  lega l  po in t  o f  v iew tha t  every th ing  is  f ine ,  

then there  i s  assurance f rom an  in te rna l  aud i t  po in t  o f  

v iew,  tha t  every th ing  is  f ine .   For  example ,  when the  

tenders  are  submi t ted ,  and they  must  be  submi t ted  a t  12  

o 'c lock .  Somebody f rom in te rna l  aud i t  says the  tenders  

were  submi t ted  a t  12  o 'c lock ,  those  tha t  a r r i ved a t  f ive  past  

12  were…[ in tervene]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Were  exc luded.  

MR MOLEFE:    …were exc luded.   So and tha t  i s  an 

assurance tha t  opens the  next  day.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   I  am sor ry,  I  need jus t  to  

re t race my s teps  and p lease fo rg i ve  me i f  i t  i s  someth ing  

tha t  you have a l ready answered.   D id  you know tha t  you,  

d id  you yourse l f  know tha t  you  had to  ge t  Min is te r i a l  

approva l?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ac tua l l y,  we had obta ined Min is te r ia l  

approva l  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  process.   So Min is te r i a l  20 

approva l  had been obta ined befo re ,  perhaps maybe what  

went  on  in  my head was we do have Min i s te r ia l  approva l  to  

do  th is .   

The th ing  tha t  fe l l  be tween the  c racks was the  fac t  

tha t  the  increase  in  the  pr ice  f rom what  was the  approved  
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ETC to  the  f ina l  p r ice  requ i red  Min is te r i a l  approva l ,  tha t  i s  

perhaps,  what  fe l l  be tween the  c racks o f  tha t  we  shou ld  

have been adv ised on.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  am ask ing  

you.   D id  you know tha t  you had to  ge t  Min is te r i a l  approva l  

fo r  the  increase?   I  mean,  the  fa l l ing  th rough the  cracks is  

no t  what  I  am look ing  a t ,  d id  you persona l l y  know tha t  you 

had to  ge t  approva l?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You d id  know?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  knew tha t  we had to  ge t  approva l  fo r  

the  t ransact ion .   We d id  ob ta in  approva l  fo r  the  

t ransact ion ,  what  we however  fa i led  to  do  a t  the  end is  to  

ge t  approva l  fo r  the  inc rease.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When you got  approva l  fo r  the  

t ransact ion  or ig ina l l y,  were  you invo lved in  tha t  p rocess?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  was invo l ved.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you s ign  o f f  the  documents  as  

the i r  g roup ch ie f  execut ive?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ac tua l l y,  I  cannot  remember  how the  20 

approva l  was obta ined as  to  who in  what  fo rm the  request  

went  to  the  to  the  Min i s te r.   I  do  no t  know i f  i t  went  under  

my hand or  under  somebody e lse 's  hand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  such a  request  I  wou ld  imag ine  i t  

wou ld  have to  go  under  your  hand  or  the  Cha i rpe rson but  
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no t  somebody jun io r  to  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  i t  wou ld  be  -  ac tua l l y,  I  th ink  i t  may be 

the  Cha i rperson ’s  hand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  now le t  us  jus t  dea l  w i th  one  

or  two o the r  th ings.   We know tha t  CSR,  they were  

awarded 359 o f  the  1064 locomot i ves ,  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  page  

. . .  14  o f  Bundle 6.   And could I  just  di rect  your at tent ion to a 10 

f inding made by MNS at  paragraph 2.5.2 are your there? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  says and I  th ink we have touched on 

this al ready.   

“Mr Sharma the Chairperson of  the BADC and Essa were 

business associates through inter al ia the business 

interest  they had in var ious companies.   Mr Essa on 

behal f  of  one of  his companies Tequesta concluded a 

business development service agreement wi th CSR Hong 

Kong on 18 May 2015.  Sal ient  terms of  the business 20 

development agreement state that   

1.  Tequesta was appointed to provide advisory services 

and part icular assist  CSR Hong Kong to secure the 

current  elect r ic locomot ive tender and revenue wi l l  

2.  In return Mr Essa would get  paid 21% of  the cont ract  
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value concluded with Transnet. ”  

That  was what the research showed.  Would you know 

anything about that? 

MR MOLEFE:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Did you know anything about l inks 

between Mr Sharma and Mr Essa? 

MR MOLEFE:   No 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i f  you had known of  them what  

would you have done? 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  I  d id not  know of  them. 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   My quest ion is i f  you had known what 

would you have done? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  do not  know what I  would have done at  the 

t ime but  I  d id not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   I  want  to  turn now to another 

topic because f inal ly we leave the locomot ives and the 

t ransact ion advisors around the locomot ives.   Can I  just  ask 

you when – when those memoranda to the BADC and the 

board were prepared – just  bear wi th me for a second.  And 

those – those memoranda we have seen – we have looked at  20 

them they were – they were approved or recommended in 

May of  2014,  correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can you recal l  whether or which 

consul tants gave input  into – into the increase in the ETC? 
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MR MOLEFE:   My understanding is that  the increase was an 

outcome of  the negot iat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  can you remember who the … 

MR MOLEFE:   So you asking who was advis ing? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  actual ly cannot remember who was advising 

the negot iat ing team.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you do not  know whether  th is was 10 

a point  at  which Regiments were on the scene to the 

exclusion of  McKinsey or – you do not  have a clear 

recol lect ion of  that? 

MR MOLEFE:   No I  cannot recal l  what  was… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   Can we please then turn to  

another topic and that  relates to the Neotel  cont racts.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now let  me just  before I  take you to 

the relevant  documents and I  suppose i t  is refreshing that  

here we talk ing about something e lse now.  I  know that  you 20 

have deal t  wi th  th is in your aff idavi t  but  I  just  ask you to 

conf i rm this before we go to  the controversy.   Mr Molefe on 

the 31s t  of  October 2013.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ms Chetty was then she was the act ing 



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 93 of 258 
 

Group Chief  Execut ive.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And she awarded a contract  to  Neotel ,  

is that  r ight? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is r ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then you reversed this decision 

and we wi l l  come to the reasons why and  you appointed T-

Systems in a memorandum dated the next  month 20 

November,  correct  – 2013?  Is that  r ight? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You did that  wi thout  consul t ing wi th Ms 

Chetty,  correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you would have seen that  she 

says wel l  a l l  your reasons for revers ing her decision was 

bad.  

MR MOLEFE:   She says what? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She said al l  of  your reasons for the 

reversing her decision were bad,  you have seen that  r ight?  

You have seen her aff idavi t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja I  cannot recal l  exact ly what the reasons 

were according to  her.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you looking for her aff idavi t?  Are you 

looking for her aff idavi t?  

MR MOLEFE:   No I  am just  put t ing away that  f i le.  
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MR MOLEFE:   Oh okay no I  thought you – you wanted to 

check something before responding to the quest ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja let  me just  – I  just  t ry ing to 

paraphrase things.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because we are not  – we obviously we 

do not  have a lot  of  t ime lef t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Over.   So she says that  al l  of  your  

reasons for  reversing her decision are bad.   I  am going to  10 

come to your – your posi t ion now.   Mr Volmink you would 

have seen also says your reasons for reversing the decision 

were bad.   Mr Van der Westhuizen also gives some evidence 

about th is.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What we know then is about  six  

months later  on the 6t h of  June 2014 af ter opinions had been 

obtained f rom the senior counsel  and wel l  I  understand your 

external  audi tors you then revoke your decision.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes on advice.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   So tel l  us then why you 

changed and revoked Ms Chetty’s  award to – to Neotel  in  

favour of  T-Systems.  Why did you take the cont ract  f rom 

Neote l  and give i t  to T-Systems?  And you deal t  wi th i t  in 

your aff idavi t .   You – I  am happy i f  you go there.  
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MR MOLEFE:   Ja there was – there was in fact  a let ter that  I  

wrote or a memo that  I  wrote to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To where you gave reasons? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  gave reasons yes.   To – to I  th ink i t  was 

to Mr Singh – i t  was one of  those instances where I  wrote a 

memo downwards to say I  do not  agree wi th your decision 

and these are my reasons.  And the reasons were that  Neotel  

was the incumbent.    

Neote l  whi le they were working on Transnet systems 

that  is where they were working – what they were working on 10 

we had had a breach of  the f i rewal ls under thei r  watch which 

had cost  us some kind of  embarrassment because we do not  

know what informat ion was taken out  of  the Transnet  

systems.   

There had been securi ty cameras that  had been 

instal led at  the ports that  were not  working – i t  was 

embarrassing because in terms of  our membership of  

internat ional  ports organisat ion these securi ty systems were 

supposed to have been working and Vodacom had been for  

the same tender and had lost  but  now Vodacom was in the 20 

process of  buying Neotel .    

So I  then said this is  l ike giving the tender to  

Vodacom because they have bid and they have lost  and now 

they are buying Neotel .   We have to understand this  

t ransact ion between Vodacom and Neote l .   You – how do you 
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award a t ransact ion to  a company that  is publ ic ly on sale?  

Because the sale could come with i ts own uncertaint ies and 

could resul t  in th ings that  were envisaged in the tender 

being very d i fferent  to the outcome.   

So those were my reasons.   Incidental ly when Mr – 

Ms Chetty also awarded the tender she wrote by hand on her  

memo of  award that  Neotel  must  give us some assurance 

re lat ing to the Vodacom transact ions which in my opinion 

meant she had put  a condi t ion precedent to the award that  ja 

we are awarding but  they must  f i rst  do this.    10 

So she did that  on the 31s t .   And I  said for  these 

reasons I  fee l  that  we need a new incumbent because of  the 

fai lures that  had happened under Neote l .   Of  course internal  

audi t  and legal  af ter I  had wr i t ten that  memo came back and 

said your reasons do not  hold water.   Th is tender has been 

awarded – oh and then I  recommended that  the second 

company on the – on the recommendat ions should be 

awarded the tender.   Internal  audi t  came back and legal  and 

they said no you cannot do what you are t ry ing to do reverse 

the t ransact ions i t  was a recommendat ion to g ive i t  to T-20 

Systems.  You cannot do what you are proposing to do.    

And they also have opinion of  senior counsel  who 

also said that  i t  could not  be done.   And I  agreed and I  even 

said wel l  at  least  I  have to ld  you my concerns about why we 

doing this th ing.   I f  th ings happen in the future wi th Neote l  i t  
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shal l  be recorded that  I  d id not  come back f rom where I  was 

and just  promised them the decision that  I  thought was 

00:11.12 so that  is what happened with the matter 

Chairperson.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Mr Molefe you d id not  need senior 

counsel  to te l l  you that  you cannot  just  s imply take away a 

contract  that  had been awarded to Neote l  and just  give i t  to 

T-Systems.  

MR MOLEFE:   No my interpretat ion – my layman’s 

interpretat ion was that  the condi t ion.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There was no condi t ion she had issued 

a let ter.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja which is why I  needed senior counsel ’s 

opinion.   Maybe you did not  need senior counsel ’s op inion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You did not  what? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  is may – which is why maybe I  needed to 

be told by senior counsel .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You did not  need to be told – I  mean 

she had issued a let ter of  approval .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In favour of  Neotel .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  mean just  to make this very s imple 

here is a woman who was act ing in  your posi t ion.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   She awards a cont ract  to Neotel  does 

al l  the paperwork,  s igns al l  the let ters,  properly  appointed.   

You come along a month later wi thout  even talk ing to her… 

MR MOLEFE:   No,  no not  a month later.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  – she – she awards the contract  

on 31 October.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We have gone through the chronology.   

On 20 November – okay not  a month,  three weeks later.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You simply take away that  contract  

f rom Neotel  and you give i t  to T-Systems.  

MR MOLEFE:   My recol lect ion is that  i t  was condi t ional .   I  

thought i t  could be done because I  had concerns and I  – I  

tabled my concerns.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  wel l  let  us go to – let  me go to  

Ms Chetty,  her aff idavi t .   I  th ink this  is a new f i le BB6.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You have i t?  

MR MOLEFE:   BB6.   Yes.    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  so i f  we have a look at  page 88 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   SC88 that  is your  – I  th ink i t  is the 

memo that  you speak about.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   This is on 20 November this is  the 

reversal ,  correct .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is is qui te  a long memo and contains 

a lot  of  quot ing you see at  pages 89,  90,  91.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Let  us get  to the meat of  i t  that  is at  

92.   You say at  paragraph 7 and i t  is  eloquent ly wri t ten.  

“ I  have the fol lowing speci f ic concerns wi th 

your recommendat ion and responses to me 10 

including responses”  

Etcetera and you set  them out  a,  b,  c,  d,  e.  

“Counterparty r isk and al ienat ion of  state 

assets.  

Concent rat ion r isk as Transnet is  Neotel ’s  

largest  c l ient .  

BBBEE partners.  

Informat ion Secur i ty  incident  and CCTV 

camera exposures.”  

And then you go and art iculate each of  those points.   20 

Correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the balance of  th is.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you then conclude that  due to  the 
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above you were – you effect ively revoke then the award and 

you appoint  T-Systems we see that  at  the foot  of  page 92.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes I  a lso saw that  th is network is at  the 

heart  of  the Transnet  business and I  am of  the view that  

awarding the business to Neotel  wi l l  expose Transnet for 

unnecessary r isk.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   And then what you also d id at  22 

at  page 94 is you say:  

“ I  approve that  the R248 mi l l ion be taken into 

considerat ion. ”  10 

Right  so let  us just  understand what  that  means.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you go to – back to page 93 and 

paragraph 21 at  the foot  of  the page.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“Post  the close of  the f inal  offers being 

submit ted T-Systems indicated that  they 

unfortunately due to the st r ict  t imel ine set  by 

Transnet only managed to get  conf i rmat ion 20 

f rom thei r  shareholder on certain pr ic ing 

elements and that  they would be in a posi t ion 

to reduce the pr ice submit ted a week before 

by a further R248 mi l l ion.”  

And you then say:  
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“ I  approve the R248 mi l l ion or  that  the R248 

mi l l ion be taken in to considerat ion. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As part  of  T-Systems best  and f inal  

offer.   Is that  r ight? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Even though they did not  make that  

offer? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes they had indicated that  they would – had 

to reduce thei r  pr ice by R248 mi l l ion 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We are going to come to that .   Now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember not  to speak to far f rom the 

microphone.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh ja.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can you just  point  out  to us where in 

th is memorandum do you refer  to the fact  that  Ms Chetty’s  

approval  of  the contract  contained a condi t ion precedent? 

MR MOLEFE:   In my bundle.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No in th is memorandum?  These are 

your  reasons for set t ing as ide Neotel  and awarding i t  to T-20 

Systems where do you see reference here to her approval  

having contained a condi t ion precedent that  you have 

spoken about? 

MR MOLEFE:   Oh the fact  that  I  may not  have ment ioned i t  

in th is – in th is memorandum does not  mean that  i t  d id not  
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exist .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see.   But  in your  evidence unless I  

misunderstood you i t  seems to me that  that  was the core 

issue.  

MR MOLEFE:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Not  al r ight .  

MR MOLEFE:   The core issue where the r isks to  the – so I  

mean there is – there is a di fferent  pockets of  looking at  th is.  

The f i rst  one is that  I  had real  substant ive concerns wi th or 

wi thout  the – the condi t ion precedent.   So the f i rst  one was 10 

but  how could we give this tender to  these people af ter these 

r isks that  we know about? 

 The second one was could i t  be done?  And I  fe l t  that  

because of  Ms Chetty’s award was not  fu l l  and f inal  I  do not  

know how to put  i t  was not  – was not  uncondi t ional ly f inal  

that  there was something else that  needed to be done.  I  do 

not  know how to put  i t  in words.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja you say the condi t ion precedent 

that  was understood to be there.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  was understood.   Yes.   Yes.   Means that  20 

there was a window to actual ly … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Get  out  of  the… 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.   And in fact  that  – that  condi t ion 

precedent that  she put  in expresses one of  the fears that  I  

had that  th is company was being sold.   And so – and so I  
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thought that  i t  was possible to reverse this f rom where I  was 

si t t ing – f rom purely a business point  of  v iew.   However I  

was later to be proven otherwise by legal  and internal  

audi tors.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  so… 

MR MOLEFE:   And Chai rperson i t  is worth not ing that  when I  

was advised that  what I  sought to do here could not  be done 

I  d id not  resist  I  accepted i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  I  mean d id you have an opt ion Mr 

Molefe? 10 

MR MOLEFE:   No I  had no opinion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You did not  have one.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Right .  So could we go then please to 

Ms Chetty’s aff idavi t  at  page 6.  

MR MOLEFE:   The opt ion that  I  had was to behave l ike a 

bul l  in a china shop and this is what I  d id not  do.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   At  page 6 of  her aff idavi t  SC006 

paragraph 17 she says:  

“Mr Molefe provides the fol lowing… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry,  I  am sorry.   Same f i le what 

page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page 6 Chairperson SC6.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She in paragraph 17 addresses each of  
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your reasons.   Counter r isk and al ienat ion,  concentrat ion 

r isk,  BBBEE partners,  informat ion securi ty,  CCTV issues and 

then at  paragraph 18 she refers to a part icular document and 

she says that  c lear ly indicates that  the possible pr ice 

reduct ions could not  be taken into account as the f inal  

pr ic ing had al ready been submit ted.   Mr Molefe could not  

approve that  the pr ice reduct ion be considered as part  of  T-

Systems best  and f inal  o ffer as this prejudices the other 

bidders and is not  considered fai r  and t ransparent .   And what 

she refers to there as annexure SC3 that  you f ind at  page 10 

37.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Just  bear wi th me for a moment 

because I  want to  just  get  a – she refers to a Tear Report  T-

e-a-r  and what that  stands for is  a Tender Evaluat ion and 

Recommendat ion Report  that  you f ind at  page 23 could you 

turn there please?  So th is is a formal report  that  is being 

produced and i f  I  could take you to page 37 you wi l l  see that  

the last  th i rd of  the page between the second and thi rd  

schedules.  20 

“Af ter conclusion of  the normal isat ion 

process a f inal  c lar i f icat ion session was held 

wi th the three bidders to double check i f  they 

had not  admit ted anything in thei r  pr ice.   

Bidder 5 who was T-Systems indicated dur ing 
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d iscussions that  their  jo int  venture partner  

may be able to negot iate opt imisat ion wi th i ts  

shareholders which wi l l  resul t  in  an overal l  

reduct ion of  R248 mi l l ion on the tendering – 

sorry the tender pr ic ing.  Bidder 2 and 3 also 

indicated minor possible pr ice changes which 

would have resul ted in sl ight  adjustments in 

the f inal  commercial  proposals”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    10 

“ I  know as an indicat ion of  the pr ic ing 

changes i f  the R248 mi l l ion possible pr ice 

reduct ions were to be taken into account in  

th is project  even though i t  is not  possible  

since the f inal  pr ic ing had been submit ted. ”  

You see that  that  is the Tear Report .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   But  i f  you go to page 43 of  that  Report .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   You wi l l  see that  Ms Pi l lay d id not  approve or 

not  disapprove.   She did not  approve i t  and that  was – i t  was 20 

sent  to her – the last  person to sign – signed on the 31s t  of  

October so I  do not  know i f  there is  another report  where she 

actual ly approves this.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We can have a look into that  but  Mr 

Molefe once part ies have submit ted the ir  f inal  pr ic ing.  
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MR MOLEFE:   No I  am not  … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   During a tender … 

MR MOLEFE:   I  am not  disput ing that  I  am just  saying … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cannot  – you know that  you cannot  do 

this.  

MR MOLEFE:   She had not  – she had not  approved this  

t ransact ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  that  does not  answer the issue that  

I  am put t ing to you.   I  mean you know surely that  when 

part ies tender… 10 

MR MOLEFE:   Mr  – Mr – Mr Myburgh you are going back to 

th is patronising you know thing.   I  would real ly – I  real ly do 

not  l ike i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay wel l  let  me ask you this.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  you are being presumptuous think that  I  

know things and patronising me in the process.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  let  me put  my quest ion this way.   

Did you th ink wel l  presumably you thought i t  appropr iate to  

al low someone a pr ice reduct ion outside of  the tendering 

process?  Did you think that  was ( ta lk ing over one another).  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  I  thought i t  was possible.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  how? 

MR MOLEFE:   But  then I  was wrong. 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  was wrong however what I  am point ing out  
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now.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Is  that  th is report  that  you are referr ing to  

was not  approved by Ms Sharla  Chetty on the 31s t  of 

October.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  that  does not  detract  f rom the 

concession that  I  th ink you fai r ly made.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  does not… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Does not  detract  f rom the concession 

that  I  th ink you fai r ly made.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   No i t  may indicate to the fact  that  perhaps 

this was not  th is  t ransact ion had not  been f inal ised and 

awarded as i t  should have been.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now I  could I  suppose take you to Mr 

Volmink’s aff idavi t  but  I  do not  suppose i t  is necessary 

because I  th ink you accept  that  ul t imately the award in  

favour of  T-Systems was i rregular  and needed to be 

reversed.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes I  accepted that  a long t ime ago.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Correct .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   I  accepted i t  at  the t ime when internal  audi t  

and legal .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   Came to me and said Mr Molefe we cannot do 

this and I  accepted i t  and I  then said we should proceed with 
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the award to – to  Neote l  the incumbent.   Al though I  had – I  

had my own f rom a business point  o f  v iew I  had reservat ions.   

I  accepted the advice that  I  was given that  what I  sought to 

do was impossible.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   Mr Chairman I  see i t  is one 

o’clock.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  Let  us take the lunch break 

then and we wi l l  resume at  two.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you Cha i rperson.   Mr  Mole fe ,  

be fore  lunch,  we  were  dea l ing  w i th  Neote l /T-Systems.   I  

have re fer red  you to  the  ev idence o f  Ms Chet ty  here  who  

has spoken abou t  Mr  Vo lm ink .   I  wou ld  l i ke ,  fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime,  to  take  you to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Van de r  

Westhu izen.   That  ev idence you w i l l  f ind  a t  Exh ib i t  BB-7 .   

There  are  a  number  o f  f i l es .   I t  i s  BB-7(a) .    

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease,  to  

tu rn  to  page 7?  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Van der  Westhu izen,  inc identa l l y,  

i s  a  Char te red Accountant  and a t  mater ia l ,  i t  appears  to  
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have been an Execut ive  Manager,  Off i ce  o f  the  Ch ie f ,  

In fo rmat ion  Off i cer.   Now a t  paragraph 23,  he  re fers  to  a  

meet ing .   He says:  

“Dur ing  November  2013,  I  was  ca l led  to  a  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Mole fe . . . ”  

 And he c i tes  ce r ta in  o ther  peop le  and he says a t  

parag raph 24:  

“When we a r r i ved a t  the  meet ing ,  we were  

requested by  Mr  Mole fe ’s  pe rsona l  ass i s tance,  

i f  I  can  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  to  hand over  our  ce l l  10 

phones to  her  be fore  we ente red h is  o f f i ce .   

We a l l  d id  so .    

I  f ind  the  reques t  to  hand over  my ce l l  phone 

to  be  s t range due to  the  fac t  tha t  I  have 

a t tended a t  leas t  one o the r  meet ing  in  

Mr  Mole fe ’s  o f f i ce  on  wh ich  occas ion  I  was not  

requested to  hand over  my ce l l  phone. . . ”  

 Do you want  to  jus t  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  have no comment  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  i t  happen or  no t?  20 

MR MOLEFE :    I t  d id  happen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id  ask  h im to  hand over  h is  ce l l  

phone?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why?  
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MR MOLEFE :    Because I  wanted to  d iscuss th is  tender  o f  

Neote l  and T-Systems.   They were  IT peop le  and i t  i s  

known tha t  i t  i s  poss ib le  to  l i s ten  to  meet ings th rough the  

ce l l  phones o f  peop le  or  the  meet ing  cou ld  be  taped(? )  by  

one o f  the  par t i c i pants .   I  d id  no t  want  tha t . . .  fo r  secur i t y  

reasons.   Secur i t y  o f  in fo rmat ion  reasons.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    For  in fo rmat ion  leak purposes?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   A t  parag raph 26:  

“Mo le fe  ind ica ted  tha t  he  d id  no t  suppor t  the  10 

recommendat ion  to  i ssue a  le t te r  in ten t  to  

Neote l  as  the  pre fer red  b idder  and  he in tended 

to  award  the  tender  to  T-Systems as he was o f  

the  v iew tha t  the  R 248 mi l l ion  d iscount  

o f fe red  by  T-Sys tems ( re fer  to  Annexure  H3)  

was va lued and shou ld  have been taken in to  

account .   He a lso  advanced o ther  

cons idera t ions. . . ”  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i rperson ,  tha t  was not  the  main  

reason fo r  the  R  248 mi l l ion .   The main  reason was the  20 

issues tha t  I  advanced in  my memorandum.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then he  says ove r  the  page a t  

parag raph 27:  

“ I  d id  no t  agree w i th  the  reasons advanced by  

Mr  Mole fe  du r ing  the  a foresa id  meet ing  in  th is  
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regard ,  one,  even i f  the  R 248 mi l l ion  d iscount  

o f fe red  by  T-Systems was taken in to  account ,  

T-Systems wou ld  s t i l l  on ly  have been the  

second best  b idder. . . ”  

 He says a t  sub-2 :  

“ I  in fo rmed the  meet ing  tha t  the  ob jec t ion  by  

Mr  Mole fe  tha t  there  shou ld  be  concent ra t ion  

r i sk  o r  there  wou ld  be  concent ra t ion  r i sk  a t  

Transnet ,  as  Neote l ’s  l a rgest  c l ien t ,  was  

w i thout  mer i t . . . ”  10 

 He says:  

“ I  exp la ined X ,  Y,  Z. . . ”  

 And then sub-3 :  

“Mr  Mole fe  fu r the r  in fo rmed the  meet ing  tha t  i t  

rece ived a  le t te r  f rom one o f  Neote l ’s  

repor ted ly  par tners  or  sha reho lders  wh ich  

conta ined an a l l egat ion  tha t  Neo te l  was busy 

d i lu t ing  i t s  shareho ld ing . . . ”  

 E t  ce tera .   Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  I  have a  very  vague reco l lec t ion  bu t  I  20 

th ink ,  I  may have re fer red  to  the  fac t  tha t  the re  i s  a  

corpo ra te  ac t ion .   A corpora te  ac t ion  was th is  sa le  o f . . .   

No,  f rom corpora te  ac t ion  was a  sa le  o f  –  no t  Neote l  

ac tua l l y,  the  o the r  one,  T-Systems.    

 Ac tua l l y,  th is  pa rag raph does no t  make sense,  
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bu t  what  I  do  reca l l  i s  tha t  there  was a  d i scuss ion  o f  the  

corpo ra te  ac t ion  invo lv ing . . .   No,  the  incumbents .   Who  

was the  incumbent  aga in?   

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  look ing  fo r  the  company who 

was . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MR MOLEFE :    They had awarded the  tender.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Neote l?  

MR MOLEFE :    Neote l ,  yes .   I t  i s  Neote l ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And then be low tha t ,  

parag raph 28:  

“ I  then rea l i sed  tha t  my ob jec t ions are  no t  

be ing  we l l - rece ived.   I  remember  fee l ing  a t  the  

t ime tha t  fo r  me to  proceed  w i th  the  

verba l i sa t ion  o f  my ob jec t ions  wou ld  be  

tan tamount  to  p ro fess iona l  su i c ide .  

In  s imp le  te rms,  i t  fe l t  tha t  I  wou ld  be  p lac ing  

my ca ree r  a t  r i sk  i f  I  d id  no t  shut  my mouth  

there  and then.  20 

Upon th is  rea l i sa t ion ,  I  d id  no t  take  any fu r the r  

ac t i ve  par t i c i pa t i on(?)  in  the  meet ing . . . ”  

 Wou ld  you l i ke  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  cannot  comment  on  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now i f  you  go to  paragraph  33,  he  
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says  –  and th is  i s  a t  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    However,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  say tha t  there  is  –  

the  fee l ing  tha t  he  had tha t  h is  ca ree r  wou ld  have been in  

jeopardy was misp laced.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :    Because what  subsequent ly  happened is  

tha t ,  I  was adv ised by  peop le  who were  jun io r  to  me to 

proceed w i th  wha t  we are  do ing  and I  l i s tened.   So i t  was  

in  the  sp i r i t  o f  co l labo ra t ive  management .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  cou ld  I ,  p lease,  take  you  back to  10 

page 5  a t  parag raph 15?  

MR MOLEFE :    15?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 5 ,  paragraph 15.  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  paragraph 15,  Mr  Van de r  

Westhu izen se ts  ou t  tha t  there  were  f i ve  b idders  who  

submi t ted  proposa ls .   We know one was Neote l  and then  

we a lso  know one  was T-Systems.   That  was number  5  –  a t  

15 .5 .   And you see there ,  T-Systems South  A f r i ca  (P ty)  L td .   

I t  was a  b id  made  in  co l labora t ion  w i th  Broadband In f raco.  20 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We can now go to  paragraph 33 a t  

page 9 .   He says:  
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“ I  w ish  to  h igh l igh t  the  fac t  tha t  the  T-Systems 

tender  was submi t ted  in  co l labora t ion  w i th  

Broadband In f raco.  

The company reg is t ra t ion  document  fo r  the  

la t te r  company shown tha t  Sa l im Essa was a 

D i rec tor  o f  BBI  and res igned as  a  D i rec tor  on  

14  October  2010. . . ”  

 I  w i l l  show you now but  tha t  shou ld  be  2014.  

“My unders tand ing  is  tha t  BBI  i s  a  s ta te-owned 

ent i t y  and i t  was tender ing  w i th  T-Systems. . . ”  10 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.   I  knew tha t  Broadband  In f raco 

was a  s ta te -owned ent i t y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    Bu t  I  d id  no t  know tha t  Sa l im Essa was a  

D i rec tor  o f  B roadband In f raco.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  take  i t  tha t  you w i l l  no t . . .   I  

can  take  you to  Exh ib i t  BB-7 (b)  a t  page 348.   I f  you  want ,  

i t  i s  the  Supra  record .   Cou ld  you go there?  

MR MOLEFE :    Which  one?  BB-7?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB-7(b) .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  cou ld  tu rn ,  p lease,  to  page 

348?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  a  CIPC company search .   I f  you  

tu rn  to  page 349,  you go to  the  foo t  o f  the  page and then  

you count  up  ten  l ines  f rom the  bot tom.   So f rom the  

bot tom up,  you w i l l  see  re ference tw ice  to  Mr  Sa l im Essa 

and you see tha t  he  res igned on 14 October  2014.   So a t  

th is  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    The 10  on  the  top?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    From the  bo t tom,  count  up  10 .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  make a  no te  jus t  be low 

2010 a t  page 9  where  2010 is  g iven ins tead o f  2014 to 10 

re fer  to  tha t  bund le  and tha t  page Mr  Myburgh.   So tha t  

wou ld  be  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  I  beg your  pardon .   I t  i s  

Bund le  BB-7(b) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and the  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 349.  

CHAIRPERSON:    349.   No,  okay tha t  i s  f ine .   I f  p rev ious l y 

know . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am sor ry,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you re fer r ing  to  the  e r ro r  in  the  

da te?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  beg your  pardon.   So  tha t  i s  

Mr  Van de r  Westhu izen ’s  a f f idav i t .   Have you . . . [ in tervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  go t  i t .   I  jus t  want  to  re fe r  to  make  

a  re ference to  the  bund le  where  there  is  the  res ignat ion  

document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  so  tha t  i s  what  I  have g iven  

you.   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  i s  what  you have g iven me?  Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The page was 349,  hey?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Your  jun io r  cou ld  check i f  10 

no  supp lementary  s ta tement  o r  a f f idav i t  was prev ious ly  

made by  Mr  Van der  Westhu izen to  co r rec t  th is ,  i t  w i l l  be  

good i f  we cou ld  ge t  a  supp lementary  s ta tement  tha t  can  

be s lo t ted  in  beh ind  h is  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We wi l l  do  tha t  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  Mole fe  then,  a t  the  t ime tha t  

you were  dea l ing  w i th  the  Neote l /T-Systems issue,  you 

accept  tha t  Mr  Essa was a  D i rec to r  o f  B roadband In f raco?  

MR MOLEFE :    I  d id  no t  know tha t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  no .   I  am ask ing  you,  do  you 

accept  tha t  he  was a  D i rec to r  o f  B roadband In f raco?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  f rom the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  he re .   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Wh i ls t  dea l ing  w i th  Mr  Essa.  

Perhaps I  can tu rn  to  a  d i f fe ren t  top ic  and tha t  i s  –  and I  
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suppose impor tan t ly,  i t  a lso  s t i l l  dea ls  w i th  T-Systems but  

th is  i s  the  cess ion  f rom T-Sys tems to  Zest  Ga lore(? )  

[00 :12 :52] .    

 Now what  the  ev idence shows is  tha t  Transnet  

appo in ted  T-Systems to  manage i t s  IT in f ras t ruc ture  and a t  

leas t  some 2200 compute rs  f rom T-Systems.   Do you know 

anyth ing  about  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Cha i r,  I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  

Exh ib i t  BB-3(a) ,  Mr  Mohamedy ’s  exh ib i t .    10 

MR MOLEFE :    BB-3?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB-3(a) .  

MR MOLEFE :    What  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    30 .   Three,  zero .  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 30,  and a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  

p lease,  Mr  Mole fe  a t  paragraph 12.5 .2  under  the  head ing  

T-Systems.   A re  you there?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    T-Systems sa id :  

“Mr  Mohamedy,  Transnet  appo in ted  T-Systems 

to  manage i t s  IT in f ras t ruc tu re .   However,  

there  a re  mat te rs  tha t  re la te  to  th is  cont rac t  

tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  h igh l igh t . . . :  
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 Over  the  page.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

“Transnet  Group Cap i ta l  was  pay ing  fo r  

approx imate l y  2200 computers  when on ly  

approx imate l y  1100 were  employed by  the  

d iv is ions. . . ”  

 E t  ce tera .   Of  a  par t i cu la r  re fe rence then is  

parag raph 5 .12 .3 :  

“They key issue to  no te  i s  tha t  these 10 

compute rs  were  a l l  leased th rough the  T-

Systems cont rac t  wh ich  was subsequent ly  

ceded in i t ia l l y  to  Zest  Ga lore  and then la te r  to  

InnoVent  Renta l  and Asset  Management  

So lu t ions.  

I  a t tached Annexure  MSN 40,  copy o f  the  

cess ion  and de legat ion  agreement  be tween 

Transnet ,  Zest  Ga lore  and T-Systems.  

Now Zest  Ga lore  and InnoVent  a re  par t l y  

owned by  Sa l im Essa,  a  we l l -known assoc ia te  20 

o f  the  Gupta ’s  and a  major i t y  shareho lder  o f  

Tr i l l i an  Cap i ta l  Par tne rs . . . ”   

 Do you know anyth ing  about  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    No.   No,  s i r,  I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  

tha t .   When was th is?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  me take you to  the  agreement  

because you in  fac t  s igned i t ,  the  cess ion  f rom T-Systems 

to  Zest  Ga lo re .  

MR MOLEFE :    Oh,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  w i l l  you  f ind  in  Mr  Mohamedy ’s  

next  vo lume tha t  be ing  Exh ib i t  BB-3(b ) .  

MR MOLEFE :    Exh ib i t  BB-3?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Can you ask  you,  p lease,  to  

go  to  page 581?  

MR MOLEFE :    581?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    One second Mr  Myburgh .   Yes,  

Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you .   A t  MSN-581,  you w i l l  

f ind  a  cess ion  and de legat ion  agreement  be tween  

Transnet ,  Zest  Ga lore  and T-Systems.   Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  I  can  take  you to  page  585 a t  

parag raph 3 .1  under  the  head ing  Cess ion  and De legat ion :  

“T-Systems hereby se ize  i t ’s  r igh t  under  the 20 

Transnet  agreement  as  ind i ca ted  i n  A t tachment  

A to  Zest  Ga lo re . . . ”  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    “And hereby accepts  the  cess ion . . . ”  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you  then go fo rward  a l l  the  

way to  page MSN 592,  you w i l l  see  tha t  you s igned tha t  

agreement .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.   And jus t  fo r  the  sake o f  

comple teness.   Th is  agreement  wou ld  have been  

accompanied by  a  memo . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    . . . request ing  me to  s ign  the  agreement .   I  

do  no t  know i f  you have i t  there?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  do  no t  have a  memo.  10 

MR MOLEFE :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The fac t  i s  tha t  you s igned i t .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  I  s igned i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  can  I  take  you,  p lease,  to  

Exh ib i t  5?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t . . .   I  wanted  to  check the  da te  o f  the 

agreement  Mr  Myburgh.   I t  i s  1  December  2014.   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  appears  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  th is  i s  a lso  someth ing  you dea l t  

w i th  in  2014.   Can I  take  you to  Bund le  5 ,  p lease? 

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And cou ld  you tu rn ,  p lease,  to  page 

405.86?  
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MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you the re?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now tha t  is  a  CIPC search  on Zest  

Ga lo re .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you cou ld  tu rn  fo rward ,  

p lease,  to  page 504.89 and r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  page,  

there  is  a  person  by  the  name o f  Zenad(?)  Osmani (?)   Do 

you see tha t?  10 

MR MOLEFE :    Zenad?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Osmani .  

MR MOLEFE :    On wh ich  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  the  foo t  o f  page 405.89.    

MR MOLEFE :    Yes?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you know tha t  person?  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  

she is  o r  was a t  the  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh.   Page 405.8?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    .89  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  must  be . . .  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So I  jus t  want  to  pu t  to  you tha t  
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Zenad Osmani  was Mr  Essa ’s  w i fe .    

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you know tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  do  no t  even know Mr  Essa,  as  I  have 

sa id .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay and we are . . .   So tha t  is  what  I  

want  to  pu t  to  you.   Le t  us  car ry  on  w i th  someth ing  e lse  

where  Mr  Essa fea tures .   I  want  to  tu rn  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Who  was Mr  Essa ’s  w i fe?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Zenad Osmani .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The person who . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  the  bo t tom? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  have seen i t ,  ja .   Okay?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You wou ld  have seen,  DCJ,  tha t  she  

was a  d i rec to r  in  the  year  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Of  T-Systems?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    O f  Zest  Ga lore .  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  o f  Zest  Ga lore .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So there  was a  cess ion  f rom T-

Systems to  Zest  Ga lo re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mole fe  s igned tha t  cont rac t  and  
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th is  lady  was a  D i rec tor  o f  Zest  Ga lo re  and  she is  

Mr  Essa ’s  w i fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now le t  us  move to  another  t op ic .  

MR MOLEFE :    Be fore ,  jus t  to  pu t  every th ing  in  contex t .   

Wel l ,  I  accept  tha t  I  s igned the  cess ion .   The reason I  

wanted to  see  the  memo i s  I  wanted to  see the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    The background  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    The background . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .and the  reasons.  

MR MOLEFE :    And the  reasons.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  mot iva t ion .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  bu t  what  I  do  know and reca l l  i s  tha t ,  

t yp ica l l y,  agreements  l i ke  tha t  o f  T-Systems wou ld  have a  

c lause and I  say  th is  w i thout  hav ing  seen the  ac tua l  

agreement  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :    Or  i t  i s  maybe a t tached.   Would  say tha t  

th is  agreement  may be ceded and tha t  when the  pa r ty  tha t  20 

is  ced ing  the  agreement  wants  to  see Transnet  o r  t he  o ther  

par t y  may not  re fuse unreasonab le  fo r  the  cess ion  to  

happen.    

 So I  wou ld  imag ine  i t  was in  tha t  contex t  bu t  I  

th ink  tha t  i f  th is  was invest iga ted  fu r ther,  maybe tha t  can  
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be  conf i rmed.   But  I  th ink ,  s i t t ing  here ,  tha t  was the  

contex t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    Which  is  why I  wan ted to  see the  memo tha t  

p receded.   Maybe the  memo wou ld  have sa id :   We cannot  

unreasonab le  re fuse to . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MOLEFE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    And I  want  to  s ta te tha t  I  was not . . .   Wel l ,  I  10 

do  not  th ink  tha t  I  app l ied  my mind to  the  d i rec tors  o f  Zest  

Ga lo re  bu t  I  d id  no t  know tha t  tha t  the  person in  quest ion  

was Mr  Essa ’s  w i fe .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  le t  us  car ry  on  then w i th  another  

top ic ,  a lso  re la t ing  to  Mr  Essa and tha t  i s  the  Manganese  

Expans ion  Pro jec t .   Now you w i l l  remember,  we have  

touched on th is  a t  the  beg inn ing .   Mr  Henk Bester,  who  

was then employed by  Hatch  Consu l t ing ,  gave ev idence 

about  th is .   Do you remember  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes and when  we a re  ta l k ing  about  20 

Mr  Henk Beste r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    . . . I  th ink  the  o the r  day.   I  kept  –  I  th ink  I  

kept  confus ing  h im wi th  the  Bester  f rom Eskom in  my head.   

Ac tua l l y,  I  do  no t  reca l l  Mr  Beste r  nor  how he looks  l i ke  or  
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what  he  looks l i ke .   So I  do  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  Transnet  –  tha t  i s  the  one  

tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about  now.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes. . .  

[Speakers  in te rven ing  each o ther  –  unc lea r. ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  want  to  take  you  to  f i ve 

parag raphs o f  h is  a f f idav i t .   That  you w i l l  f ind  a t  Transnet  

Bund le  4  and Mr  Beste r  i s  Exh ib i t  BB-19.    10 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  p lease ,  to  tu rn 

to  BB-19 and tu rn  up  page 29?  

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  pa ragraph 19 and you wou ld  

have seen th is  be fore  so  I  am go ing  to  paraphrase  i t .   You 

w i l l  remember  tha t  Mr  Bester ’s  ev idence was tha t  Hatch  

was tender ing  and tha t  there  were  peop le  tha t  made 

advances in  re la t ion  to  be ing  appo in ted  as  i t s  –  the  

supp l ie r  deve lopment  pa r tner.  20 

 And a t  paragraph 19,  he  ta lks  about  a  meet ing  

where  Padayachee and Reddy,  amongst  the  peop le  tha t  a re  

re fer red  to ,  ind ica ted  the i r  respec t ive  compan ies  to  fo rm a  

jo in t  ventu re  i f  they  work  w i th  Hatch  on  phase 1 .  

 Padayachee fu r ther  exp la ined tha t  they,  h im,  
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Reddy and the i r  respect ive  compan ies ,  knew every th ing  

about  the  pro jec t  and peop le  h igh  up  in  Transnet .    

 He sa id :    

“ I  unders tood to  mean the  Execut i ves ,  such as  

the  CEO,  CFO and COO.   Do you have any 

comment  to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  have no comment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then a t  paragraph 23.   He ta lks  

about  a  meet ing  and he says about  f i ve  l ines  f rom the  

bot tom:  10 

“Basson sa id  tha t  they had an ear l y  d iscuss ion  

w i th  Ano j  S ingh,  Transnet  Group Ch ie f  

F inanc ia l  Off i ce r  a t  the  t ime.  

As GCFO,  S ingh  was respons ib le  fo r  s ign ing  

the  conf inement  fo r  phase 1  p r io r  to  Mole fe  

g iv ing  f ina l  approva l  as  the  Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive . . . ”  

 Can you conf i rm tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  I  cannot  comment  on  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  we have seen th is  20 

cont rac t  yes terday,  ac tua l l y.   But  th is  i s  the  MNPQ(?) .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The Manganese Cont rac t .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  bu t  I  cannot  comment  on  what  Basson  

was say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR MOLEFE :    . . . to  Padayachee and Reddy.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  paragraph 29,  you w i l l  

see  there  is  a  ca l l  f rom Padayachee,  who ind i ca ted  he 

wou ld  l i ke  to  see h im aga in .   They had a  meet ing .   

Padayachee and  Reddy adv i sed  tha t  the  conf inement  

approva l  was imminent  bu t  tha t  Hatch  needed to  s ign  the 

addendum to  the  MOU before  conf inement  cou ld  be  

f ina l i sed.  

 He says,  over  the  page:  10 

“ I t  was c lear  tha t  they were  no t  happy w i th  

Hatch ’s  p roposed  amendments .  

I  unders tood th is  to  mean,  e i the r  tha t  S ingh 

wou ld  no t  approve the  conf inement  in  o rder  fo r  

Mo le fe  to  g ive  f ina l  approvement .  

A l te rna t ive ly,  bo th  Mole fe  and S ingh wou ld  no t  

g ive  the  necessary  approva ls . . . ”  

 Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Cha i r,  I  have no comment  on  i t  and ac tua l l y  

I  do  no t  know Mr  Padayachee and  Mr  Reddy.   I  do  no t  –  I  20 

cannot  reca l l  who  they are .   I  have  no idea who they  are .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  us  then dea l  w i th  paragraph  

65.   Now th is  i s  t he  meet ing  tha t  was he ld  a t  Me l rose Arch ,  

JB ’s  Corner,  a t tended by  Mr  Essa. . .    

“Essa c lea r ly  ind ica ted  tha t  he  can  prov ide  me 
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w i th  the  submi t ted  tender  documenta t ion  f rom 

a l l  the  o ther  b idders .  

He to ld  me tha t  they have a l ready dec ided 

. . . [aud io  cu t ]  Eskom wi l l  be  Mole fe  and tha t  an  

announcement  w i l l  be  made in  the  newspaper  

soon. ”  

I  have a l ready taken you to  tha t .   I  assume you have  

noth ing  fu r the r  to  say.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja  and we have spoken about  th is  meet ing  

a t  length .   By  the  way,  who e lse  was a t  th is  meet ing?  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    I t  was Mr  Essa and Mr  Beste r  and I  

th ink  there  were  o thers .  

MR MOLEFE:    There  were  o thers?   And the  o thers  

cor robora ted  th is  ev idence?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    Have the  o thers  cor robora ted  th is  

ev idence?  

ADV MYBURGH:    No one e lse  has g i ven ev idence about  

th is  par t i cu la r  d i scuss ion .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  I  cannot  comment  on  i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t ,  you know,  the  Cha i rperson was a t  

pa ins  to  exp la in  tha t  I  shou ld  be  concerned about  i t  so  i t  

wou ld  be  in te res t ing  i f  the  Commiss ion  cou ld  say tha t  f rom 

the  peop le  tha t  were  there ,  they  can conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  
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ac tua l l y  a  d iscuss ion  tha t  took p lace.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Th i s  i s  a  th ing  tha t  does not  concern 

you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  i t  i s  a  d iscuss ion  tha t  took p lace in  my  

absence,  tha t  does not  wor ry  me,  tha t  has go t  no th ing  to  

do  w i th  me.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .   Then a t  paragraph 71:  

“On 30 November  2014 Mole fe  s igned a  l e t te r  tha t  

awarded the  ra i l  tender  to…”  

And th is  i s  consor t ium H to  NJV.   And then:  10 

“The  po r t  N Met  p ro jec t  was awarded  to  F lag  

cons is t ing  o f  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  Amacom and Gibb.   I  

suspect  tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  F lag  was due to  

Essa ’s  invo l vement . ”  

Do you want  to  say anyth ing  about  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  cannot  comment  about  h is  susp ic ion .   I  

can  on ly  say tha t  i t  was not  due to  Essa ’s  invo lvement .   I  

th ink  tha t  I ,  i f  I  d id  award  such tender  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH:    You awarded the  tender,  d id  you? 

MR MOLEFE:    Huh?  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    You awarded tha t  tender.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  i f  I  d id ,  i t  was on the  bas i s  o f  a  

recommendat ion  tha t  had been made a f te r  due process.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t  and then i f  I  can  take  you  to  the  

ev idence o f  De idre  S t rydom,  who a lso  tes t i f ied  on  th is  
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i ssue and you w i l l  f ind  her  a f f idav i t  a t  BB20,  in  the  same 

f i le  tha t  you are  i n .   So i t  i s  bund le  4 ,  BB20.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And i f  you  cou ld  p lease tu rn  to  

parag raph 35 a t  page 145 and f rom paragraphs 35 to  38  

she e f fec t i ve ly  cor robora tes  what  she was to ld  by  Bester  

bu t  o f  par t i cu la r  impor tance p resent ly  i s  parag raph 35:  

“S ince the  va lue  o f  the  t ransact ion…”  

Perhaps in  fa i rness to  you I  must  jus t  ind ica te  to  you tha t  

Ms Beste r  (s ic )  was in  charge f rom Transnet ’s  s ide  o f  the  10 

MEP.  

MR MOLEFE:    O f  the  NMPP? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  she was a t  the  t ime I  th ink  i t  was  

the  programme d i rec tor  o f  the  manganese expans ion  

pro jec t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Mr  Bester?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    D id  you say Mr  Bes ter  was?  

ADV MYBURGH:    No,  Mr  Bester  worked fo r  Hatch .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes ,  oh  …[ in tervenes]  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    S t rydom,  De idre  S t rydom.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t ,  so  she says a t  parag raph 35:  

“S ince the  va lue  o f  the  t ransact ion . . . ”  

And she is  ta lk ing  about  h is  conf inement .  
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“…was be low 250 mi l l ion  f ina l  approva l  o f  the  

conf inement  res ided w i th  Mr  Mole fe  the  then GCE.   

Mr  Rud i  Basson,  ECPG,  and to ld  me tha t  the  ETC 

va lue  was reduced to  f i t  in  w i th  the  GCE’s  

de legated author i t y,  i .e .  w i th in  Mole fe ’s  monetary  

mandate .   Th i s  meant  tha t  he  had the  de legated  

author i t y  to  au thor ise  the  expend i tu re  w i thout  

approva l  requ i red  f rom the  board  acqu is i t ions  and  

d isposa l  commi t tee .   I  annex he re to  marked DS3 

the  approva l  o f  the  conf inement  o f  phase 1  to  Hatch  10 

and an approved cont rac t  va lue  o f  220 mi l l ion . ”  

The de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  tha t  was app l i cab le  a t  the  

t ime. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  cannot  comment  on  the  d iscuss ion  tha t  

Rud i  Basson had w i th  De idre  S t rydom.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  cannot  comment  on  the  d iscuss ion  tha t  

Rud i  Basson had w i th  De idre  S t rydom on the  cor r ido r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Bu t  d id  you f i t  th is  cont rac t  in  your  20 

mandate?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no .  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  you can comment .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  d id  no t  f i t  any  cont rac t  i n to  any 

de legat ion .  
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ADV MYBURGH:    And then a t  paragraph 36 over  the  page,  

146:  

“The conf inement  was s t ruc tured  as  a  f i xed  cost  

cont rac t  w i th  spec i f i c  and very  h igh  supp l ie r  

deve lopment  ta rge ts  to  be  ach ieved by  Hatch .   

S ingh inc reased the  SD targets  f u r the r  dur ing  the  

approva l  p rocess .   I  know th is  because I  had to  ge t  

Gama to  s ign  the  approva l  and a t  tha t  s tage the  SD 

va lue  was 40%.   The f ina l  va lue  o f  SD tha t  was  

submi t ted  to  Mole fe  fo r  f ina l  approva l  was 50%.”  10 

Th is  seems h igh  to  you or  no t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  cannot  reca l l  th is  spec i f i c  t ransact ion  l i ke  

tha t .   But  what ,  i s  the  50% tha t  you  f ind  o f fens ive?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Ja ,  I  am say ing  is  tha t  h igh?  Does i t  

sound h igh  to  you? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  do  no t  know in  the  contex t  o f  th is  

t ransact ion .   I  wou ld  have to  look  a t  the  memo tha t  was 

sent  to  me to  approve what  I  approved but  look ing  a t  i t  l i ke  

th is ,  i t  does not  make –  i t  does no t  r ing  any be l l s .  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I t  a lso  does not  look  l i ke  there  is  anyth ing  

wrong tha t  was happen ing  here .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  there  was a  l o t  wrong 

tha t  was happen ing  here .  

MR MOLEFE:    Huh?  
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ADV MYBURGH:    There  was a  huge amount  wrong tha t  

was happen ing  here .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  what  was i t?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  there  were  a t tempts  by  sk i l l s  

deve lopment  pa r tners  and Essa to  fo rce  Hatch  to  appo in t  

them.  

MR MOLEFE:    Was Essa fo rc ing  Hatch  to  appo in t  them? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  th is  i s  –  l e t  us  j us t  go  back to  –  I  

have to ld  you about  the  meet ing  a t  the  Mel rose Arch ,  I  

have read to  you what  happened.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH:    And the  fac t  tha t  he  re fer red  to  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  when you say –  I  mean,  I  am jus t  

t ry ing  to  exp la in  to  you –  do  you see th is  i s  very  ser ious 

th ing  tha t  was happen ing  here .  

MR MOLEFE:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH:    No?  

MR MOLEFE:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Because I  am not  aware  o f  a l l  o f  these tha t  

were  happen ing .  

ADV MYBURGH:    No,  no ,  I  am not  suggest ing  you here  

were  aware  bu t  do  you see how preva len t  i t  seems 

cor rup t ion  was w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  because what  we 
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have done in  the  las t  ha l f  an  hour,  how many t imes have 

we seen re fe rence to  Mr  Essa?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes ,  I  have not iced tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Ja ,  i t  i s  rea l l y  a  lo t  o f  t imes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  when P Systems is  cont rac t ing  w i th  a  

par t y  tha t  Mr  Essa is  a  d i rec to r  to ,  you are  ced ing  a 

cont rac t  where  Mr  Essa ’s  w i fe  i s  a  d i rec tor,  you are  

re fer red  to  her  by  Mr  Essa as  be ing  the  next  CEO of  Eskom 

in  the  contex t  o f  sk i l l s  supp ly  deve lopment  pa r tne rs  be ing  10 

fo is ted  on  Hatch  and we know tha t  i s ,  cer ta in ly  f rom the  

money f lows ev idence,  i t  i s  th rough supp ly  deve lopment  

par tners  tha t  so  much o f  th is  money launder ing  happened.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  those  are  your  f ind ings or  

observa t ions tha t  you are  mak ing  and I  choose  not  to  

comment  on  them.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Sure .   Wel l ,  i t  seems – i t  i s  what  the  

ev idence po in t s  to ,  i t  i s  no t  my f ind ing ,  I  fo r tunate l y  do  no t  

need to  make any  f ind ings.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  you are  observ ing  tha t  the 20 

ev idence is  po in t i ng .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Bu t  i t  i s  t roub l ing  is  i t  no t?   I t  must  be  

to  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  you  know,  i t  wou ld  be  t roub l ing  i f  I  

knew tha t  I  had done someth ing  wrong.   So,  I  mean,  th is  
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was happen ing  in  the  background,  I  was not  aware  o f  i t  

and i f  these peop le  have anyth ing  to  answer  to ,  le t  them 

answer  to  i t ,  a l l  I  am po in t ing  ou t  is  tha t  I  was not  aware  o f  

th is .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes bu t  what  I  am t ry ing  to  ge t  a t  i s  

even now when you see th is ,  i s  i t  no t  t roub l ing  to  you? 

MR MOLEFE:    I  wou ld  t roub le  me i f  my consc ience knew 

tha t  I  had done someth ing  wrong.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Mole fe . . .  

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  we have t raversed th is ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    We have and maybe one shou ld  take  

what  you have sa id  be fore  and say  you wou ld  say the  same 

th ing  bu t  one wants  to  be  su re .   I  wou ld  expect  tha t  i f  –  

assuming tha t  the  ev idence tha t  Mr  Myburgh is  ta lk ing  

about  were  to  be  t rue ,  i t  i s  what  was happen ing ,  i t  wou ld  

mean tha t  in  the  organ isa t ion  where  you were  Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Off i cer  there  was a  lo t  o f  co r rup t ion  and  money 

launder ing  tha t  may have been  perpet ra ted  by  cer ta in  

peop le  and assume fo r  p resent  purposes tha t  you were  

innocent  and you  d id  no t  know bu t  jus t  hear ing  about  i t  to  20 

say is  th is  what  was happen ing  wh i le  I  was there?  I  wou ld  

expect  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  o f  concern  to  you,  no t  to  say 

necessar i l y  tha t  you had anyth ing  to  do  w i th  i t .   Jus t  the  

fac t  tha t  i t  may have been happen ing  or  i f  the  ev idence is  

t rue  i t  was happen ing ,  taxpayers ’ money,  peop le  were  
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us ing  a l l  k inds o f  veh ic les  to  ge t  money i l l ega l l y.  

MR MOLEFE:    Cha i rperson,  then i f  i t  was indeed 

happen ing  I  am concerned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t  and then to  anothe r  top ic ,  the  

New Age.   I  th ink  you have accepted tha t  under  your  watch 

investments  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  th is  f i l e  can go [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  i t  can  go back,  thank you,  10 

Cha i rperson.   Mr  Mole fe ,  I  th ink  tha t  you have –  tha t  under  

your  watch  Transnet  sponsored The B ig  In te rv iew in  the  

New Age.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And you d id  tha t  fo r  a  number  o f  years?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And I  see tha t  in  2016 the  cost  o f  tha t  

adver t i s i ng  was R450 000 per  month .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Shou ld  I  have any bund le  in  f ron t  o f  me? 

ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  the  d i f f i cu l t y,  DCJ is  tha t  th is  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you w i l l  ment ion  when I  need to  

have one?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  
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ADV MYBURGH:    The d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  th is  and the  exh ib i t  i s  

tha t  th is  comes f rom anothe r  s t ream,  i t  i s  MM.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine ,  when –  i t  may we l l  be ,  you 

w i l l  assess i t ,  I  need to  have a  f i le  in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV MYBURGH:    We do have –  your  reg i s t ra r  has i t  bu t  I  

want  to  t ry  and shor t - c i r cu i t  a l l  o f  th is .   Mr  Jackson –  you 

have been re fer red  to  th is .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja  bu t  you sa id  in  2016.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Wel l ,  a t tached –  I  have been  look ing  

th rough the  invo i ces and I  see tha t  in  2016 i t  was 450 000 10 

per  month .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes bu t  in  2016 I  was not  a t  Transnet .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  okay,  fa i r  enough,  I  accept  tha t .   

What  Mr  Jackson  says and you have been asked about  th is  

and you have asked to  comment  i s  tha t  he  thought  tha t  th is  

was not  a t  a l l  va luab le  or  rea l l y  in  the  in teres t s  o f  

Transnet .   Do you  want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  have in  my a f f idav i t ,  Cha i rperson,  po in ted  

to  Mr  Jackson ’s  ev idence but  when  I  a r r i ved a t  Transnet  we  

were  ac tua l l y  adver t i s i ng  in  the  mains t ream media ,  pay ing  20 

a  lo t  o f  money on the  ra i l  c ross ing  campaign and th is  was  

to  a le r t  peop le  t o  the  dangers  o f  ra i l  c ross ing .   I t  was a  

nob le  campaign.   But  the  way tha t  i t  was done is  tha t  there  

were  very  gruesome p i c tu res  tha t  were  pr in ted  and even 

p layed on TV o f  t ra ins  h i t t ing  cars  and I  fe l t  tha t  th is  i s  no t  
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–  and we were  pay ing  fo r  tha t ,  th is  adver t i s i ng ,  I  do  no t  

know i f  maybe the  invest iga t ing  team has  cared to  quant i f y  

how much we pa id  fo r  tha t ,  fo r  those adver t i sements  in  the  

mains t ream media .   

And what  I  sa id  to  the  brand ing  team was tha t  th is  

i s  no t  good fo r  the  brand to  be  seen – fo r  our  t ra ins  to  be  

seen to  be  smash ing  cars .   Th is  i s  what  remains  in  

peop le ’s  m inds.   I  even sa id  tha t ,  you know,  when ch i ld ren  

assoc ia te  our  t ra ins  w i th  the  co l l i s ions w i th  m in ibus tax is ,  

tha t  i s  what  w i l l  s tay  in  the i r  m ind and they may not  want  10 

to  work  fo r  Transnet  when they grow up,  so  we have to  f ind 

another  pos i t i ve  way o f  do ing  i t  and I  a lso  sa id  we must  

des is t  f rom adver t i s ing  where  we pay fo r  a  message 

because peop le  read th rough i t .   So  i f  we say we are  the  

most  e f fec t i ve  and e f f i c ien t  t ranspor ta t ion  company in  

A f r i ca  and we have pa id  to  say tha t ,  i t  i s  no t  as  e f fec t i ve  

as  the  same message be ing  in  the  news,  in  the  news,  as  

par t  o f  the  main  news.   So we have to  move f rom pay ing  

fo r  adver ts ,  pay ing  fo r  adver ts  and  move our  b rand in to  the  

mains t ream news,  f ind  a  way o f  mov ing  ou r  b rand in to  the  20 

mains t ream news and The B ig  In te rv iew was an oppor tun i ty  

to  do  tha t .   Even though the  peop le ,  when we sponsored  

The B ig  In te rv iew,  the  peop le  t ha t  spoke a t  The B ig  

In te rv iew spoke about  news,  about  top ica l  i ssues  and not  

Transnet  i s  an  e f fec t i ve  and e f f i c ien t  o rgan isa t ion .   So now 
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we were  bu i ld ing  par tners  he re  w i th  peop le  tha t  were  

speak ing  a t  The  B ig  In te rv iew to  suppor t  our  messag ing  

la te r  bu t  a lso ,  whenever  poss ib le ,  pu t t ing  in  our  

newswor thy  i ssues onto  the  news th rough The B ig 

In te rv iew and th i s  i s  the  sh i f t  tha t  I  asked to  be  done f rom 

a  brand ing  po in t  o f  v iew,  we shou ld  be  seen in  the  news  

and not  in  the  adver t i s ing  pages f rom a  brand ing  po in t  o f  

v iew.   So th is  i s  a  d iscuss ion  tha t  I  had,  Mr  Jackson I  th ink  

was present  and  he agreed and we ag reed tha t  on  th is  

ph i losoph ica l  o r  doct r ina l  i ssue th is  i s  how we were  go ing  10 

to  move fo rward  and tha t  was the  reason fo r  suppor t ing  

The B ig  In te rv iew.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe we w i l l  ta lk  more  la te r  on  

on  the  mat te r,  you may o r  may not  know tha t  when some o f  

the  Transnet  w i tnesses,  who ta lked on th is  i ssue,  came to  

g ive  ev idence,  I  had lo ts  o f  i ssues,  quest ions to  t hem.   I  

wou ld  have thought  tha t  i f  the  best  way to  p romote  your  

b rand is  to  be  in  the  news is  to  do  th ings tha t  a re  

newswor thy  and you are  there fo re  in  the  news fo r  good  

th ings.  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes as  opposed to  what  you have jus t  

ment ioned,  wh ich  was ment ioned by  those w i tnesses too ,  

tha t  in  these breakfas t  shows very  o f ten  the  speakers  

wou ld  no t  be  speak ing  about  Transnet .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They wou ld  be  ta lk ing  about  whatever  

had been p lanned  to  ta lked about .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then i t  d id  no t  seem to  me tha t  the  

idea tha t  i t  was promot ing  Transnet ’s  b rand was as  c lea r  

as  i t  m igh t  be  to  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  and the  idea was ac tua l l y  

very  subt le  because these peop le  were  newsmakers  and 

what  we were  imp lan t ing  in  them is  a  pos i t i ve  v iew o f  10 

Transnet .   We were  engaged in  the  MDS.   A t  the  same t ime 

we were  a  lo t  in  the  news about  the  MDS but  the  idea was 

tha t  whenever,  fo r  example ,  we have a  pro jec t  tha t  comes 

onto  the  news,  these newsmakers  wou ld  then  he lp  to  

p romote  the  pos i t i ve  news on the  o ther  th ings tha t  we were  

do ings.   I  do  no t  know i f  you unders tand what  I  mean.   So 

there  wou ld  be  a  f r iend ly  fo rce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  as  you speak,  the  po in t  that  comes  

to  my mind is  tha t  i f  you  have  done someth ing  tha t  i s  

newswor thy,  the  med ia  houses w i l l  no t  even pay because  20 

tha t  i s  newswor thy.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They w i l l  want  i t  and you w i l l  be  ta lked 

about  in  favourab le  te rms w i thout  you pay ing ,  you know? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  seems to  me tha t  i f  you  or  Transnet  

engaged in  ac t i v i t ies  tha t  were  seen as  good  by  the  

communi ty  and as  newswor thy,  tha t  i s  when you wou ld  ge t  

–  you promote  your  b rand and you wou ld  do  so  w i thout  

pay ing .  

MR MOLEFE:    So ,  Cha i rpe rson,  le t  us  fo r  example ,  nè ,  

take  tha t  we sponsor  a  news – th is  p rogramme and the  

person tha t  i s  be ing  in te rv iewed is  the  Premier  o f  

Mpumalanga and  she is  go ing  to  ta lk  about  he r  successes 

as  the  Premie r  o f  Mpumalanga.   So tha t  i s  f ine ,  she ta lks  10 

about  her  successes as  the  Premier  o f  Mpumalanga but  we  

opera te  in  Mpumalanga.   The  day tha t  we have a  

newswor thy  i tem and she gets  an  oppor tun i ty  to  be  

in te rv iewed abou t  a  mat te r  tha t  invo lves Transnet  we can  

be sure  tha t  she  w i l l  go  ou t  o f  her  way to  make sure  tha t  

she po r t rays  us  i n  a  very  good l igh t .   That  was the  who le  

po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  w i l l  le t  Mr  Myburgh take  i t  f rom 

there  bu t  i f  you  have done someth ing  tha t  i s  seen as  good 

by  the  communi ty  o r  by  the  soc ie ty,  the  news peop le  w i l l  be  20 

there ,  you w i l l  no t  need somebody e lse ,  you …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    Which  news peop le ,  Cha i rperson?  The 

media?  These ones?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  Cha i rperson,  we l i ve  in  two d i f fe ren t  
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count r ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe Transnet  was no t  do ing 

those th ings tha t  i t  shou ld  have done.  

MR MOLEFE:    We were .   We were  execut ing  the  market  

demand s t ra tegy,  we were  announc ing  a l l  so r ts  o f  good 

news every  week.   Government  was -   genera l l y,  the 

prob lem in  government  i s  tha t  desp i te  the  overwhe lm ing  

negat ive  pub l i c i t y  there  a re  a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  a re  good 

tha t  government  has done tha t  have not  made i t  in to  the  

news.   The a t t i tude o f  our  med ia  i s  tha t  i f  somebody has 10 

not  d ied ,  i f  there  i s  no  scanda l  invo lved,  they are  no t  

in te res ted  and so  th is  was –  I  mean,  you can ta lk  to  a l l  the  

communica tors  f rom government ,  th is  was a  b ig  p rob lem 

for  the  n ine t ies  r i gh t  th rough the  2000 and even up to  now 

I  can say tha t  our  med ia  f inds  i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  por t ray  our  

government  in  a  pos i t i ve  l igh t .   That  i s  –  there  a re  very  few 

peop le  who wou ld  argue aga ins t  tha t  k ind  o f  s ta tement ,  i t  

i s  a  –  and I  exper ienced i t  in  my ent i re  caree r  tha t  we have 

done spectacu la r  good th ings bu t  the  med ia  was no  

in te res ted  in  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  w i l l  ment ion  

one example  o f  my own exper ience.   I  th ink  about  two 

years  ago I  went  to  the  area,  the  v i l lage where  I  g rew up.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And went  to  the  pr imary  schoo l  tha t  I  
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a t tended because the  Zondo and Bux Educat iona l  Trus t  

tha t  was es tab l i shed a  few years  ago had spoken to  

another  t rus t  about  the  s i tua t ion  in  the  schoo l  wh ich  I  

a t tended o f  to i le ts  and so  on  and tha t  t rus t  o rgan ised 

fund ing  and they sor ted  tha t  ou t  and we went  there  to  have 

a  funct ion  and to  say th is  i s  what  has been done and I  

th ink  somebody  must  have to ld  the  med ia  and some 

journa l i s ts  went  to  tha t  ru ra l  a rea  and they were  there  and  

the  s to ry  was in  a  number  o f  newspapers  about  the  to i le ts  

tha t  had been bu i l t  fo r  the  schoo l  and a  schoo l  ha l l  in  the  10 

h igh  schoo l  in  the  area.   We d id  no t  pay anyth ing  to  the 

med ia  fo r  them to  pu t  us  in  the  newspapers .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  am jus t  ment ion ing ,  I  th ink  i t  m igh t  

be  a  mat te r  o f  degree.   I  am jus t  ment ion ing  one example .   

Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH:    Yes,  thank you.  

MR MOLEFE:    I  was go ing  to  g ive  another  example  tha t  

invo l ves you but  I  w i l l  l eave i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  20 

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr  Mole fe ,  I  am jus t  go ing  to  read to  

you,  I  do  no t  th ink  you have th i s  exh ib i t  be fore  you but  th is  

i s  jus t  one paragraph,  i t  i s  EXHIBIT MM5 a t  page 10  

paragraph 47.   Mr  Jackson says th is  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page?  
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ADV MYBURGH:    Page 10,  JFJ10.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Mr  Jackson says th is :  

“My own v iew was tha t  the  dec is ion  to  par t i c ipa te  in  

The B ig  In te rv iew was not  jus t i f iab le  g iven tha t  TNA 

was a  new pub l ica t ion  w i th  no  readersh ip  o r  

c i rcu la t ion  da ta  and a  comple te ly  unknown 

demograph ic  reach.   Th is  meant  tha t  i t  was 

imposs ib le  to  eva lua te  the  newspaper ’s  reach  

inso fa r  our  s takeho lde rs  are  concerned and 10 

const i tu ted  a  s ign i f i can t  r i sk  cons ider ing  the  amount  

o f  money invo lved. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Does he ind i ca te  tha t  he  ra i sed th is  dur ing  

our  debates  because my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  when we had  

th is  debate  about  the  repos i t ion ing  o f  the  brand adver t i s ing  

he  agreed.   As  I  say  in  my memo,  maybe i t  was jus t  

because to  buy my face as  he  is  t ry ing  to  buy the  face  o f  

h is  new bosses now.   I t  i s  jus t  a  re f lec t ion  o f  the  person  

tha t  he  is  bu t  I  cannot  reca l l  tha t  he  ra ised tha t  i ssue  20 

e i ther  in  a  memo or  in  a  debate  on  th is  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  move to  another  

top ic  p lease.   Cha i rperson,  you can d ispense w i th  tha t  f i l e  

and i f  you cou ld  now be prov ided w i th  Transnet  bund le  1 ,  

EXHIBIT BB15 and I  wou ld  l i ke  now to  address br ie f l y  the  
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top ic  o f  Mr  Gama’s  lega l  fees.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  –  I  th ink  I  am 

go ing  to  re fe r  you on ly  to  two documents .   Can you  p lease 

go to  BB15,  you shou ld  have a  tab  2 .  

MR MOLEFE:    BB15,  2?  

ADV MYBURGH:    And I  see i t  i s  consecut ive l y  numbered 

so  perhaps you can go d i rec t l y  to  page 142.   You w i l l  see  

a t  142 there  is  a  memorandum to  you.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:    From a  Mr  Mapoma,  genera l  manager  

Group Lega l  Serv ices .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And i t  dea ls  w i th  lega l  fees,  Mr  Gama 

versus Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Le t  me d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  to  

parag raph 4 .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    You re fer  to  a  se t t lement  and i t  says :  20 

“The  re levant  c lause o f  the  se t t lement  agreement  i s  

c lause 3 .5  wh ich  prov ides tha t  Transnet  w i l l  make 

cont r ibu t ion  equ iva len t  to  75% o f  Mr  Gama’s  tax  

costs  incu r red  du r ing  h i s  H igh  Cour t  app l i ca t ion  and  

in  respect  o f  h i s  un fa i r  d i smissa l  d ispute  re fer red  to  
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the  barga in ing  counc i l . ”   

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    So  75% of  the  costs  in  h is  H igh  Cour t  

app l i ca t ion  and 75% of  h is  cos ts  in  the  un fa i r  d ismissa l  

d ispute  re fe r red  to  the  barga in ing  counc i l .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Now i f  you can sk ip  to  paragraph 7  a t  

page 143 or  in  fac t  le t  us  go  to  6 :  10 

“Mr  Gama incu r red  lega l  cos ts  in  two mat te rs . ”  

You wou ld  have seen tha t  f rom the  se t t lement  ag reement  

as  we l l .  

“The f i r s t  i s  h is  app l i ca t ion  in  t he  H igh  Cour t  in  

wh ich  Transnet  used two se ts  o f  a t to rneys,  Bowman 

Gi l f i l l an…”  

I t  says  Deneys Re i tz  bu t  tha t  shou ld  ac tua l l y,  I  th ink ,  be  

Eversheds.  

“The second mat te r  in  wh ich  he  incur red  costs  

…[ in tervenes]  20 

MR MOLEFE:    I  th ink  i t  shou ld  say  Eversheds?  

ADV MYBURGH:    I t  shou ld  say Eversheds,  yes .  

“The second mat te r  in  wh ich  he  incu r red  costs  is  

the  labour  mat te r. ”  

And then i t  says :  
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“The costs  in  t he  H igh  Cour t  were  g ranted in  

Transnet ’s  favour  by  the  cour t . ”  

Do you see tha t?   So you won tha t  case.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    A l r igh t .  

“These costs  were  supposed to  have been pa id  by  

Mr  Gama. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:     10 

“On reach ing  se t t lement  w i th  Mr  Gama,  Transnet  

sought  and obta ined the  taxed b i l l s  f rom these two 

f i rms o f  a t to rneys and pa id  75% of  the  to ta l  

amounts . ”  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Does tha t  make  any sense to  you?  So 

you w in ,  he  owes  you costs ,  what  you land up pay ing  h im  

are  your  costs .  

MR MOLEFE:    Come aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH:    You w in  w i th  costs .  20 

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  was not  there .  

ADV MYBURGH:    Bu t  th is  memo was sent  to  you,  I  am 

t ry ing  to  ask…[ in tervenes]  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  th is  memo was sent  to  me and a l l  I  d id  

was to  no te  i t .  
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ADV MYBURGH:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    You jus t  no ted  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  jus t  no ted  i t ,  I  jus t  –  so  the re  must  have  

been a  request  f rom me to  say p lease appr i se  me o f  the  

Gama mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH:    Bu t  when you note  –  perhaps I  

m isunders tand th ings,  bu t  you noted i t  -  whether  you 

approved i t  o r  no t ,  d id  you read the  nonsense in  pa rag raph  

7?  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  I  read i t ,  bu t  I  cannot  comment  on  i t  

even now.  

ADV MYBURGH:    But ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  jus t  le t  us  have  a  look  

a t  what  i t  says .   The costs  in  the  H igh  Cour t  were  granted 

in  your  favour.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:    These costs  were  supposed to  be  pa id  

by  Mr  Gama,  your  costs .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:    On reach ing  se t t lement  w i th  Gama,  20 

Transnet  sought  and obta ined tax  b i l l s  f rom these two f i rms  

o f  a t to rneys.   Your  a t to rneys.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:    And then pa id  to  Mr  Gama the i r  fees.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So the  quest ion  rea l l y,  Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  you 

may or  may not  have approved but  you noted and you read.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you p i ck  up  th is  ve ry  absurd  idea?  

MR MOLEFE:    . . .and –  ja ,  so  I  requested,  I  must  have 

requested –  there  was,  I  th ink  there  was a  query  f rom the  

D i rec tor  Genera l  about  th is  mat te r  tha t  I  knew very  l i t t le  

about  and I  asked to  be  appra ised and th is  i s  the  memo 

tha t  was sent  to  me and then I  read i t  bu t  i t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  

was hand led  by  the  Board ,  i t  was hand led  by  the  Board  and 10 

I  read th is  memorandum and these were  fac t s  tha t  were  

be ing  presented to  me.    

I  don ’ t  know i f  there  was expecta t ion  tha t  I  shou ld  

do  anyth ing  abou t  i t  o r  cha l lenge i t  o r  say,  I  don ’ t  approve  

but  i t  was done a t  the  Board  and th is  was a  memo f rom Mr  

Mapoma who ’s  a  Genera l  Manager  Group Lega l  Serv i ces  

and he was ta l k ing  about  tax  costs  and 75% and soon.    

I  can ’ t  say  tha t  I  rea l l y  unders tood what  he  was 

say ing ,  I  jus t  no ted  tha t  there  was an agreement  tha t  the  

costs  wou ld  be  se t t led  in  a  par t i cu la r  way.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  i f  you  were  asked to  approve  

th is  wou ld  have looked a t  i t  more  care fu l l y,  i s  tha t  what  

you ’ re  say ing  o r  no t?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  can ’ t  specu la te  on  what  I  wou ld  have 

done i f  th is  had come to  me fo r  approva l .   Perhaps I  wou ld  
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have sought  more  c la r i t y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  le t ’s  look  a t  page 104.  

MR MOLEFE:    104> 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  because ear l ie r  in  the  year  you  

had,  in  fac t ,  approved th is .  

MR MOLEFE:    Ear l ie r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    104,  so  th is  memo i s  da ted ,  tha t  I  

took  you to  a t  142,  i t ’s  da ted  17 August  2011.  Le t  me take 

you to  the  memo a t  104,  th is  i s  no  23  March 2011.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You see ,  i t  re fe rs  there ,  a t  the 

bo t tom o f  the  page,  the  same 3 .5  o f  the  se t t lement  

agreement .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i t  says ,  “F inanc ia l  

Imp l ica t ions” ,  ove r  the  page,  

“75% of  the  a t tached invo ices have been pa id  to  Mr  

Gama” ,  

 And then those a t tached invo ices  are  invo ices you 

see over  the  page Eversheds A t to rneys and Bowman 20 

Gi l f i l l an  A t to rneys.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And tha t  you approved.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  because,  as  you see in  pa rag raph 2  o f  

the  memo,  the  –  so  th is  i s  an  agreement  tha t  the  Board  
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had entered in to  and had ag reed to  pay and my approva l ,  

rea l l y,  was as  a  funct ionary  who  e f fec ted  payment  o f  a  

Board  ag reement ,  bas i ca l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    But  I ’m s t i l l  –  I ’m  not  sure  tha t  I  –  in  

o ther  words,  i f  someth ing  is  pu t  be fore  you fo r  approva l  

you can jus t  s ign  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  i f  the  Board  has en tered  in to  an  

agreement  tha t  a  cer ta in  payment  w i l l  be  made,  and I  do  

no t  see why I  wou ld  be  s tand ing  in  the  way o f  the  payment  

be ing  made.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t   the  th ing  i s  the  Board  hadn ’ t  

en tered in to  tha t  agreement .  

MR MOLEFE:    The Board  hadn ’ t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  because have a  look 

a t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    The se t t lement  negot ia t ions  were  

sanct ioned by  the  Transnet  Board  and the  Cha i rman o f  the  

Board .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cor rec t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Mkhwanaz i  was mandated to  20 

conc lude such a  negot ia t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cor rec t ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  bu t  the  po in t  i s ,  

i f  you  go to  3 .5  the  c lause,  Transnet  w i l l  make a  

cont r ibu t ion  equ iva len t  to  75% to  Mr  Gama’s  tax  costs  

incu r red  in  the  H igh  Cour t  and in  the  labour  mat te r.   What  
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th is  memorandum lands up do ing ,  i s  au thor i s ing  Mr  Gama 

to  rece ive  your  costs .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  bu t  th is  was in  te rms  o f  the 

agreement…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  i t  wasn ’ t  the  te rms o f  the 

agreement  was tha t  he  wou ld  ge t  h is  costs ,  tha t ’s  what  I ’m  

tax ing  you about ,  …[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me exp la in  i t  Mr  Mole fe .   Mr  Gama,  I  

th ink  when he  was suspended,  b rought  an  urgent  

app l i ca t ion  in  t he  H igh  Cour t  aga ins t  Transnet  and 10 

var ious…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When he was suspended?  

CHAIRPERSON:    When he  was suspended aga ins t  

Transnet  as  an  ent i t y  as  we l l  as  a  number  o f  members  o f  

the  Board ,  maybe  a l l  o f  them,  I ’m  not  sure  bu t  a  number  o f  

them to ,  e f fec t i ve ly,  ge t  the  suspens ion  se t  as ide .   

Transnet  and var ious Board  members  opposed tha t  

app l i ca t ion  and the  H igh  Cour t  d ismissed tha t  app l i ca t ion  

and sa id  he  must  pay Transnet ’s  cos ts  as  we l l  as  the  costs  

o f  those members  o f  the  Board  who had opposed the  20 

app l i ca t ion ,  tha t ’s  what  the  Cour t  o rdered.  Now,  Transnet  

and the  Board  members  had gone  to  lawyers  and br ie fed  

lawyers  to  oppose th is  app l i ca t ion ,  so  Transnet  had 

incu r red  costs .   So,  the  order  o f  the  Cour t  as  fa r  as  the  

costs  were  concerned,  was to  the  e f fec t  tha t  Mr  Gama must  
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pay  Transnet  and the  Board  members ,  the i r  lega l  cos ts .   

Now the  –  what ,  u l t imate ly  happened,  wh ich  is  what  Mr  

Myburgh is  ta lk ing  about  i s  tha t  Transnet  –  the  se t t lement  

agreement  sa id  tha t  Mr  –  Transnet  must  pay,  I  th ink  75% of  

Mr  Gama’s  lega l  cos ts .  

MR MOLEFE:    That ’s  what  the  se t t lement  agreement  sa id?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t ’s  what  the  se t t lement  

agreement  says,  even though he had los t  in  the  H igh  

Cour t .  

MR MOLEFE:    So ,  tha t  was the  se t t lement  agreement  tha t  10 

was entered in to  w i th  Mr  Mkhwanaz i?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  bu t  leave as ide  whatever  you  

may th ink  o f  tha t  par t  o f  the  se t t lement  ag reement .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  the  memorandum – what  was,  

u l t imate ly  done,  was not  to  look  a t  75% of  Mr  Gama’s  lega l  

cos ts  bu t  to  take  a t  the  lega l  cos ts  o f  Transnet  and say  

what  i s  75% of  the  costs  tha t  Transnet  and i t s  Board  

members  have incur red  in  th is  l i t iga t ion  and then say,  we  

w i l l  pay  Mr  Gama 75% of  our  lega l  cos ts .   So,  tha t ’s  what  20 

he ’s  ta lk ing  about  to  say,  tha t ’s  someth ing  ve ry,  very  

s t range.  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja ,  Cha i rperson,   to  be  honest  w i th  you,  my 

unders tand ing  o f  th is  mat te r  was  tha t  Mr  Gama had been 

d ismissed and tha t  the  mat te r  went  to  Cour t  and now we 
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have entered –  o r  the  Board  or  Mr  Mkhwanaz i ]  has en tered  

in to  an  agreement  to  pay h is  costs  –  en te red in to  an  

agreement  to  pay  h is  costs  and tha t  th is  was the  payment  

in  l ine  w i th  tha t  agreement .   I  wou ld  expect  tha t ,  i f  there 

was anyth ing  un toward  the  lega l  peop le  wou ld  have  p icked 

i t  up  because,  in  fac t ,  th is  recommendat ion  came f rom the  

lega l  depar tment  tha t  we shou ld  make a  payment ,  in  th is  

fash ion .   Mr  Mapoma was the  Genera l  Manager  Lega l  

Serv i ces  compi led  the  memorandum and i t  was  

recommended by  the  Head o f  lega l  a t  Transnet ,  Ms Zo la  10 

S tephen.   I  took  i t  tha t  i t  was a  payment  in  l ine  w i th  what  

has been agreed,  I  must  confess  tha t  I  d id  no t  go  in to  the  

in t r i cac ies  o f  how th is  th ing  -  in  any case th is  th ing  o f  the  

lega l  cos t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I ’m  ye t  to  unders tand because  

you know peop le  ta lk  about  tax  costs ,  bu t  i t  doesn ’ t  invo lve  

SARS and –  so  I  –  tax  cost ing  is  no t  someth ing  tha t  I ’m 

conf ident  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [Laughter ] ,  no ,  no t  the  tax  cost ’s  par t  I  

can unders tand,  f rom a  lay  pe rson ’s  po in t  o f  v iew when you  

say tax  costs ,  where  is  SARS here  bu t  o f  course ,  20 

obv ious ly,  I  th ink  i f  you  are  requ i red  to  approve anyth ing  

and there ’s  someth ing  you don ’ t  unders tand you  need to  

ask  because you  don ’ t  want  to  approve someth ing  tha t ’s  

wrong.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  bu t  a lso  when i t  comes f rom the  Head 
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o f  Lega l  and the  Genera l  Manager  Lega l  Serv i ces  and i t  i s  

re fe r red  to  an  agreement  tha t  was ente red in to ,  even 

before  my t ime and –  ja  the  case numbers  are  quoted 

there .   I f  you  look  a t  the  recommendat ion  Cha i r,  i t  says ,  

“Based on the  mot iva t ion  above,  I  recommend tha t  

the  cont r ibu t ion  to  the  lega l  fees must  be  pa id  as  

per  the  se t t lemen t  agreement ” ,  

 For  me there  was  noth ing  to  a rgue ,  i f ,  indeed i t  was  

as  per  the  se t t lement  ag reement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Le t ’s  tu rn  to  

another  top ic  p lease and tha t  i s  Aba loz i ,  cou ld  I  ask  you to  

go  to  Transnet  Bund le  3  and to  Exh ib i t  BB17.   R igh t ,  now 

cou ld  you p lease tu rn  to  page 499.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say,  499?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  499.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  hope I  d idn ’ t  m isrepresent  

anyth ing ,  Mr  Myburgh about  what  happened w i th  regard  to  

those costs ,  to  Mr  Mole fe?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s ,  as  I  unders tand i t  –  look  I  20 

unders tand tha t  Mr  Gama,  I  checked w i th  my jun io r,  in  h is  

a f f idav i t ’s  he ’s  dea l t  w i th  costs ,  bu t  he  doesn ’ t  seem to  

have sa id  much I  unders tand tha t  he  may have a  vers ion  

tha t  he  w i l l  g ive  and tha t  m ight  change th ings bu t  as  the  

ev idence s tands now,  i t ’s  cor rec t l y  so .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  I  th ink  I  saw tha t  in  h is  a f f idav i t  he  

sa id  tha t  H igh  Cour t  cos ts  and cos ts  in  regard  to  the  labour  

mat te r,  tha t ’s  how he puts  i t ,  bu t  I  jus t  saw in  the  

se t t lement  ag reement  o r  the  quoted paragraph in  the  memo 

tha t  you re fer red  us  to ,  i t  doesn ’ t  say  labour  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  says ,  i t ’s  spec i f i c ,  the  mat te r  un fa i r  

d ismissa l  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  the  re fer ra l  to  the  Barga in ing  

Counc i l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE:  Bu t  i t  w i l l  be  in te res t ing  to  see what  Ms 

S tephen and Mr  Mapoma a lso  say.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  he  has g iven ev idence and –  ja  bu t  

cer ta in ly  there  i s  ev idence and i f  you ’d  l i ke  to  have a  look  

a t  i t ,  i t  w i l l  be  ava i lab le ,  the  t ranscr ip t .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  can we tu rn  to  page  

499,  a re  you there?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  we ’ re  dea l ing  now wi th  Aba loz i  

and you wou ld  have seen these paragraphs.   Mr  Tadu was 



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 157 of 258 
 

ins t ruc ted  by  Bowman Gi l f i l l an  he  was one o f  the  a t to rneys  

dea l ing  w i th  the  mat te r  and you  know up to  th is  po in t  

l i t i ga t ion  had been entered in to ,  Transnet  had sued  

Aba loz i .   He says  tha t ,  

“ I  was subsequen t ly  inv i ted  together  w i th  one o f  my  

par tners  and counse l  to  a t tend a  meet ing  w i th  the 

Group CEO,  Mr  Mole fe .   I  p repared a  no te  in  

an t ic ipa t ion  o f  the  meet ing  wh ich  br ie f l y  

summar ised the  key message tha t  I  in tended to 

communica te  to  Mr  Mole fe .   Then  he goes on to  say 10 

a t  43 ,  the  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  du ly  took p lace,  

Mr  Mole fe  in fo rmed us  tha t  the  l i t iga t ion  was 

sens i t i ve  and tha t  he  had been rece iv ing  ca l l s  f rom 

a  person he d id  no t  ident i f y  by  name,  bu t  I  assume 

f rom the  contex t  was Genera l  Nyanda,  ask ing  why 

Transnet  was ass is t ing  w i th  the  l i t iga t ion  aga ins t  

Aba loz i ” ,  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  can ’ t  reca l l  bu t  I  sa id  in  the  meet ing  tha t  I  

had been rece iv ing  ca l l s  f rom anyone,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  tha t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  then a t  45 ,  shor t l y  be fore  th is  

meet ing  i t  appears  tha t  Mr  Se l inga had addressed a  

memorandum to  Mr  Mole fe  in  wh ich  he  mot iva ted  fo r  and 

recommended the  resc iss ion o f  the  dec i s ion  tha t  had 

prev ious l y  been made to  exc lude  GNS/Aba loz i  f rom do ing  
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fu r ther  bus iness w i th  Transnet  e f fec t i ve ly  a  b lack l i s t ing ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  and i f  I  can  exp la in  

th is .   I  was in fo rmed tha t  Aba loz i  had been b lack l i s ted  and  

then I  asked,  what  p rocess was fo l lowed to  b lack l i s t  them,  

and no process had been fo l lowed a t  a l l  and I  do  know tha t  

be fore  anyone is  b lack l i s ted  there  has to  be  a  process and 

the  person has  to  be  heard  and every th ing  must  be  

recorded.   Even in  the  Treasury  ins t ruc t ions bu t  a l so ,  I ’ ve 

been dea l ing  w i th  Mr  Se l inga and the  lega l  depar tment ,  I  10 

mean they shou ld  have known tha t  i t ’s  a  requ i rement  tha t  

peop le  have to  be  heard  be fore  you b lack l i s t  them.  So,  I  

sa id ,  i f  tha t  b lack l i s t ing  is  cha l lenged,  we w i l l  no t  be ,  so 

we must  resc ind  i t  immedia te ly  because i t  i s  i l l ega l  and so  

tha t  i s  how tha t  memo came abou t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Because they hadn ’ t  been a f fo rded a  

fa i r  p rocedure?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  why d idn ’ t  you jus t  g ive  them 

one?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  the  b lack l i s t ing  had happened some 

t ime before  I  a r r i ved.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  I  unders tand but  d id  you ever  

enqu i re  in to  why they were  b lack l i s ted?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  d id  you d iscover?  

MR MOLEFE:    Because they sa id  tha t  they had done work  

–  they c la imed to  have done work  wh ich  they had not  done.   

They sa id  –  so  i t  was a  cont rac t  –  I  th ink  i t  was a  guard ing  

cont rac t  and i t  was about  p rov id ing  personne l  fo r  the  

guard ing  o f  –  I  th ink  i t  was t ra ins  and tha t  Transnet  was 

say ing  they d id  no t  do  the  work ,  however,  our  head o f  

secur i t y  a t  the  t ime,  Majo r  Genera l  Baduza [? ]  had  come to  

me and sa id  to  me tha t  Aba loz i  had not  done work  i s  no t  

t rue ,  Aba loz i  has  cop ies  o f  the  work  –  proof  o f  the  work  10 

tha t  they have done and somebody here  a t  TFR is  h id ing  

tha t ,  so  tha t  they don ’ t  ge t  pa id  and so  i t  appeared tha t  

Aba loz i  was not  be ing  t rea ted  fa i r l y.   In  my a f f idav i t  I  do  

say,  -  I  d id  ta lk  about  th is  s to ry  and say tha t  subsequent  to  

in fo rming me about  th is ,  Genera l  Dukkha b rought  the 

in fo rmat ion  to  me and I  took  the  in fo rmat ion  to  Transnet ’s  

R isk  Commi t tee  as  we l l  as  –  I  can ’ t  remember  wh ich  o ther  

commi t tee ,  two commi t tees o f  Transnet  and the  dec i s ion  

there  was,  then we shou ld  se t t le  th is  mat te r  and  I  was  

g iven a  mandate  to  go  and se t t le  th is  mat te r  ou t  o f  cour t  20 

because i t  wou ld  be  embar rass ing  tha t  we have ac tua l l y  

been h id ing  proof  tha t  Aba loz i  had done work .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you ac tua l l y  es tab l i sh  tha t  there  was 

proof  tha t  Aba loz i  had done work?  

MR MOLEFE:    Genera l  Dukkha brought  i t  to  me,  and he 
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sa id  t o  me,  he  i n te rv iewed  peop le  a t  Transnet  tha t  had 

knowledge tha t  the  work  had been done and tha t  there  are 

cer ta in  peop le  tha t  a re  h id ing  tha t  ev idence f rom Transnet  

–  ja  f rom the  Management  a t  Transnet .   He invest iga ted  

the  mat te r  and brought  the  proof  to  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now –  so  d id  he  br ing  you s ta tements  by  

peop le  who c la imed to  have w i tnessed Aba loz i  per fo rm the  

work ,  what  ac tua l l y  d id  he  b r ing  to  you?  

MR MOLEFE:    I t  was f i les  o f  t imesheets  and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Timesheets  tha t  were  s igned.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  t imesheets  can be made wi thout  

somebody work ing…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  he  sa id  tha t  i t  was p roof  and tha t  

there  are  peop le  a t  Transnet  –  he  ment ioned by  name the  

peop le  tha t  were  prepared to  make  a  s ta tement  to  say tha t  

the  work  has in  fac t  been done but  f rom what  was  

presented a t  the  t ime,  I  was conv inced tha t  tha t  i t  was,  

indeed,  t rue  tha t  Transnet  had done the  work .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  d id  you  ask  tha t  s ta tements  be  

obta ined f rom peop le  who were  prepared to  append 

s ignatures  to  say,  we d id  see Aba loz i  per fo rm work  there ,  

there ,  and the re  tha t  day and tha t  day,  d id  you get  tha t  –  

then i t  wou ld  mean cer ta in  peop le  who were  prepared to  
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s tand up and g i ve  ev idence to  say,  yes ,  d id  you get  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  d id  no t  ask  fo r  the  s ta tements  to  be  

ob ta ined f rom the  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Par t  o f  the  prob lem may have been tha t  

these were  peop le  tha t  Genera l  Dukkha cons idered  to  be  

sources.   Genera l  Dukkha ’s  background was  Cr ime 

In te l l igence,  he  had come f rom Cr ime In te l l igence so ,  I  

mean,  perhaps  –  ja  maybe he shou ld  have 

adv ised…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  because you don ’ t  need Cr ime 

In te l l igence fo r  t h is .  I f  Aba loz i ’s  work  fo r  example  was tha t  

they must  send secur i t y  o f f i ce rs  o r  cer ta in  peop le  t o  be  in  

cer ta in  guard ing ’s  dur ing  cer ta in  t imes or  to  guard  

Transnet ’s  bu i ld ings in  cer ta in  p laces o r  whatever  the  work  

was then there  ought  to  be  peop le  who were  employed by  

Transnet  who were  supposed to  s ign  whenever  the re  was  

somebody –  the  guard  was the re  and so  on .  

MR MOLEFE:    That  i s  the  f i les  tha t  were  brough t  to  say 

tha t  th is  i s  p roo f  o f  work  done.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  the  quest ion  is ,  do  you know 

whethe r,  what  you were  prov ided w i th…[ in tervenes ] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Was not  f raudu len t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t ’s  leave out  the  f raud i t  may be 

f raudu len t .   D id  i t  con ta in  documents  where  peop le  who  
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had w i tnessed Aba loz i  do ing  wha t  they were  cont rac tua l l y  

ob l iged to  do ,  in  o ther  words there  were  s ignatures  where  

peop le  say,  yes…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  tha t  was the  na tu re  o f  the  ev idence.   

What  I  was th ink ing  you were  ask ing  is ,  d id  they make the  

s ta tement ,  they d id  no t  make s ta tements ,  bu t  these were  

as  I  sa id  t imesheets .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MOLEFE:    L ike  these peop le  were  here  and they  

s igned,  these peop le  were  here ,  and they s igned.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  d id  you on ly  re ly  on  the  Genera l  

in  te rms o f  those peop le  who had s igned or  was there  some 

invest iga t ion…[ in tervenes]?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  the re  were  two or  th ree  peop le  ins ide  

TFR tha t  had th is  in fo rmat ion  and  then the re  two or  th ree  

peop le  tha t  knew tha t  th is  in fo rmat ion  had –  and had 

cop ies  and gave i t  to  Genera l .   What  we d idn ’ t  unders tand  

was,  why was th is  be ing  suppressed,  why d idn ’ t  th is  come 

out  in to  the  open.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you author ise  somebody to  20 

invest iga te  who was h id ing  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom Transnet?  

MR MOLEFE:    Genera l  d id ,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  tha t  he  ever  

wro te  a  repor t  on  tha t  bu t  Genera l  d id…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Were  those  peop le  

conf ron ted…[ in te rvenes] .  
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MR MOLEFE:    I  do  reca l l  say ing  tha t  th is  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  

may requ i re  d isc ip l inary  ac t ion  i f  i t  was,  indeed,  a  Transnet  

employee tha t  tha t  was h id ing  the  in fo rmat ion  bu t  peop le  

who were  a t  TFR wou ld  be  ab le  to  conf i rm tha t  th is  was,  

indeed,  happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you.   Mr  Mole fe  you know 

tha t ,  subsequent l y  Transnet  appo in ted  a  f i rm o f  a t to rneys,  

HNR to  invest iga te  th is  mat te r?   

MR MOLEFE:    Th is  Aba loz i  mat te r?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  in  o ther  words to  invest iga te  

whethe r  –  i t ’s  the i r  repor t  tha t  gave r i se  to  the  w i thdrawal  

o f  the  l i t iga t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  yes  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Peop le  re fer  to  i t  o f ten  jus t  s imp ly  

as  the  Nupen Repor t ,  a re  you fami l ia r  w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I ’m  fami l ia r  w i th…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you fam i l ia r  w i th  the  repor t?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  and do you know whethe r,  in  20 

tha t  repor t ,  there ’s  any re ference to  t imesheets  and th is  

in fo rmat ion  and ev idence  tha t  you ’ve  been  

te l l ing…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  tha t  repor t  was compi led  as  i f  tha t  

in fo rmat ion  d id  no t  ex is t .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can you exp la in  why tha t  wou ld  be?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  don ’ t  know,  as  I  say,  i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  

somebody had been h id ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion  even f rom th is  

invest iga t ion…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    These  are  peop le  tha t  you 

appo in ted ,  and they p roduced a  repor t…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  they were  appo in ted  before  my t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Nupen was appo in ted ,  and he gave a 

repor t  to  the  R isk  Commi t tee ,  the  R isk  Commi t tee  accepted  

the  repor t ,  and the  l i t iga t ion  was w i thdrawn.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you know whether  the re ’s  any  

re ference in  t he  Nupen Repor t  to  th is  s tock  o f  

in fo rmat ion…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  tha t  there  is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  there ’s  no  re ference in  i t ,  then 

i t  seems i t ’s  qu i te  quest ionab le…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  I  don ’ t  reca l l  tha t  Nupen had re ference  

to  these t imesheets ,  I  can ’ t  a lso  reca l l  tha t  he  had the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  we had.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And,  i f  he  d idn ’ t ,  can you exp la in  

why,  I  mean he in te rv iewed peop le  a t  Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He conducted a  thorough  

invest iga t ion .  
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MR MOLEFE:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you know what  he ’s  key  

conc lus ion  was?  

MR MOLEFE:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You don ’ t?  

MR MOLEFE:    I  don ’ t  remember  what   h is  key  conc lus ion  

was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  h is  key  conc lus ion  was rea l l y  

tha t  bod ies  hadn ’ t  been prov ided,  peop le  hadn ’ t  worked but  

va lue  had been added or  th ings saved.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    Bod ies  had been?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bod ies  had not  been prov ided,  warm 

bod ies .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  tha t  sav ings had been a f fec ted  

th rough cer ta in  in i t ia t i ves .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  by  Aba loz i?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do you see the  tens ion ,  you say  20 

you ’ re  s i t t ing  on  a  s tock  o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  p roved  in  your  

m ind tha t  peop le  had worked,  and bod ies  had been 

prov ided.  

MR MOLEFE:    Wel l ,  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  we had was the  

work  had been  done and tha t  the  peop le  tha t  were  
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supposed to  be  p rov ided to  do  the  work  had been prov ided.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   By  way o f  t imesheets ,  you saw there  

were  peop le  work ing?  

MR MOLEFE:    Ja  the  na tu re  o f  the  in fo rmat ion ,  

t imesheets ,  and repor ts  and so  on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t ,  Mr  Mole fe  one wou ld ,  I  

suppose,  have to  s tudy the  repor t ,  and then re f lec t  back on  

your  ev idence bu t  le t  me get  to  another  po in t .   Had you 

been seek ing…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MOLEFE:    Bu t  the  fac t  o f  the  mat te r  i s  tha t  the  10 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  was brought  to  us  went  th rough the  R isk  

Commi t tee ,  perhaps i t  may be wor thwhi le  to  look  a t  the  

m inutes  o f  the  R isk  Commi t tee  where  th is  in fo rmat ion  was  

presented,  tha t  I  remember  ve ry  c lear ly.   The Genera l  

b rought  the  in fo rmat ion  and what  I  d id  w i th  i t ,  was to  go  to  

the  Board  and say tha t  look ,  he re  is  th is  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

we now have…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So ,  you conf i rm you were  in  touch  

w i th  the  Genera l  dur ing  th is  t ime? 

MR MOLEFE:    Genera l  repor ted  to  me…[ in te rvenes] .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  no t  Genera l  Nyanda i t ’s  anothe r  

Genera l?  

MR MOLEFE:    No,  no t  Genera l  Nyanda…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Transnet ’s  Genera l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  I  beg your  pa rdon.  
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MR MOLEFE:    Ja  Genera l  Dukkha …[ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay had you been speak ing  a t  a l l  to  

Genera l  Nyanda?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  I  know Genera l  Nyanda,  and we may  

have been speak ing  on o ther  mat te rs  even,  somet imes,   

p lay ing  go l f ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He ’s  a  f r iend o f  you rs?  

MR MOLEFE:    He ’s  a  f r iend o f  m ine yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because we know Mr  Gama a lso ,  I  

th ink ,  p layed go l f  w i th  h im,  he  was obv ious ly  an  av id  10 

go l fe r,  the  Genera l .  

MR MOLEFE:    You see he p layed go l f  w i th  the  Genera l ,  

you see how i t  went .  

CHAIRPERSON:   [Laughter ] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I s  th is  the  Genera l…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  f ind  ou t  whether  you ’d  do  

bet te r  than h im aga ins t  the  Genera l?  

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l ,  to  pu t  i t  in  contex t ,  Genera l  Nyanda  

has –  or  maybe used to  have,  be fo re  Cov id ,  an  annua l  go l f  

day in  Swaz i land rea l l y  to  ra ise  funds fo r  peop le  tha t  had –  20 

in  Swaz i land tha t  had suppor ted  the  ANC and Umkhonto  

We S izwe in  the  underground in  Swaz i land.   So,  every  year  

–  I  a lso  used to  p lay  in  tha t  go l f  cha l lenge and ja ,  a t  leas t  

when we went  to  Swaz i land,  I  d id  see h im,  we d id  ta lk  bu t  

even in  be tween we d id  ta lk ,  so  yes,  I  know h im.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So ,  I ’d  l i ke  t hen to  jus t  move fo rward  

and wrap up on th is .   So,  the  R isk  Commi t tee ,  u l t imate ly  on  

the  Nupen Repor t  took a  dec i s ion  tha t  the  l i t iga t ion  shou ld  

be  w i thdrawn.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what  we then know is  tha t  you 

s igned the  se t t lement  ag reement .  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes,  and the  agreement  was tha t  bo th  

par t ies  are  no t  p roceed ing  w i th  the  l i t iga t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MOLEFE:    And tha t  bo th  par t ies  wou ld  fu r ther  

negot ia te  a  se t t lement  amount .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So ,  can I  jus t  take  you p lease to  the  

deed o f  se t t lement  tha t ’s  a t  page 789 o f  the  same bund le ,  

Bund le  3  BB16.  

MR MOLEFE:    Page 89?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   789,  a re  you  there?  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You ’ l l  see  tha t  a t  –  be tween the  

t raml ines is  “Deed o f  Set t lement ” ,  a re  you there?  20 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So ,  i t  ta lks  about ,   

“Whereas Transnet  i ssued summons e tce te ra ,  under 

tha t ,  whereas Aba loz i  i ssued a  counte r  c la im 

now…[ in te rvenes] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh,  I  know tha t  we are  t ry ing  to  

save t ime,  bu t  I  th ink  th is  document  i s  qu i te  impor tan t .   I  

wou ld  suggest  because i t ’s  no t  long…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I ’ l l  read i t  in to  the  reco rd ,  thank you,  

I ’m  indebted to  you.  

“ . . .Transnet  SOC (L td)  Transnet . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “ I ssued a  summons aga ins t  Aba loz i  

R isk  Adv isory  Serv ices  P ty  L td  Aba loz i . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “P rev ious ly  known as Genera l  

Nyanda Secur i t y  R isk  Adv isory  Serv i ces  P ty  

L td  GNS. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “ In  connect ion  w i th  secur i t y  serv i ces  

rendered to  Transnet  by  GNS in  the  per iod  

2007 to  2009 the  serv i ce ,  and whereas Aba loz i  

i ssued a  counte r  c la im aga ins t  Transnet  in  

connect ion  w i th  the  serv ices . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “Now where fore  Transnet  and Aba loz i  

have agreed to  se t t le  a l l  d isputes  be tween  

them in  th is  l i t i ga t ion  on  the  fo l low ing te rm.   

One,  Transnet  hereby w i thdraws i t s  ac t ion 

aga ins t  Aba loz i .   Two,  Aba loz i  hereby  
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w i thdraws i t s  counterc la im aga ins t  Transnet .   

Three,  Transnet  w i l l  upon s ignature  hereof  

i ssue a  med ia  s ta tement  in  the  form as agreed 

and a t tached here to  marked A .   Four,  Transnet  

w i l l  pay  a l l  the  lega l  cos ts  incu r red  by  Aba loz i ,  

i t s  d i rec to rs  and the  co founders  and d i rec to rs  

o f  GNS on an a t to rney and own c l ien t  sca le ,  

and f i ve  the  te rms o f  the  se t t lement  a re  

se t t lement  agreement  a re  conf ident ia l  and 

sha l l  no t  be  d isc losed by  any  one o f  the  10 

par t ies  to  any th i rd  par ty. ”  

 A re  you there?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  th is  was a  se t t lemen t  o f  a l l  

d isputes  be tween  the  par t ies  in  th i s  l i t i ga t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   In  th is  l i t i ga t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   C la im and counterc la im.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  w i thout  go ing  i n to  the  amounts .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  we l l  the  on ly  amounts  tha t  a re  

re fer red  to  i s  the  costs .   20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  tha t  had to  be  computed,  the 

costs .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Have you any idea,  and you 
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negot ia ted  th is  agreement .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Why d id  you agree tha t  Transnet ,  

f i rs t  o f  a l l  why d id  you agree tha t  Transnet  shou ld  pay any 

costs?   Transne t  had sued Aba loz i ,  Aba loz i  had sued 

Transnet .   Both  par t ies  were  ca l l ing  i t  a  t ruce ,  bu t  why 

shou ld  Transnet  p ick  up  the  tab?  

MR MOLEFE:   The adv i ce  tha t  we got  f rom,  wh ich  i s  why I  

wou ld  have sa id  even th i s  agreement  must  have been  

exceeded by  a  memo.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You sa id  you negot ia ted  th is  

agreement ,  to  se t t le .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  bu t  there  was a  memo.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You negot ia ted .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  negot ia ted?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then I  am ask ing  you why d id  you  

dec ide  tha t  Transnet  shou ld  p ick  up  the  tab?  

MR MOLEFE:   Because we were  a t  fau l t ,  because  we had  20 

h idden in fo rmat ion .   Our  peop le  had h idden the  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  Aba loz i  had done the  work .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  Mr  Mole fe ,  tha t  was  not  the  

f ind ing  o f  the  Newton repor t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l ,  tha t  may not  have been the  f ind ing  o f  
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the  Newton repor t ,  bu t  th is  i s  what  I  knew fo r  a  fac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you,  in  the  negot ia t ions  d id  you o f fe r  

to  Genera l  Nyanda tha t  Transnet  wou ld  pay the  cost  o r  d id  

he  demand tha t  Transnet  w i l l  pay  the  cost?  

MR MOLEFE:   Genera l  Nyanda had  tha t  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   And th is  i s  what  was go ing  to  come out  in  

the  cause o f  the  l i t iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   And Genera l  Nyanda ’s  pos i t ion  was you  10 

guys b lack l i s ted  me i l lega l l y  w i thout  go ing  th rough a  

process,  because  o f  a  someth ing ,  because o f  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  you had h idden,  we as  Aba loz i  had not  done anyth ing  

wrong.    

 I t  i s  you who h id  away our  repor t  and there fore  I  

th ink  tha t  we were  wrong,  and unfor tunate ly  I  had no leg  to  

s tand on.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh,  le t  me leave i t  to  you to  

cont inue.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you,  and then why costs  20 

incu r red  by  Aba loz i ,  i t s  d i rec tors  and co founders  and 

d i rec tors  o f  GNS,  why?  Were  the  co founders ,  were  they  

even par ty  to  th is  agreement ,  and the  d i rec to rs  o f  GNS? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Why wou ld  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  i s  what  was  

rep resented to  me as the  damage tha t  wou ld  have been 

done by  the  fac t  tha t  we had been h id ing  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  Mr  Mole fe ,  the  bus iness dea l ings 

were  be tween Aba loz i  and Transne t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   They were  no t  be tween Aba loz i  and the  

d i rec tors ,  co founders  o f  GNS and a l l  o f  tha t .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  why wou ld  you owe the  d i rec tors  

anyth ing  on  top  o f  owing,  le t  us  assume tha t  Transnet  

owed someth ing  ar is ing  ou t  o f  th is .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Why wou ld  you  owe the  d i rec to rs  and 

co founders  o f  GNS on top  o f  owing  Aba loz i  as  an  en t i t y?  

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rpe rson,  I  mean th is  i s  what  I  

unders tood to  have been the  damage tha t  we had done by  

h id ing  the  in fo rmat ion .   However  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  damage?  What  damage? 

MR MOLEFE:   Hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  i t  wou ld  have been  he lp fu l  

i f  I  wou ld  have  seen the  name tha t  I  p receded ,  I  was 

s ign ing  th is  agreement .   Typ ica l l y  there  wou ld  have been a 

memo tha t  exp la ins  every th ing  tha t  i s  in  the  ag reement  and 
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why we are  do ing  what  we are  do ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  the  d i rec to rs  and  the  co founders ,  

own founders  had  not  sued Transnet .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   On our  bund les  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   I  do  no t  have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  why the  

c lause was inc luded as  i t  i s ,  as  i t  was.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   I  do  no t  have a  reco l lec t ion  as  to  the 

background o f  tha t  c lause now as  I  s i t  here .   Perhaps i f  I  10 

go  and re f lec t  on  i t  I  may remember  the  reason  why but  

what  I  can th ink  o f  as  I  am s i t t ing  here  is  because we were  

in  the  wrong.   

 We had h idden away in fo rmat ion  and caused a  lo t  

o f  damage to  the  company.   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  k ind  o f  damage d id  you cause?  

MR MOLEFE:   Reputa t iona l ,  they  have been b lack l i s ted  

and they have been known tha t  they have been b lack l i s ted .   

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you pub l i sh  the  b lack l i s t ing?  

MR MOLEFE:   No,  the  mat te r  was in  cour t .   I t  was a t  the  20 

cour ts .   I t  was pub l i c .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   I t  was in  cour t ,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   D id  they sue you  fo r  i t?  

MR MOLEFE:   They d id .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   That  i s  what ,  th is  i s  a  se t t lement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  tha t  i s  the  counterc la im.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Was tha t  the  counterc la im? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  bu t  cer ta in ly  as  you s i t  here ,  I  

mean you,  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  hope you do not  say  I  am pat ron i z ing  

you.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You must  be  care fu l ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because I  d id  no t  say  anyth ing  bu t  there  

was a  t ime when  you accused Mr  Myburgh o f  pa t ron iz ing  

you and I  though t  i t  was not .   When you occupy a  cer ta in  

pos i t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You know,  group CEO of  Transnet .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You must  be  taken to  have  cer ta in  

knowledge and so  on  and so  on .    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  there  a re  ce r ta in  th ings tha t  we can  
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take  i t  tha t  you cannot  be ,  you cannot  no t  know cer ta in  

th ings.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  am,  my  react ion  when I  saw th is  fo r  

the  f i rs t  t ime,  and I  can ind ica te  i t  was,  I  became aware  o f  

i t  a f te r  we had been look ing  a t  the  se t t lement  o f  Mr  Gama.   

Between Mr  Gama . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And Transnet .   Th is  looked very  s t range.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And to  me,  when I  th ink  o f  you hav ing  

been CEO of  P IC,  CEO of  . . .  g roup CEO of  Transnet ,  I  

wou ld  expect  tha t  in  l i t i ga t ion  such as  th is ,  even  though 

you might  no t  be  a  lawyer,  bu t  you r  genera l  knowledge and  

exper ience wou ld  have you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i f  we se t t le  and pay cost ,  i f  we are  

supposed to  pay any cost  to  the  en t i t y.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  shou ld  be  enough.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You know,  we shou ld  no t  be  pay ing  the  

d i rec tors  and co founders  and a l l  o f  tha t .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Am I  un fa i r  to  expect  tha t  k ind  o f  
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knowledge?  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay,  bu t  le t  me take you th rough my 

dec is ion-mak ing  process as  I  reca l l  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MOLEFE:   The counterc la im was about  95  m i l l ion .   

S i t t ing  there ,  negot ia t ing  and f ina l l y  coming to  th is  

agreement ,  even w i th  th is  c lause my qu ick  ca l cu la t ion  was  

we were  no t  go ing  to  ge t  anywhere  near  95 ,  and tha t  i f  the 

mat te r  p roceeded  to  Cour t  and they were  su ing  us  fo r  95  

m i l l ion  wh ich  they sa id  was the  damage,  I  saw tha t  we had 10 

no leg  to  s tand on.   We had even  the  in fo rmat ion .   So my 

ca l cu la t ion  was i t  does not  mat te r  because i t  w i l l  no t  be  

anywhere  near  95 .    

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you bother  to  say le t  us  ge t  a  lega l  

op in ion  as  to  whether  th is  c la im o f  the i rs  has  go t  any  

mer i t s  and i f  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   No .  

CHAIRPERSON:   How c lose,  what  r i sk  do  we have o f  

pay ing  even ha l f  o f  95  m i l l ion .    

MR MOLEFE:   The i r  c la im had  mer i t s  because  we had  20 

h idden the  in fo rmat ion .   I  was ashamed a t  what  Transnet  

Employees had done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  you  a re  no t  answer ing  my quest ion  

Mr  Mole fe .   You may have though t  i t  had mer i t  bu t  you are  

no t  a  lawyer.    
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am ask ing  you whethe r  you bothered to  

ask  fo r  a  l ega l  op in ion ,  peop le  who  cou ld  say to  you  in  law  

yes,  there  is  a  c la im and two,  i t  has  go t  reasonab le  

prospects  and i f  they  succeed,  w i l l  they  come c lose to  95  

mi l l ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  wh ich  is  why I  was ask ing  fo r  the 

name.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   Because my reco l l ec t ion  was tha t  th is  was 10 

in  fac t  d ra f ted  by  us ,  by  Transnet  lega l  depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  so  are  you say ing  tha t  you r  

reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  there  was a  lega l  op in ion  f rom wi th in  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   No ,  no t  a  lega l  op in ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  f rom our  s ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   I  was not  a lone in  a  smal l  c la ims ba r,  we 

were  in  Transnet  and I  sa t  w i th  the  lega l  depar tment  o f  20 

Transnet ,  and as  fa r  as  I  reca l l  there  wou ld  have  been a  

memo say ing  tha t  here  is  a  mat te r  and we recommend tha t  

we se t t le  in  th is  manner.   

 Th is  document  i t se l f  was d ra f ted  a t  Transnet  by  ou r  

lega l  depar tment .   



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 179 of 258 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Perhaps in  the  process o f  d ra f t ing ,  i f  they  

have seen tha t  th is  was untoward  o r  no t  poss ib le  o r  

unreasonab le ,  pe rhaps they shou ld  have adv i sed and sa id  

th is  does not  ge t  done,  bu t  f rom a  g loba l  v iew wh ich  is  

where  I  was,  was  tha t  we l l  f rom 95  mi l l ion  to  pay ing  cost ,  i t  

looks  l i ke  a  good dea l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  okay.   So f rom 95 mi l l ion ,  thank 

you Cha i rpe rson,  to  pay ing  cost  looks l i ke  a  good dea l .   10 

When you negot ia ted  th is  se t t lement ,  d id  you negot ia te  i t  

w i th  Genera l  Nyanda?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  Genera l  Nyanda was there .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  see .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  le t  us  have a  look a t  what  

happened a f te r  tha t .   I f  you  go  to  page 807 you were  

wr i t ten  a  le t te r.   Your  re fe rence . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   807 Cha i rpe rson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You had wr i t ten  a  le t te r  by  Aba loz i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You see tha t ,  dear  Br ian  and i f  you  

go to  parag raph 8  a t  808,  i t  says :  



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 180 of 258 
 

 “They p ropose 40 mi l l ion .   The 40 mi l l ion  

proposa l  o r  se t t lement  was be l ieved to  be  fa i r  

res t i tu t ion  and compensat ion  inc lus ive  o f  lega l  

cos ts  incur red  in  th is  mat te r.   Even the  ex t ra  

in fo rmat ion  requ i red  by  Transnet  in  response 

and the  de ta i l  o f  los t  revenue prov ided in  th is  

communica t ion ,  we th ink  tha t  a  se t t lement  o f  

60  m i l l ion  wou ld  be  jus t i f ied .   I t  w i l l  be  prudent  

to  have th is  mat te r  conc luded. ”  

 So what  they were  ask ing  fo r,  you see here ,  i s  cos t .   10 

They were  ask ing  fo r  compensat ion  fo r  los t  revenue,  

e tce te ra .   Do you  see a l l  o f  tha t  a t  paragraph 8?   

MR MOLEFE:   807?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   808,  paragraph 8 .   

MR MOLEFE:   808?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Paragraph 8 .   A re  you sure  you are  in  

the  r igh t  f i l e  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  do  no t  know i f  I  am in  the  r igh t  f i l e .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You need to  be  in  Bund le  3 ,  BB16.   

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  BB16,  808 is  a  le t te r  to  N ing isa  20 

Hofmeyer.   What  i s  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I s  th is  the  same bund le  tha t  you had  

open when you were  look ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   So r ry,  what  i s  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   808.  
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MR MOLEFE:   So r ry,  I  was on the  r igh t  808.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  ja .   I t  i s  tha t  t ime o f  the  day  

when s ta r ts  con fus ing  the  red  numbers  w i th  the  b lack  

numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  i t  was happen ing  to  me yeste rday.    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  808.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.   So what  they say,  th is  i s  da ted  

16 October.  

MR MOLEFE:   Be fore  we d id  the  se t t lement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  th is  i s  a f te r  the  se t t lemen t .   10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th i s ,  okay.   So they say:  

 “The 40 mi l l ion  proposa l  o f  se t t lement  was 

be l ieved to  be  fa i r,  inc lus ive  o f  lega l  cos t  o r  

whatever,  g iven the  ex t ra  in fo rmat ion  requ i red  

by  Transnet  and the  de ta i l  o f  los t  revenue. ”  

 So now they have  prov ided loss  revenue.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “We th ink  tha t  se t t lemen t  o f  60 

m i l l ion  wou ld  be  j us t i f iab le . ”   20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  you see,  now they do  not  jus t  

want  cos t ,  they  a lso  want  compensat ion  fo r  los t  revenue.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now le t  us  look what  you do ,  i s  you 
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respond a t  803 and a t  803,  perhaps I  cou ld  read th is  in to  

the  record .   You address i t  to  Aba loz i :  

 “Dear  s i r,  Transnet  /  Aba loz i  R isk  Adv iso ry  

Serv i ces .   Your  l e t te r  da ted  16 October  2014 

here in  re fers .   Wi thout  admiss ion  o f  l iab i l i t y  

Transnet  SOC hereby o f fe rs  you an amount  o f  

20  m i l l ion  . . . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “ In  fu l l  and f ina l  se t t lemen t  o f  a l l  

lega l  c la ims and costs . ”  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “We wi l l  be  p leased to  rece ive  your  

response to  the  a foresa id  o f fe r  w i th in  seven  

days o f  rece ip t . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now as you  have cor rec t l y  sa id ,  as  

you say,  you went  f rom 95 mi l l ion  to  cost .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  th is  amount  tha t  you se t t led  on ,  

was not  se t t lement  fo r  cos ts .   I t  was someth ing  e lse .   I t  20 

was cost  and los t  revenue and we do not  know what  and 

tha t  i s  rea l l y  the  prob lem Mr  Mole fe ,  because when you  

look a t  the  se t t lement  agreement  tha t  you conc luded  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Transnet ’s  on ly  ob l iga t ion  was to  pay  

costs .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   They wr i te  t o  you and they say we l l ,  

we want  60  m i l l ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Which  inc ludes cost  and los t  revenue  

e tce te ra ,  and you go back and say we l l  I  w i l l  g i ve  you 20  

mi l l ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  were  you pay ing  th is  money  

fo r?    

MR MOLEFE:   I f  you  look a t  the  document  be fore  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  wh ich  one?   

MR MOLEFE:   On  801.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   I t  says :  

 “The pu rpose o f  th is  submiss ion  i s  to  request  

the  group ch ie f  f inanc ia l  o f f i ce r  . . . ”  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   

MR MOLEFE:   “To  au thor ize  the  payment  o f  20  m i l l ion . ”  

 Oh,  so r ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  no  we  have seen th is  because 

tha t  came a f te r  you had ac tua l l y  made th is  o f fe r.   So they 
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accepted your  o f fe r.   That  i s  no t  unsurp r is ing ly  and  then Mr  

Sa l inga and S ingh ac t ion  payment ,  bu t  what  we need . . .  

what  I  want  to  ask  you,  i s  what  were  you pay ing  th is  20  

m i l l ion  fo r?  

 You made the  counter  o f fe r.   I t  can  on ly  be  cost  on  

the  ev idence tha t  you have g iven.    

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  Cha i rperson I  th ink  I  must  have made a  

m is take he re .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  you must  have.   

MR MOLEFE:   Because what  we were  supposed to  have  10 

pa id ,  was the  cos t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You gave away 20 mi l l ion  rand  

ac tua l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can  te l l  you  Mr  Mole fe ,  I  wou ld  no t  be  

. . .  I  wou ld  no t  be  cand id  w i th  you i f  I  d id  no t  te l l  you  tha t  

when I  read jus t  a  se t t lement  agreement ,  I  was shocked.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  jus t  shock ing .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Those te rms o f  the  se t t lement  agreement  20 

are  shock ing .   In  a l l  the  years  tha t  I  was in  p rac t ice  be fore  

I  came onto  the  bench,  I  had never  seen a  se t t lement  

agreement  l i ke  th is .   I  have never  seen a  se t t lement  

agreement  l i ke  the  one tha t  Mr  Gama and Transnet  

conc luded.   
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 When you se t t le ,  because the  bas is  o f  a  se t t lement  

i s  look ,  we do not  know who was go ing  to  w in  or  lose  in  the 

end,  i f  we proceeded w i th  l i t i ga t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  bas i s .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  le t  us  se t t le .   That  i s  no rma l ly  the  

bas is .   Of  cou rse ,  somet imes  there  m ight  be  o the r  

cons idera t ions.   But  normal l y  you  wou ld  have each par ty  

pay ing  i t s  own cost .   10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  somet imes you do have the  one par ty  

mak ing  some con t r ibu t ion  to  the  cost  o f  the  o ther,  usua l l y  

no t  a l l  the  cost ,  jus t  some cont r i bu t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  maybe you  might  have a  s i tua t ion  

where  they pay par ty  and par ty  cost .   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  one o f  the  par t ies  in  a  se t t lement  

agreement ,  shou ld  pay a t to rney and c l ien t  cos t .   20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  someth ing  I  have never  come across.   

I  do  no t  know about  Mr  Myburgh.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  Cha i rperson may I  make a  request?  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  apar t  f rom what  Mr  Myburgh has 
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jus t  d rawn a t ten t ion  to ,  to  say the  amount  was not  jus t  fo r  

cos t ,  you were  pay ing  fo r  much  more  than tha t ,  even 

though the  se t t lement  agreement  sa id  Aba loz i  had  

w i thdrawn i t s  ac t i on  aga ins t  Transnet .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   May I  make a  request  Cha i rperson?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   Because my reco l lec t ion  o f  th is  ma t te r  may 

be very  vague.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MOLEFE:   That  I  go  and look a t  th is  mat te r  aga in .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   And then come back .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  fa i r  enough.  

MR MOLEFE:   Maybe by  way o f  a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t  

o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no  ar rangements  can be made,  even  

i f  you come back .   I  th ink ,  because i t  wou ld  no t  take  long.   

I  do  no t  know what  Mr  Myburgh has to  say,  bu t  le t  me 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  I  wou ld  rea l l y  l i ke  to  go  and in te r rogate  20 

th is  mat te r  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t ,  I  am happy to  leave  i t  there ,  

thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   There  i s  jus t  one o ther  fac t  tha t  I  

want  to  jus t  pu t  to  you,  and tha t  i s  Mr  Todd i f  my memory  

serves me cor rec t ly  sa id  tha t  the  costs  cou ld  no t  

conce ivab ly  been  more  than a  m i l l ion  rand,  because very  

l i t t le  had happened in  th is  l i t i ga t ion .  

 There  had been an exchange o f  p lead ings and i f  my 

memory  serves me cor rec t ly,  I  th ink  they m ight  have got  to  

a  d iscovery  a f f idav i t  s tage,  bu t  th is  l i t i ga t ion  was  not  fa r  

advanced a t  a l l .    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  Mole fe ,  perhaps tha t  i s  someth ing  

tha t  you cou ld  th ink  about .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And jus t  to  add onto  tha t ,  you know i f  you 

look a t  the ,  the  lega l  cos ts  re la t ing  to  Mr  Gama,  I  th ink  in  

the i r  lega l  cos t  t hey had the  lega l  cos t  o f  the  d i sc ip l inary  

hear ing  wh ich  had invo lved sen ior  counse l  and so  on ,  and  

had gone on fo r  about  14  days,  two  weeks.   

 The cost  fo r  tha t  I  th ink  were  less  than four  m i l l i on ,  

less  than I  canno t  remember,  bu t  we are  no t  ta lk ing  about  

even ten  m i l l ion  I  th ink ,  bu t  ce r ta in ly  no t  20  m i l l ion .   Here  20 

the  mat te r  had no t  gone to  t r ia l .   Some p lead ings had been 

exchanged.   

 Had not  advanced much.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  p lease a l low me Cha i rperson to  go  and 

re f resh my memory.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  fa i r  enough.   Tha t  i s  fa i r  

enough,  ja .   That  i s  fa i r  enough.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  then,  i t  

i s  la te  in  the  a f te rnoon Mr  Mole fe ,  to  dea l  w i th  the  f ina l  

top ic ,  and tha t  re la tes  to  w i tnesses 1  and 3 .   Do you have  

Bund le  14d ava i lab le?    

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe to ,  maybe  to round o f f  the  top ic  o f  

tha t  se t t lement  Mr  Mole fe .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And Mr  Myburgh ,  maybe Mr  . . .  there  are  10 

two ways o f  dea l ing  w i th  i t .   One  is  tha t  a f te r  Mr  Mole fe  

has s tud ied  i t  and t r ied  to  reca l l  what  happened,  one  

opt ion  is  tha t  he  can come back and then put  h is  

unders tand ing ,  g ive  me h is  unders tand ing  and  

exp lanat ions,  w i thout  an  a f f idav i t .   

 Another  one is  tha t  he  cou ld  pu t  in  an  a f f idav i t  f i rs t  

to  say th is  i s  my  reco l lec t ion  o f  how th is  came about  b lah  

b lah  b lah  b lah  b lah  and then i f  need be he cou ld  be  ca l led  

a f te r  tha t .   I  do  no t  know Mr  Myburgh i f  you have any  

ev idence,  what  do  you suggest?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink  the  la t te r  rou te  m ight  be  

pre fe rab le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because potent ia l l y  he  may not  need  

to  be  reca l led  then.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  we are  in  your  hands 

Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

UNKNOWN:   Cha i rperson,  I  thought  i t  wou ld  a lso  be  

prudent  tha t  we make a  proposa l  on  how . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

UNKNOWN:   Or  have an input  on  how we can hand le  th is  

mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .   10 

UNKNOWN:   I  s t i l l  have to  ge t  ins t ruc t ions.   So we w i l l  ge t  

ins t ruc t ions Cha i r,  and reve r t  back  to  Mr  Myburgh on what  

w i l l  be  the  best  way fo rward .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I f  tha t  cou ld  be ,  i f  what  

the  ar rangement  i s  go ing  to  be ,  can be f ina l i zed,  i f  

poss ib le  w i th in  the  next  two days because we do not  have  

a  lo t  o f  t ime.   So tha t  we a t  leas t  to  say th is  i s  the  agreed 

way fo rward .   

 Then we can take  i t  f rom there .   

UNKNOWN:   Thanks Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do you have Bund le  14d?  Can I  ask  

you p lease to  go  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  Mr  Essa was no t  a  d i rec tor  o f  Aba loz i .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  bu t  Genera l  Nyanda,  your  go l f  

par tne r,  was the  d i rec tor  o f  Aba loz i .   That  i s  a  b i t  c loser  to  

home.   A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  maybe I  shou ld  say th i s .   No,  

maybe I  shou ld  no t  say,  you w i l l  pu t  in  whatever  you w i l l  

pu t  in  about  tha t  se t t lement  and then we car ry  f rom there .   

Ja ,  okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thanks.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  no t  be ing  to ld  about  Sa l im Essa 10 

in  regard  to  Aba loz i .   What  bund le  d id  you say we  shou ld  

have?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   14 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   d ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page,  I  th ink  i t  i s  15 .   One f ive .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  have got  i t .   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now Mr  Mole fe ,  I  mean g iven the  

impor tance o f  th is ,  I  th ink  i t  may warran t  us  go ing  th rough  

i t  on  a  pa ragraph by  pa ragraph bas i s  a lmost .   A re  you in  

the  r igh t  f i l e?    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page 15,  w i tness 1 .   But  perhaps  

before  I  p ick  my way th rough th is  a f f idav i t ,  cou ld  I  jus t  ask  

you to  g ive  us  a  summary o f  what  your  response is  to  

w i tness 1 ’s  a f f idav i t ,  and I  suppose in  par t i cu la r  f rom page  

1  th rough to ,  i t  shou ld  be  15 th rough to  24 ,  up  to  the  

head ing  th rea ts  rece ived.   

MR MOLEFE:   Cha i rperson,  f i rs t l y  I  d id  no t  know who  

wi tness 1  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   Mr  Myburgh,  I  th ink  i t  m igh t  

be  good fo r  those who a re  fo l low ing,  to  jus t  g i ve  a  genera l  10 

jus t  o f  what  w i tness 1  sa id  about  Mr  Mole fe ,  so  tha t  when 

he g i ves  h is  own  the  jus t  o f  h is  response,  then they can  

fo l low or  i s  tha t  go ing  to  be  d i f f i cu l t?  

 I f  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  d i f f i cu l t ,  i t  i s  f ine .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  I  th ink  genera l l y  by  way  o f  very  

broad summary.   Wi tness 1  says,  is  tha t  he  was e f fec t i ve ly  

Mr  Mole fe ’s  d r iver  when he was a t  Transnet  and tha t  he  

took h im on a  number  o f  occas ions to  the  Gupta  compound 

in  Saxon Wor ld  and to  o the r  meet ings w i th  the  Guptas ,  and 

he gave ce r ta in  ev idence re la t ing  to  money.   20 

 That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As  b road ly  s ta ted  as  i t  can  be .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  jus t  wan ted tha t  

when Mr  Mole fe  g ives  h is  response to  th i s  ev idence,  
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peop le  who are  l i s ten ing  can unders tand what  i t  i s  about .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Cha i rperson .   I  do  no t  know who 

wi tness 1  i s .   But  I  suppose even i f  I  assumed the  ident i t y  

o f ,  who the  ident i t y  o f  w i tness 1  i s ,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to 

inc lude mot i ve  w i thout  ident i f y ing  w i tness 1 .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry,  what  d id  you say?  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  for  me to  impute  mot ive  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   For  g i v ing  th i s  k ind  o f  ev idence  w i thout  10 

knowing who w i tness 1  i s .   But  second ly,  w i tness 1  does 

not  say  tha t  he  saw anybody g i ve  me money.   He re fers  to  

meet ings tha t  I  had w i th  the  Guptas ,  tha t  I  have not  

den ied .    

 However,  he  ta lks  about  bags and  a  bag as  i f  those 

bags had money,  bu t  he  had no ev idence tha t  there  was  

money in  the  bag .   So rea l l y  there  is  ve ry  l i t t le  response in  

the  ev idence o f  w i tness 1 .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  we ’ l l  le t  us  jus t  accept  fo r  a  

moment  tha t  he  does not  g ive  ev idence on your  con t rac tua l  20 

o f  hav ing  seen someone g i ve  you  money,  bu t  apar t  f rom 

tha t ,  wou ld  you then agree w i th  th is  s ta tement  o r  what  

u l t imate ly  a re  you say ing?   

MR MOLEFE:   That  somebody gave me money?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  your  ana lys is  o f  h i s  ev idence,  i s  
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he  says very  l i t t le .   He does not  g ive  d i rec t  ev idence you 

say o f  peop le  g i v ing  me money.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes s i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  what  do  you say to  the  content  o f  

h is  ev idence,  tha t  he  took you to  a l l  o f  these p laces .   What  

do  you say abou t  h is  observa t ions?  Are  you say ing  they 

are  a l l  wrong or  a re  you say ing  …[aud io  cu t ]  tha t  he  does 

not  g ive  ev idence  o f  someone g iv ing  me money.  

MR MOLEFE:   H is  observa t ions tha t  he  saw me wi th  a  bag,  

may be t rue  bu t  I  wou ld  deny tha t  i t  had money in  i t  o r  tha t  10 

the  bag I  was car ry ing ,  when I  went  to  the  mee t ing  and 

came back f rom the  meet ing  came back w i th  money.   I  w i l l  

deny tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  le t  us  jus t  go  th rough,  i f  you  go to  

parag raph 10 o f  the  a f f idav i t  a t  page 17.   When you say 

you do not  know who wi tness 1  is ,  we l l  he  says tha t  he  

ac ted  as  your  d r i ver  fo r  th ree  years .  

MR MOLEFE:   D id  he?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Three o r  fou r  years .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  so  who is  he?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you not  a lso  say ea r l ie r  tha t  you 

know who he is?  

MR MOLEFE:   Come aga in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you not  a lso  say tha t  you know 

who he is?  
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MR MOLEFE:   No ,  I  sa id  I  cou ld  assume who he is .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   And but  assuming who he is ,  i t  i s  no t  fa i r,  

because I  canno t  impute  mot ive  on  a  pe rson based on 

assumpt ion  o f  ident i t y.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  what  a re  you say ing ,  a  bad 

mot ive ,  tha t  you had a  dr iver  who had,  who may have had a  

bad mot ive  fo r  th i s  ev idence?  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  there  is  a  d r ive r  tha t  I  know wi th  a  bad  

mot ive ,  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  I  can revea l  what  I  th ink  was the  10 

mot ive .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  abso lu te ly.  

MR MOLEFE:   Because i t  wou ld  ident i f y  them number  one,  

and number  two,  what  i f  my assumpt ion  about  the  ident i t y  

i s  wrong?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  then Mr  Mole fe ,  can I  ask  you  

why d id  you not  exerc ise  your  r igh t  to  c ross-examine th is  

person?  

MR MOLEFE:   Because he d id  no t  imp l ica te  me in  wrong  

do ing .   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  so  tha t  i s  rea l l y  your  de fence.   

That  there  is  no  imp l ica t ion  o f  wrong do ing?  

MR MOLEFE:   There  is  no  imp l ica t ion  o f  wrong do ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  are  you prepared genera l l y  to  

accept  the  s ta tement  tha t  your  main  opposi t ion  or  de fence 
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i s  i t  does not  imp l ica te  me in  wrong do ing?  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  does not  imp l ica te  me in  wrong do ing .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   

MR MOLEFE:   I t  jus t  imp l ica tes  me in  somet imes  car ry ing  

a  bag tha t  I  a lways car ry  tha t  he  took a  p ic tu re  o f .   No,  he  

d id  no t  even take  a  p ic tu re  o f  the  bag.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   Downloaded f rom the  in te rnet .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   

MR MOLEFE:   And sa id  tha t  i s  the  bag tha t  I  may have 10 

been car ry ing  or  a  s im i la r  bag.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .   A l r igh t .   I  m igh t  ask  you  to  show 

me your  bag la te r,  bu t  yes .   

MR MOLEFE:   Mr  Myburgh,  as  I  wa lked in to  the  

Commiss ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   I  may  have been car ry ing  a  bag,  i f  I  was and  

i f  somebody sees me leave the  Commiss ion  w i th  tha t  bag 

and says tha t  joh ,  i t  looks  l i ke  i t  has  go t  money ins ide ,  I  

have to  answer  to  tha t  a l legat ion .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   So le t  us  go  th rough th is .   

He says tha t  o r  she,  I  am go ing  to  perhaps jus t  re fe r  to  he ,  

and I  do  no t  mean to  d i sc lose  the  gender  o f  the  pe rson,  bu t  

i t  w i l l  be  eas ie r :  

 “Dur ing  the  abovement ioned per iod  Transnet  
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head o f f i ces  . . . ”  

 So th is  i s  11  to  14 :  

 “Was s t i l l  i n  the  Car l ton  Cent re  in  

Johannesburg . ”  

 I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  and then i t  says :  

 “That  on  a  no rma l  work ing  day I  wou ld  co l lec t  

Mo le fe  f rom h is  home in  I rene  Pre tor ia  a t  

a round s i x  o ’ c lock  in  the  morn ing ,  t ranspor t  10 

h im to  the  o f f i ce  a t  Car l ton  Cent re  and or  to  

meet ings dur ing  the  course  o f  the  day and 

drop h im o f f  a t  home in  the  a f te rnoon.   He 

o f ten  a t tended meet ings and funct ions t i l l  l a te  

in  the  even ings and on many occas ions I  wou ld  

on ly  a r r i ve  home a t  a round midn igh t .   I  a lso  

had to  work  qu i te  a  lo t  over  weekends. ”  

 Would  tha t  be  an  accura te  descr ip t ion  o f  the  work  

o f  you r  d r iver?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then he says,  the  dr iver  says :  

 “Usua l ly  on  Fr iday a f te rnoon Mole fe ’s  pe rsona l  

ass is tan t ,  PA,  wou ld  prov ide  me wi th  a  pr in tou t  

o f  Mo le fe ’s  d ia ry  fo r  the  fo l low ing  week wh ich  

wou ld  in fo rm me o f  h is  meet ing  schedu le  and 
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movements  fo r  tha t  week. ”  

 Would  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And a t  14 :  

 “Due to  the  long work  hours  requ i red  to  

t ranspor t  Mo le fe  to  var ious dest ina t ions du r ing  

the  week,  I  requested one o f  my o ther  CPO’s ,  

my co l league du r ing  la te  2012 to  ass i s t  me 

wi th  the  p ro tec t ion  and t ranspor t ing  o f  Mo le fe .   

We used to  a l te rna te  ou r  work ing  schedu les  so  10 

tha t  one o f  us  wou ld  t ranspor t  Mo le fe  wh i ls t  

the  o ther  one wou ld  per fo rm admin is t ra t i ve  

tasks .   My co l league cont inued in  th is  regard  

un t i l  approx imate ly  December  2014. ”  

 You ag ree w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   15 :  

 “Dur ing  the  end . . . ”  

 Sor ry :  

 “Towards the  end o f  Ju ly  2014 I  was re-20 

dep loyed as  secur i t y  manager  a t  Transnet  

Group Cap i ta l  D iv is ion  in  Durban.   I  

t ransfer red  back  to  the  Transnet  head o f f i ce  

dur ing  January  2016. ”  

 What  do  you say to  tha t?  
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MR MOLEFE:   I f  i t  i s  the  guy tha t  was re-dep loyed to 

Durban there  is  a  lo t  to  say abou t  tha t  bu t  i t  wou ld  revea l  

h is  ident i t y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Then 16:  

 “Dur ing  the  per iod  o f  p rov id ing  CPO serv i ces  

to  Mole fe ,  the  fo l low ing Transnet  veh ic les  were  

used to  t ranspor t  h im. ”  

 I  am not  go ing  to  read a l l  o f  them out .   There  is  a  

BMW, another  BMW, Mercedes Benz and an Aud io  A8.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   17 ,  the  dr i ve r  says:  

 “ I  kept  log  books  o f  t r ips  under taken w i th  the  

abovement ioned veh ic les . ”  

 Would  you accept  tha t  log  books were  kept?  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  I  never  looked a t  them.   I  knew tha t  they 

were  handed to  the  head o f  secur i t y,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   18 ,  so r ry  anyth ing  e lse  to  say? 

MR MOLEFE:   No .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  18 :  

 “Used log  books  f rom the  d r ivers  o f  Transnet  20 

execut ives  were  handed to  Genera l  Toka a t  the  

t ime the  genera l  manager  o f  secur i t y  a t  

Transnet  fo r  sa fekeep ing .   I  kep t  my log  books  

fo r  aud i t  pu rposes. ”  

 Any comment  on  tha t?  
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MR MOLEFE:   Wel l ,  I  am not  sure  whethe r  th is  was  in  l ine  

w i th  the i r  s tandard  opera t ing  processes.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   

MR MOLEFE:   Bu t  yes .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then we have the  head ing  meet ings  

w i th  AJ Gupta :  

 “Dur ing  the  pe r iod  . . . ”  

 And th is  i s  now February  2011 to  Ju ly  2014:  

 “Dur ing  the  per iod  o f  per fo rm ing  CPO dut ies  

fo r  Mo le fe ,  I  t ranspor ted  h im  on va r ious 10 

occas ions to  the  Gupta  res idence in  Saxon  

Wor ld ,  Johannesburg ,  the  M ichae l  Ange lo  

Hote l  in  Sandton,  the  Pro tea  Hote l  F i re  and Ice  

in  Mel rose Arch  and the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  

Computers  in  Midrand where  he  a t tended  

meet ings w i th  AJ Gupta ,  AJ. ”  

 Do you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   Genera l l y  yes ,  i t  i s  t rue  tha t  there  

were  occas ions when we went .   I  do  no t  have a  reco l lec t ion  

o f  eve ry  s ing le  inc ident .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sure :  

 “These meet ings  were  no t  reco rded in  h is  

d ia ry. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot  reca l l  tha t  they were  o r  were  no t  

recorded in  my d ia ry.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   “ I  was e i the r  in fo rmed by  Mole fe  tha t  

he  was go ing  to  meet  w i th  AJ or  I  ac tua l l y  saw 

AJ a t  these venues o r  bo th . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Paragraph 20:  

 “Cop ies  o f  ava i lab le  log  book ent r ies  

conf i rm ing t r ips  under taken to  the  loca t ions 

ment ioned above are  a t tached  here to  as  

Annexures W101 to  W115,  the  log  book ent r ies  

are  summar i zed in  these tab les . ”  10 

 I  do  no t  know i f  you have had a  chance to  look  a t  

th is  tab le?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  the  tab le  re f lec t s ,  i s  tha t  in  

the  14  month  per iod  be tween Ju ly  2011 and September  

2012,  the  dr ive r  took you to  Saxon  Wor ld  on  11  occas ions,  

tw ice  to  the  Michae l  Ange lo ,  once  to the  F i re  and Ice  and 

once to  Sahara .    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  I  cannot  comment  on  i t  because I  do  

no t  have a  c lea r  reco l lec t ion  o f  every  s ing le  inc ident ,  bu t  20 

as  I  sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  i t  seems,  wou ld  you d ispu te  what  

i s  sa id  here?  

MR MOLEFE:   No .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   Now you w i l l  see  tha t  a t  
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page 21 a f te r  the  schedu le  re ferences in  the  log  book to  

Saxon Wor ld ,  Saxon,  Saxon Wor ld  e tce te ra  are  a l l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOLEFE:   Pa rag raph 21?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Jus t  above 21.   There  is  a  key the re  

where  he  exp la ins  tha t  any re fe rence ready to  Saxon or  

Saxon Wor ld  i s  a  re ference to  the  Gupta  res idence.   

Refe rence to  the  Michae l  Ange lo  i s  the  Sandton Michae l  

Ange lo .   Reference to  Mel rose Arch ,  p resumably  i t  shou ld  

be  hote l ,  re fe rs  to  the  Pro tea  F i re  and Ice ,  and Midrand  10 

Sahara  re fers  to  the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  Compute r.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “A f te r  September  2012 I  no  longer  

t ranspor ted  Mole fe  to  Gupta  Saxon Wor ld  

res idence. ”  

 Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   September  2012?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He says:  

 “A f te r  September  2012 I  no  longer  t ranspor ted  

Mole fe  to  Gupta  Saxon Wor ld  res idence.   My 20 

co l league in fo rmed me tha t  he  has a lso  taken  

Mole fe  to  the  Gupta  res idence  on a  few 

occas ions. ”  

 Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   S i r,  a f te r  September  2012 is  when he went  
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to  Durban?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  he  sa id  he  no  longer  

t ranspor ted  you.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  bu t  was i t  because he had gone to  

Durban?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Not  as  I  unders tand the  ev idence.   

He says i t  was towards the  end o f  Ju l y  2014 tha t  he  was 

re-dep loyed to  Durban.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  see ,  yes .   Ja ,  okay.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  you ag ree w i th  tha t?    10 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  I  cannot  comment  on  tha t .   I  cannot  

rea l l y  reca l l  when  he . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then a t  pa ragraph 23:  

 “ In  re la t ion  to  t r ips  to  the  Gupta  res idence 

Mole fe  wou ld  te l l  me tha t  he  wou ld  have to  go  

and see AJ. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “On a r r i va l  a t  the  Gupta  res idence I  

wou ld  wa i t  fo r  Mo le fe  in  our  veh ic le  to  re tu rn ,  

as  can be seen f rom the  tab le  above the  v is i t s  20 

to  the  res idence usua l ly  l as ted  between 20 and 

45 minutes . ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  do  you  say to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  tha t  i s  a  reasonab le  assessment  o f  
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what  was happen ing .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Those are  re la t i ve ly  sho r t  mee t ings.   

MR MOLEFE:   No,  I  mean ja ,  20  to  45  no t  shor t .   Ten 

minutes  wou ld  be  shor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   20  maybe wou ld  be  shor t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ten minutes  wou ld  be  shor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And 20 you wou ld  say no t  shor t?  

MR MOLEFE:   45  is  about  reasonab le  t ime to  have a  

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no  I  do  no t  have a  prob lem 10 

myse l f  about  45  m inutes  be ing  you know,  no t  an  unusua l  

t ime fo r  a  meet ing .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am ta lk ing  about  20  because I  th ink  

somewhere  he  says in  h is ,  the  log  book or  whatever  he  has  

pu t  in  there ,  re f l ec ts  l i ke  you wou ld  come in  the re ,  you 

wou ld  go  there  and spend about  20  m inutes  and go .   I  th ink 

qu i te  a  few t imes i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  g ives  me the  impress ion  and th i s  20 

is  maybe I  must  jus t  say,  g ives  me the  impress ion  tha t  tha t  

m ight  no t  have you know,  ser ious meet ings i f  i t  i s  so  shor t ,  

bu t  ja  I  may be m is taken.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  i t  i s  so  shor t .  
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MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   But  genera l l y  you do not  have  

any quar re l  w i th  the  k inds o f  t imes  he g i ves  in  te rms o f  the  

dura t ion  whenever  you went  there ,  more  or  less  you have  

no prob lem wi th  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi th  those t imes .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  he  jus t  does no t  ment ion  perhaps when  10 

there  were  events .  

CHAIRPERSON:   When there  were? 

MR MOLEFE:   Events .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Events ,  ja  okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  l i ke  a  funct ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja .   When you wou ld  be  there  

longer.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  he  does not  ment ion  those.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Perhaps i f  I ,  sor ry  Mr  Cha i r  a re  you  20 

f in ished?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  maybe you are  go ing  to  say what  

I  was about  to  say.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  no  p lease you are  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  I  was say ing  maybe du r ing  the  
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t ime tha t  he  took  you there ,  there  were  no  events .   That  i s  

why I  have made,  tha t  i s  why . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot  reca l l  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Jus t  in  tha t  regard ,  cou ld  I  take  you  

back to  page 20 p lease?  Have a  l ook a t  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Pa rag raph 20?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  page 20 .   The tab le .   You  see the  

f i rs t  en t ry  a t  the  top ,  29  Ju ly  a t  20H11 Saxon Wor ld .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He a r r i ves  or  you ar r i ve  a t  ten ,  and  

leave . . .  sor ry  s ix  o ’c lock  in  the  morn ing  and leave a t  

seventeen minutes  past  s ix  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  the  morn ing .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then the  f i f th  en t ry  in  the  m idd le  

o f  the  page,  19 t h  o f  October  you a r r i ved a t  ten  to  s ix  in  the  

even ing  and you le f t  a t  s ix  o ’c lock .   So tha t  i s  a  ten  m inute  

meet ing ,  the  f i rs t  one is  17  m inutes .   20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go over  the  page,  to  

page 21,  the  second ent ry  on  the  28 t h  o f  May 2012 you 

ar r i ve  a t  twenty  to  seven in  the  even ing  and you leave a t  

ten  to  seven.   Ten minutes .   
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  wou ld  you have been do ing?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  i s  what  he  says.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  what  the  log  books say.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  i s ,  ja  bu t  I  cannot  comment  on  the  

accuracy o f  the  l og  book.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bu t  they,  what  . . .  can  you th ink  o f  

what  you might  be  do ing  fo r  on l y  ten  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   I  do  no t  remember  what  i t  was about .   I  do  

no t  and I  cannot  comment  tha t  these ent r ies  are  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  th ink  what  you do say based on  

what  you have sa id  be fore ,  i s  you might  no t  be  say ing  they  

are  accura te ,  bu t  your  sense is  tha t  they cannot  be  too  way 

out .   They,  i t  i s  more  o r  less .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  more  or  less  what  you th ink .  

MR MOLEFE:   They may not  even have happened  in  the 

way tha t  he  desc r ibes them in  the  log  book,  bu t  I  have no  

way o f  showing tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .   20 

MR MOLEFE:   Because we l l ,  tha t  i s  what  he  wro te  in  h is  

log  book.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  there  are  t imes  where  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MOLEFE:   So  when he made  these ent r ies  i n  h is  log  
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book.   

CHAIRPERSON:   There  are  t imes  where  accord ing  to  h is  

log  book you were  there  fo r  a  few hours .   I  see  a t  page 20,  

second i tem . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   9  Ju l y  2011,  accord ing  to  the  log  book,  

h is  log  book you were  there  f rom f i ve  to  ten  past  n ine .  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  there  a re  t imes where  i t  re f lec t s  

you were  the re  fo r  qu i te  some t ime .   10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then the re  are  t imes when i t  shows  

tha t  you were  the re  fo r  a  shor te r  per iod .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  bu t  what  I ,  you  see I  do  no t  d ispute  

tha t  he  d id  take  me there .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   And tha t  maybe he kept  a  log  book.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   And I  was not  aware  o f .   But  I  am not  su re  

about  the  accuracy.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MOLEFE:   O f  what  i s  in  h is  l og  book,  and rea l l y  what  

h is  mot i ve  was fo r  keep ing  the  log  book.   I  do  no t  know i f  

he  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  guess the  log  book has go t  to  say  
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when you ar r i ved  where  you ar r i ved and when you  le f t .   I  

assume tha t  tha t  i s  par t  o f  what  they a re  supposed to  do .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  bu t  and then  the  log  book is  handed 

over  to  h is  genera l  manager  fo r  sa fekeep ing .   But  he  says 

he  kept  the  log  book.   So I  am not  sure  what  the  mot ive  

was there  because as  he  says  here ,  i t  was fo r  aud i t  

purposes.    

 Wel l ,  i f  anybody  wanted to  aud i t  h is  log  book,  i t  

wou ld  be  found w i th  the  genera l  manager  o f  secur i t y.   So I  

am not  sure  what  h is  mot ive  rea l l y  was.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  Mr  Myburgh?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   And in  fac t  he  may have been in  b reach o f  

the i r  own s tandard  opera t ing  procedures because  the  log 

book was supposed to  be  handed over  to  head o f  secur i t y.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then a t  pa ragraph 24,  a t  page  22:  

 “When he v is i ted  the  Gupta  res idence in  Saxon 

Wor ld  and the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  Compute rs ,  

the  secur i t y  guard  wou ld  ask  who a re  we  

v is i t ing  and Mole fe  wou ld  in fo rm tha t  we  are  20 

v is i t ing  AJ.   I  wou ld  then re lay  the  name o f  AJ 

to  the  secur i t y  guard  who wou ld  then pe rmi t  

access. ”  

 Would  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes  I  wou ld  normal ly  v i s i t  AJ .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   25 :  

 “ In  re la t ion  to  the  v is i t s  to  the  ho te ls ,  I  wou ld  

park  the  veh ic le  and accompany Mole fe ,  

a l te rna t ive ly  mee t  Mole fe  a t  a  res taurant  when 

I  wou ld  a t  some s tage du r ing  the  meet ing  see 

AJ. ”  

 You ag ree w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   Wel l ,  I  cannot  comment  on  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sure .   10 

MR MOLEFE:   On  who he saw o r  who he ident i f ied  as  AJ.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   26 :  

 “Mo le fe  usua l l y  went  in to  the  Gupta  res idence  

w i th  a  l igh t  b rown lea the r  back pack tha t  he  

wou ld  car ry  w i th  h im.   The p i c tu re  o f  the  brown 

lea the r  back pack  s im i la r  to  the  one car r ied  by  

Mole fe  i s  a t tached,  Annexure  W1-16. ”  

 Can you go to  tha t?   That  you f ind  a t  pages 55.  

MR MOLEFE:   D id  he  say s im i la r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry?  20 

MR MOLEFE:   D id  he  say s im i la r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  so .   

MR MOLEFE:   He is  no t  100% s im i la r.   That  i s  jus t  a  back 

pack.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  tha t  you f ind  sor ry  a t  page 66.   

D id  you have a  s im i la r  b rown lea ther  back pack  to  tha t  

one?  

MR MOLEFE:   No t  l i ke  th is  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id  you have the  one tha t  you have  

got  on  the  cha i r  next  to  you?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  i t  was th is  one.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  was tha t  one?  

MR MOLEFE:   My  t rus ted  bag,  yes .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There  we go .  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t ,  so  tha t  i s  a  b rown lea the r  

back pack.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  th is  i s  a  ja ,  i t  i s  a  b rown lea ther  back  

pack.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And was tha t ,  i s  tha t  in  fac t  i t  looks  

qu i te  worn .   Was i t  the  same back pack tha t  you had a t  the  

t ime?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Cha i rpe rson I  have been everywhere  

w i th  th is  bag.   I  am surpr i sed tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  i s  l i ke  my br ie fcase.   I t  i s  a lso  

fa l l ing  apar t .   

MR MOLEFE:   I  am surpr ised tha t  i t  i s  accused 2  a t  the  

Commiss ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You see,  the  prob lem might  be  tha t  where  
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ever  you went ,  you went  w i th  i t .   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   And I  s t i l l  do .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  bu t  ear l ie r  on  you . . .  I  thought  you 

sa id  someth ing  l i ke  look ing  a t ,  I  do  no t  know wh ich  page 

you were  look ing  a t ,  look ing  a t  I  th ink  one o f  the  bags,  

p ic tu res  o f  the  bags.   That  i s  what  you sa id .   I t  i s  no t  

s im i la r,  bu t  the  impress ion  was,  t he  impress ion  tha t  I  go t  

was tha t  you were  say ing  there  is  some resemblance,  i t  10 

m ight  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:    No,  th is  i s  a  back pack.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is  no t  qu i te  s im i la r  to  th is  one.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  tha t  is  a  b rown lea the r  back 

pack I  suppose.  

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l ,  tha t  i s  why I  was say ing  th i s  i s  a  back 

pack.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

MR MOLEFE:   So  th is  i s  jus t  an  [ ind is t inc t ]  back pack.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  Mr  Mole fe ,  I  suppose i f  i t  was not  

so  ser ious i t  m igh t  be  funny,  bu t  do  I  unders tand you to  be  

say ing  tha t  tha t  back pack tha t  you have jus t  shown the  

Cha i rperson,  you r  t rus tee  brown lea ther  back pact  was in  
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fac t  the  same one tha t  you had . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  in  a l l  l i ke l ihood i t  was th is  one.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The same one?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  shou ld  we not  have a  p ic tu re  o f  th is  

one,  so  we can compare  w i th  the  p ic tu res  here .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   No,  I  am say ing  i t  was l i ke ly  to  have been 

th is  one.   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  then a t  27 :  

 “On o ther  occas ions . . . ”  

 Sor ry,  26 :  

 “Mo le fe  usua l l y  went  in to  the  Gupta  res idence  

w i th  h is  l igh t  b rown lea ther  back pack tha t  he  

wou ld  car ry  w i th  h im. ”  

 We have dea l t  w i th  tha t .   27 :  

 “On o the r  occas ions Mole fe  wou ld  go  i n to  the  20 

Gupta  res idence w i thout  h is  lea the r  back pack.   

On those occas ions he  wou ld  then re-appear  

car ry ing  a  spor ts  bag wh ich  appear  to  conta in  

someth ing .   I  say  th is  because the  shape o f  

the  bag . . . ”  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  may have missed someth ing .   26  th is  

w i tness re fers  to  a  l igh t  b rown lea ther  back pack.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  descr ip t ion  is  the  same as the  bag  

you say you,  i s  p robab ly  the  one tha t  you were  car ry ing?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   When he sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   No ,  the  descr ip t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   L igh t  b rown lea ther  back pack.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  f i t s  tha t  desc r ip t ion .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja ,  bu t  h is  ev idence is  tha t  the  bag tha t  he  

saw is  the  one tha t  he  took the  p ic tu re  o f  here .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   So  le t  us  go  w i th  the  descr ip t ion  tha t  i s  in  

th is  p ic tu re  then because tha t  i s  h is  ev idence.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  am so r ry,  Mr  Myburgh,  I  

in te r rup ted  you.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   So he says a t  27 :  

 “On o the r  occas ions Mole fe  wou ld  go  i n to  the  

Gupta  res idence w i thout  h is  lea the r  back pack.   

On those occas ions he  wou ld  then re-appear  

car ry ing  a  spor ts  bag wh ich  appear  to  conta in  
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someth ing .   I  say  th is  because the  shape o f  

the  bag suggested i t  had contents . ”  

 You want  to  respond to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   The shape o f  the  bag suggested?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  had contents .   

MR MOLEFE:   I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t  Cha i r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  th is  pa ragraph you do not  reca l l?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then he says a t  28 :  

 “On 18 January  2012,  Mole fe  i ns t ruc ted  me to  10 

de l i ver  an  empty  lea the r  car r ie r  bag to  AJ a t  

the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  Compute rs  i n  Midrand.   I  

d id  so  and handed the  bag to  AJ.   The bag was 

opened when i t  was handed to  me.   A p ic tu re  

o f  the  brown lea ther  car r ie r  bag s im i la r  to  the  

one  d iscussed here  i s  a t tached as  Annexure  

W117. ”  

 We go to  tha t .   That  you f ind  a t  page 69.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  do  you  say to  tha t?  20 

MR MOLEFE:   I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  we go back to  28 ,  the  dr ive r  says:  

 “A copy o f  the  . . . ”  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wi l l  you  ar range fo r  somebody in  your  

team to  wr i te  fo r  example  in  regard  to  the  bag,  p i c tu re  o f  

the  bag a t  page 69 Annexure  W117,  so  tha t  i f  I  read  th is  

parag raph,  i t  i s  easy fo r  me to  know th is  i s  the  one  

because i t  i s  no t  wr i t ten  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  perhaps I  re fe r red  you to  the  

wrong page.   Tha t  has been done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The W1-17.   That  i s  a  cover  page to  

each o f  these th ings.   That  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 68.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  do  apo log ise .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   Oh,  you see i t  i s  confus ing  

because you expect  the  p ic tu re  to  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   To  be  on page 68  when you look a t  th is .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  maybe what  shou ld  be  done  is  to  

move,  to  move th is  to  69  or  to  f ind  a  way to  make sure  tha t  

i f  I  look  a t ,  i f  I  am look ing  fo r  th is  p ic tu re  and I  come to  68  20 

and I  see there  i s  no  p ic tu re ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  there  is  

no th ing ,  and then  I  go  back.  

 Or  maybe there  shou ld  be  a  re ference to  say I  must  

look  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Over  the  page.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Over  the  page,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t ,  we w i l l  work  on  tha t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know,  two months  a f te r  now i f  I  am 

work ing  on  th i s  I  m igh t  be  confused.   

MR MOLEFE:   Jus t  ou t  o f  cur ios i t y,  does h is  d ia ry  conf i rm 

these t r ips?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE:   Does h i s  d ia ry  conf i rms these t r ips?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your  pardon?  Wel l ,  I  wanted to  

take  you to  the  las t  por t ion  o f  paragraph 28:  10 

 “A copy o f  the  l og  book ent ry  conf i rm ing the  

t r ip  . . . ”  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Oh ,  I  see.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   “Under taken  to  the  o f f i ces  o f  Sahara  

Computers  i s  a t tached as  W1-18. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Okay.   I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No reco l lec t ion .   Then a t  29 :  

 “ I  reca l l  tha t  I  a lso  met  AJ in  the  presence o f  

Mo le fe  in  January  2012,  a f te r  the  A f r i can  

Nat iona l  Congress confe rence in  B loemfonte in ,  20 

when I  co l lec ted  Mole fe  f rom the  a i rpor t  in  

B loemfonte in . ”  

 You have any issue w i th  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   That  he  saw AJ a t  the  a i rpo r t  in  

B loemfonte in?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   He met  AJ,  a lso  met  AJ in  the  

presence o f  Mo le fe .   

MR MOLEFE:   No ,  I  have no reco l l ec t ion  o f  what  happened  

a t  the  a i rpo r t  in  B loemfonte in  in  January  2014.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  I  m igh t  jus t  have a  second?  You  

have no reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then a t  30 :  

 “ I  a t tach  a  photograph o f  AJ as  Annexure  W1-

19 as  conf i rmat ion  tha t  he  is  the  person tha t  I  10 

have been in t roduced to  as  AJ. ”  

 I  p resume you do  not  have any issue w i th  tha t?    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t  and then peop le  recogn ized a t  

Gupta  res idence:  

 “Dur ing  v is i t s  t o  the  Gupta  res idence on 

severa l  occas ions I  have amongst  o thers  seen  

the  fo l low ing peop le  ou ts ide  the  Gupta  

res idence,  name ly  Min i s te r  Ma lus i  G igaba,  

fo rmer  Min is te r  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  20 

Enterp r ises ,  and Mr  S iyabonga Mahlangu 

spec ia l  adv iso r  to  Min i s te r  G igaba. ”  

 What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot  remember  be ing  a t  the  same t ime 

a t  the  Gupta  res idence w i th  Min is te r  G igaba or  w i th  Mr  
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S iyabonga Mahlangu.   I ,  no  tha t  I  cannot  remember.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   One th ing  I  perhaps neg lec ted  to  ask  

you,  ear l ie r  on  i n  your  tes t imony  when d i scuss ing  your  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Guptas  and your  v i s i t s  to  the  Gupta  

res idence,  who wou ld  you see there?  

MR MOLEFE:   Mr  AJ.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  bu t  who e lse?  

MR MOLEFE:   He is  the  person tha t  I  was d iscuss ing  the  

bank w i th .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry?  10 

MR MOLEFE:   He is  the  person tha t  I  was d iscuss ing  the  

bank w i th .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  so  I  wou ld  hard l y  ever  see anybody  

e lse .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   On those occas ions when you  d id  see 

someone e l se ,  who were  they?  

MR MOLEFE:   Somet imes h i s  b ro ther  wou ld  pop in ,  phone 

h im or  h is  w i fe  o r  h is  ch i ld ren .   Ja ,  they wou ld  pop in  bu t  

the  person I  rea l l y  saw and d i scussed w i th ,  was Mr  AJ.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  do I  take  i t  to  be  then your  

ev idence tha t  you never  saw any po l i t i c ian  du r ing  your  

v is i t s  the re ,  tha t  you never  saw any . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE:   Perhaps when  there  were  funct ions.   

Perhaps when there  were  funct ions,  bu t  ja  I  do  no t  
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remember  be ing  there  when the re  was no funct ion  and  

see ing  …[aud io  cu t ]  Shareho lder  Min is te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  and then there is a heading 

saying Molefe in possession of  cash.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Paragraph 32.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“One day whi lst  at tending a meet ing in the 

main board room at  the Carl ton Cent re 10 

Molefe asked me to fetch his cel lu lar phone 

f rom his bag in his off ice.”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“As inst ructed I  went to  h is off ice and when I  

opened h is l ight  brown leather backpack to  

take out  the phone I  was surpr ised to see 

that  the bag was more than hal f  fu l l  wi th  

bundles of  R200 notes.   I  ca l led Mbele to  

Molefe’s off ice and I  showed her the cash in  20 

his bag. ”  

Now what do you say to that? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  have no recol lect ion of  that  incident  and I  

just  wonder i f  he did report  – he did wri te i t  in  his incident  

report  and i f  he reported i t  General  Thoga but  I  have no 
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recol lect ion of  that  incident .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  let  us go through this presumably 

you did have meet ings on occasion in  the main board room 

at  the Carl ton Centre? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you had lef t  your cel l  phone in your  

bag would i t  – might  you t ry and retr ieve i t  by asking 

somebody in the posi t ion of  your dr iver to do so? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  might  have yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Is i t  possible that  that  happened? 10 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  is possible that  I  might  have asked him to 

ret r ieve a cel l  phone dur ing the t imes that  I  was work ing wi th 

him f rom my bag.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   From your l ight  brown leather 

backpack? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So the only issue is you say wel l  i f  I  

had asked him to do that  he would not  have come across 

these bundles of  R200 notes.  

MR MOLEFE:   No not  in the manner that  he descr ibed them 20 

as being this much and stacked and so on and so forth.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  he says:  

“ I  was surpr ised to see the bag was more 

than hal f  fu l l  wi th bundles of  R200 notes.”  

MR MOLEFE:   No not  hal f  fu l l .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  would you… 

MR MOLEFE:   I  have no recol lect ion of  th is incident  where 

he says he found hal f  fu l l  bag – hal f  fu l l  – my bag hal f  fu l l  

wi th money I  have no recol lect ion of  that  speci f ic incident .   

And on top of  that  i t  is – I  never carr ied cash l ike that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now he says:  

“ I  cal led Mbele to Molefe’s off ice and showed 

her the cash in the bag. ”  

Who is that? 

MR MOLEFE:   That  was my PA.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  that  I  have your evidence 

correct ly.   Your ev idence is you never  kept  money or  any real  

quant i ty of  money.  

MR MOLEFE:   Come again.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You never kept  money or any real  

quant i ty of  money in your l ight  – in  the bag you have shown 

us? 

MR MOLEFE:   Not  ha l f  fu l l  just  maybe i f  there was cash. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Quarter.  

MR MOLEFE:   Sorry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Quarter fu l l?  

MR MOLEFE:   No maybe a R1000.00 maybe R2000,00 I  do 

not  know how – how that  would f i l l  the bag.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then in paragraph 33.  
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“Upon his return f rom the meet ing I  

approached Molefe about the fact  that  he 

was carrying that  much cash in his bag which 

I  considered a safety r isk.   Molefe was 

vis ibly upset  wi th  my comment and told me 

that  i t  was none of  my business.”  

You say to that? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  have no recol lect ion of  that  and wonder i f  

because he says i t  is a safety or a securi ty r isk whether th is  

threat  – securi ty  because that  is  where he worked – i t  10 

ident i f ied a threat  according to him was properly recorded 

and discussed with his superiors.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Mr Molefe how does one deal  wi th 

th is?  I  mean here is a dr iver and you say real ly that  90% of  

the statement you do not  dispute i t  is only when the word 

cash real ly enters the equat ion that  you say you do not  have 

a recol lect ion.   You say you could have been in a meet ing in  

the main board room.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am sorry Mr Myburgh I  am sure you 

do not  intend i t  there are a number of  areas where he said 20 

he has no recol lect ion.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what you – what you are saying is t rue 

to the extent  that  you mean he does not  dispute.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  am . .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Most  of  these ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  that  a lso includes when he says he has 

no recol lect ion.   So – so I  thought I  would just  ment ion that .  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja there is no recol lect ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  But  basical ly because you do not  have 

a recol lect ion you cannot dispute but  you – there is nothing 

that  you real ly ser iously  d ispute for  most  of  the part  of  what 

he says.  

MR MOLEFE:   No I  d ispute that… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   This part icu lar par t .  

MR MOLEFE:   Of  the cash.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the cash ja.   No I  . .  

MR MOLEFE:   Where he says he saw cash.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Where he says i f  he wants or i f  you – i f  h is 

desire was to imply that  I  lef t  the Gupta residence wi th cash 

that  I  d ispute.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no that  is f ine but  other than that… 

MR MOLEFE:   But  then I  not ice.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   That  he never went that  far.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  other than that  in terms of  what Mr 

Myburgh has taken you through you do not  have any ser ious 

issues.  
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MR MOLEFE:   No I  mean this  narrat ive is bui l t  on real  facts 

that  were happening.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Then Mr Myburgh I  interrupted you 

whi le you wanted… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To put  a proposi t ion to Mr Molefe.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes perhaps I  can re-style i t .   In 

re lat ion to th is part icular incident  that  he recounts here 10 

would you accept  that  i f  he had come across a lot  o f  money 

in your bag i t  would not  have been – i t  would have been a 

natural  th ing perhaps for him to have raised i t  wi th your PA.  

MR MOLEFE:   No.    Let  me put  i t  l ike this because he cal ls i t  

a securi ty threat .   I f  he had come across a securi ty threat  he 

would not  have ra ised i t  wi th my PA he would have ra ised – 

he would have and should have ra ised i t  wi th his superiors 

and in  th is  instance i t  was Genera l  Thoga and there would 

have been a proper incident  report .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes but  you see what he says is that  20 

you were upset  and you told him that  i t  was none of  your  

business.   He raised i t  wi th you direct ly.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  i t  d id not  matter  that  I  was upset  about  i t  

because h is job was securi ty and i f  he ident i f ied a securi ty  

threat  there would have been a part icular protocol  to deal  
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wi th i t .   And so – and so I  cannot recal l  the incident  I  am just 

saying i f  indeed i t  d id happen this is what would have 

happened.  He would not  or should – or – ja he would not  

have raised i t  wi th the PA because he knew that  that  would 

start  a rumour and exacerbate the threat  which means that  i f  

he raises i t  wi th the PA the PA might  then say to somebody 

else or the next  one you wi l l  not  bel ieve what Mr so and so 

told me today and then i t  wi l l  be a rumour that  goes around.  

And so a person of  his t ra in ing and his responsibi l i t ies the 

responsible manner to have handled i t  would have been 10 

especial ly that  he speci f ical ly says that  i t  was a securi ty  

threat  or a securi ty r isk would have been to raise i t  wi th his  

superiors who would then have cal led me in and said we 

have a problem how do we deal  wi th i t .   That  never 

happened.  That  never – that  never happened.  However 

having said that  I  – I   -  ja I  d ispute that  th is cash incident  

happened. 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Just  that  I  understand i t  so this your 

backpack that  you have shown us wi th your – i f  you had lef t  

your  ce l l  phone in your  backpack would that  backpack then 20 

be in your off ice?  Is that  – he say I  went to his off ice 

because as you said i f  you had lef t  your phone and you were 

in a meet ing you might  ask your dr iver  to  go and fetch i t  f rom 

your off ice.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Is that  r ight?   

MR MOLEFE:   I f  I  had lef t  i t  in my off ice and I  said go and 

fetch my phone – I  mean this is hypothet ical ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And what your  – I  take i t  your  

secretary or your PA worked close to your off ice? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes r ight  next  door.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then at  paragraph 34  

“ I  furthermore f requent ly deposi ted cash 

amounts on behal f  of  Molefe at  ABSA, 

Standard Bank and Nedbank in and around 10 

the Carl ton Cent re in var ious bank accounts. ”  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“Usual ly between the 28t h of  the month and 

the 5 t h of  the fol lowing month and somet imes 

also around the middle of  the month.”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What do you say about that? 

MR MOLEFE:   I t  may or  may not  have happened on some 

occasions that  maybe I  asked him to make a deposi t  for me.   20 

I  cannot recal l  what  i t  was for – wi th di fferent  th ings.   Maybe 

society or I  do not  know, I  cannot  recal l  but  ja that  may or  

may not  have happened.  I  am not  sure about the f requency 

that  he is ta lk ing about  but  ja  i t  is t rue that  on one or  two 

occasions I  may have sent  him to go to the bank.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   You drew cash to deposi t  cash.  

MR MOLEFE:   No not  necessari ly.  Somet imes when we go to  

a bur ia l  society and people donate cash and then I  have to 

take i t  and bank i t .   Things l ike that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  would i t  not… 

MR MOLEFE:   Or  somet imes i f  I  am doing i t  for somebody or  

– for whatever reasons I  had personal  reasons.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  why not  just  make an electronic 

t ransfer? 

MR MOLEFE:   No but  i f  i t  was cash that  needed to go to the 10 

bank you cannot deposi t  e lect ronical ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what  sort  o f  th ings would th is  relate 

to then? 

MR MOLEFE:   L ike the society – you know society? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Right .   What type of  society? 

MR MOLEFE:   Var ious societ ies – var ious societ ies.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Right  what other – what other th ings? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot  recal l  Chai r  what other reasons I  

may have had to have had cash wi th me but… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  there could have been… 20 

MR MOLEFE:   But  – ja there could have been for a number 

of  reasons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was that  bur ia l  society of  which you were 

t reasurer or something? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  



10 MARCH 2021 – DAY 358 
 

Page 228 of 258 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   At  that  t ime? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes at  the t ime yes I  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  What was i t  cal led? 

MR MOLEFE:   Mapala.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ma? 

MR MOLEFE:   Mapala 

CHAIRPERSON:   M-a-p-h-a- l -a.  

MR MOLEFE:   L-m-a.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOLEFE:   L- l -a.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   p-h-a.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   l -a.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bur ial  society at  the end.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja i t  is actual ly off ic ia l ly i t  is  cal led 

Investment Society so i t  is – i t  is Llaphala -  L laphala  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   Was my grandmother ’s  mother so i t  is al l  the 

chi ldren that  had descended f rom that  root .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   We have a bur ia l  society and I  was the 

t reasurer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And you had the t reasurer.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Okay.   I t  is st i l l  there,  i t  st i l l  exists 

the bur ial  society.  

MR MOLEFE:   I t  st i l l  exists but  we have not  met since Covid 

and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MOLEFE:   There is a big debate now about  what  we are 

going to do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then the dr iver goes to say:  

“The deposi t  s l ips and account detai ls had 10 

been completed by Molefe. ”  

Is that  what you would do i f  you required of  him to deposi t  

cash? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:  

“The cash amounts would be handed to me 

by Molefe ’s PA in envelopes which Molefe 

had handed to her wi th the instruct ion that  I  

should do the deposi t . ”  

Would you agree wi th that? 20 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“ I  handed the deposi t  s l ip to ei ther Molefe ’s  

PA or Molefe himsel f  af ter doing the deposi ts  

at  the bank.”  
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Would you agree wi th that? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And he says – or the dr iver says at  35 

“ I  would count  the money or deposi t  i t  var ied 

in amounts but  usual ly several  thousand rand 

at  a t ime.”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes several  thousand yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   So i t  seems that  the main area 

of  disputes then or  dispute is  27 the sports bag that  you – 

you deny that  you would leave the Gupta residence – you 10 

would reappear carrying a sports  bag which appeared to 

contain something.   You deny that  you ever instructed the 

dr iver to del iver an empty leather bag to Ajay and then you 

deny this issue in  relat ion to the ce l l  phone and money being 

found in the bag.   Those are the main areas of  dispute.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  otherwise by and large I  th ink as 

the Chairperson has asked you – you do not  seem to take 

part icular issue wi th the statement,  is that  – would that  be a 

fai r  summary? 20 

MR MOLEFE:   Other than to say that  the threats that  he 

talks about  I  have no knowledge of  and I  not ice that  you say 

that  we do not  have a problem with the rest  of  the statement.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  was – yes I  am talking about the 

parts that  I  have taken you to.  
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   Is th is is – As I  understand i t  i t  

was reported in the press that  there was an at tempt on – on 

Witness 1’s l i fe a few days ago.  

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  – a few days ago.   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So have you got  any idea I  mean the 

person who made this statement is obviously in  a di ff icul t  

posi t ion in his l i fe  the dr iver.   There is  threats being made on 

his l i fe.   I t  is a sets out  the threats that  gave r ise to his  

dr iver ’s evidence being given in camera.   I t  – can I  ask you 10 

to address the quest ion of  why – why would somebody put  

themselves into this posi t ion i f  thei r  version was s imply a 

pack of  l ies? 

MR MOLEFE:   Which – which posi t ion? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The posi t ion of  fear ing for your l i fe.  

MR MOLEFE:   Who is threatening his l i fe? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  the point  is that  th is person and I  

am not  suggest ing Mr Molefe i t  is you but  what the – what  

th is dr iver has done… 

MR MOLEFE:    Because I  rea l ly do not  understand that  you 20 

are saying that  because he made the statement his  l i fe i s  

now threatened?  By whom? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  you have seen what  he says 

about the threats that  were made that  caused the DCJ to 

al low his evidence to be given in camera.   You have also 
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heard about reports that  there was an at tempt on his l i fe a 

few days ago.    

MR MOLEFE:   Yes Chair  I  would real ly prefer  not  to be 

drawn into these threats and the reasons for the threats and 

– because I  real ly do not  know anything about i t  and I  a lso 

do not  wish to speculate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Mr Myburgh wanted to  put  a 

di fferent  proposi t ion to you in regard to probabi l i t ies or… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  just  – I  mean why would 

somebody false ly impl icate someone l ike you in 10 

ci rcumstances where they fear for their  l i fe? 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja I  – I  said Chai r  I  could t ry and impute 

mot ive but  that  would ident i fy the wi tness.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  there is mot ive that  I  could impute.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Wel l  I  guess – I  guess that  i f  th is 

statement was fu l l  of  lots of  th ings that  you say are false 

maybe real ly ser ious bad things i t  might  – one might  look at  

i t  in a  certain way but  having gone through the statement 20 

wi th Mr Myburgh having taken you through the statement up 

to just  before he talks about  the threats most  of  the things 

that  he says about you there you do not  ident i fy them as 

things that  somebody would be saying about you that  are 

del iberately fa lse.   There are just  two or three areas… 
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MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where you say wel l  here this is not  t rue.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja so Chai r  the way that  the statement is 

craf ted is that  i t  is general ly t rue except  that  there is th is 

spice of  cash that  gets put  in and – and that  is  c lever ly 

calculated to imply – i t  is not  even real  evidence – to imply 

just  to cast  aspersions that  is what I  do not  understand.   

This statement is  based on things that  are t rue but  i t  is  

designed to cast  aspersions wi thout  even offer ing real  

evidence of  th ings that  – the – the person saw.  I  remember 10 

when he was giving evidence Chair  that  you asked 

“So when you found the money in Mr 

Molefe’s bag did that  money come from the 

Gupta ’s?”  

And he said:  

“No.”  

And so what – when an – when a securi ty guard says my 

pr inciple gave me an empty bag to go and del iver what is the 

purpose of  making such a – such a statement relat ing to an 

empty bag to an august  (?) commission such as this one? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   I  want  to take you then 

to Witness 3.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  aff idavi t  you f ind at  page 122.  
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MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now Witness 3 says when deal ing wi th 

these CPO Services to Minister Gigaba.  

MR MOLEFE:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You would have seen that  he says at  

paragraph 22 at  page 126.  

“That  whi lst  wai t ing in my vehicle for Gigaba 

to return f rom meet ings inside the Gupta 

res idence I  not iced on di fferent  occasions 

people arr iv ing or  leaving the premises that  I  10 

recognised.  Individuals in th is  regard 

included and there you see f i rst ly Mr your 

name Brian Molefe.”  

What do you say to that? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot comment on that  Chai r  I  have no 

recol lect ion.   Actual ly Witness 3 I  even f ind i t  d i ff icul t  to  

speculate about who he is.   So I  do not  know what he is 

ta lk ing about.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  i t  seems to me that  I  mean you 

would accept  that  given the f requency wi th which you went to 20 

the Gupta residence that  i t  was possible that  you would have 

been seen there.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja but… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   By other people.  

MR MOLEFE:   Wi tness 3 was at tached to Mr Gama was he 
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not? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gigaba.  

MR MOLEFE:   Mr  Gigaba ja I  have said I  do not  recal l  being 

at  the same t ime with Mr Gigaba at  the Gupta residence.   

Unless i f  there was maybe a funct ion but  I  cannot recal l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So let  us then turn to paragraph 46 at  

page 130.   Witness 3 says that  th is is under the heading 

Bags received f rom men of  Asian descent  at  Three Rivers 

Lodge. Witness 3 says and th is is at  a t ime when he is 

providing services – CPO services to Mr Anoj  Singh your 10 

CFO.  He says at  46.  

“During Ju ly 2014 Transnet execut ive 

management at tended a week long st rategy 

session at  the Three Rivers Lodge in  

Vereeniging. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Would you accept  that? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“ I  dropped Singh off  at  the venue ear ly in the 20 

week and picked him up on the Fr iday 

af ternoon again.”  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“Whi le I  wai ted for Singh on the Fr iday 
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af ternoon to f in ish at  the session I  not iced 

four men who appeared to be f rom Asian 

descent  ( they looked l ike Chinese men to 

me) standing around a Hyundai  H1 vehicle in 

the parking area.   Two of  the men appeared 

to be busy wi th  a conversat ion on a cel l  – 

cel lu lar phone. ”  

Any comment on that? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  deny that  I  ever met any Chinese people or 

Asian men at  the Three Rivers Lodge during Transnet 10 

st rategy planning sessions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   49.  

“The next  th ing I  not iced how the two men 

(who spoke on the cel l  phone) took two 

luggage bags f rom the vehicle,  one black and 

the other maroon and went inside the Lodge 

area where the execut ive management  

meet ing was held. ”  

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot comment on – I  cannot comment on 

that  because that  is what he saw I  – I  d id not  meet the 20 

Chinese people at  the or  Asian men in – at  Three Rivers 

Lodge.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   

“At  around 15h00 I  received a sms f rom 

Singh request ing me to come to the 
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conference room where the meet ing was 

held.   As I  entered the room the two men who 

took the luggage bags into the Lodge were in  

the room together  wi th Molefe and Singh.”  

MR MOLEFE:   I  deny that  that  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  you were present  at  th is  

conference wi th Mr Singh? 

MR MOLEFE:    Yes there was – al though I  do not  recal l  the 

exact  dates but  I  do recal l  that  we once or twice had a 

st rategy planning sessions at  the Three Rivers Lodge.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And when you had these weeklong 

sessions I  presume do they f in ish on a Fr iday? 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   At  what t ime would you f in ish up 

typical ly wi th the conference? 

MR MOLEFE:   Wel l  i t  depends.   I t  depends on our  agenda 

for the day.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You presumably give people t ime to be 

able to t ravel  back.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In dayl ight  hours.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And this is  in the winter t ime you 

know? 

MR MOLEFE:   This was in the winter t ime? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes wel l  i t  was July.  

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   2014.  

MR MOLEFE:   Oh ja because i t  was July Chai rperson i t  is  

l ikely that  i t  was winter t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .    

“Singh pointed to the maroon bag. ”  

At  paragraph 50.  

“And requested me to take the bag to our  

vehicle that  being his – Singh’s vehicle. ”  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Aye I  do not  know anything about that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“ I  took the bag and I  put  i t  in the boot  of  the 

vehicle.”  

Then at  paragraph 50.1 over the page; page 131.  

“ I  need to ment ion that  the bag was real ly  

heavy I  however did not  know what i t  

contained at  the t ime. ”  

Sub 2.  

“ I  recognised that  the bag – sorry I  20 

recognised the bag as one of  the luggage 

bags that  the Chinese men had earl ier taken 

into the meet ing room.”  

Have you any comment on that? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot comment on that  – that  is… 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then 51.  

“Whi le I  was seated in our vehicle wai t ing for  

Singh af ter put t ing the maroon luggage bag 

in the boot  of  the vehicle I  saw Molefe’s 

dr iver I  cannot clear ly recal l  i f  i t  was Witness 

1 or a col league pul l ing a black luggage bag 

f rom the same Lodge venue to the vehicle  

that  was used to t ransport  Molefe. ”  

What do you have to say? 

 MR MOLEFE:   I  deny that  I  met the Chinese people or Asian 10 

people at  the Three Rivers Lodge.  However the – the taking 

a bag f rom the Lodge to my car  they have maybe something 

that  one of  my protectors did and that  would have been a 

bag that  I  had come with wi th my clothes.   So I  mean I  wi l l  

deny that  that  bag – i f  there was such a bag that  was carr ied 

f rom the Lodge to my car came from the Chinese people.   I t  

may have been a bag that  I  had come with wi th my clothes 

inside.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes because Witness 3 goes on to say:  

“ I  recognised this bag as the other bag which 20 

the Chinese men had ear l ier taken into the 

meet ing.”  

MR MOLEFE:   No then I  deny that  there was any bag f rom 

the Chinese people that  was given to my protectors.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  so that  we – we understand the 
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facts there are two bags on this version that  are taken into 

the conference centre.   One maroon bag,  one black bag.   On 

this version a maroon bag goes back into Mr Singh’s car  and 

the black bag goes into your car.   You see – you fol low that? 

MR MOLEFE:   Mr Myburgh I  have just  said to you that  that  

incident  as far as I  am concerned never happened.  I  do not  

know where th is guy got  i t  f rom.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Let  us see.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  am not  even in a posi t ion to  speculate about  

th is bag and that  bag and th is guy carr ied that .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .  

MR MOLEFE:   I  mean the next  th ing you wi l l  be saying ah so 

you admit  that  i t  d id happen.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am just  put t ing the facts to you on 

this statement Mr Molefe.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  have denied that  that  incident  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight .   What I  was t ry ing to  get  at  i f  

you just  be a l i t t le bi t  pat ient  p lease is I  want to t rack what  

on this statement  happened to the maroon bag.   I f  you have 

a look at  paragraph 52.  20 

“The next  Monday Singh drove to the Carl ton 

Centre wi th his BMW M3.”  

You know Mr Singh to dr ive a BMW M3? 

MR MOLEFE:   Ja I  just  know he is a BMW guy I  do not  know 

what type.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    

“He lef t  the vehic le in the basement for  the 

week and that  Fr iday af ternoon I  was about 

to take Singh’s vehicle to the car wash.   As 

usual  I  checked that  there was no valuables 

in the boot  that  could go missing.   As I  

opened the boot  I  saw the maroon bag that  I  

had col lected at  the Three Rivers Lodge the 

previous Fr iday.   When I  p icked the bag up I  

real ised that  i t  weighed less than before.   I  10 

opened the bag to see what was inside and I  

not iced a couple of  rol ls of  R200 notes.   I  

sms’d Singh and informed him that  the bag 

was st i l l  in the car.   He immediately came 

down to the basement and col lected the bag 

f rom me.”  

So this is his version as to what happened to the maroon 

bag.   I  suppose the quest ion is  what happened to the black 

bag? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot comment  on that .   There was no 20 

black bag that  went to my car Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight .   So I  want to just  ask you some 

– some more general  quest ions on this.   So the – the 

evidence and I  do not  want to overstate i t  but  the evidence 

of  the money f lows,  him, research that  they have done and I  
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have put  these things in fa i rness to you for the last  three 

days points to a large scale money laundering by  

At  Transnet .    Of  course you r ight  that  ul t imately that  f inding 

would have to  be made by the Chai rperson but  that  is  what  

the evidence points to.    

 And what the ev idence points to  is  that  i t  is the 

procurement system that  was abused by Regiments and Mr 

Essa to fac i l i tate that  money laundering.   

 What the ev idence also appears to point  to is we 

know that  contracts that  you were involved in,  conf inements 10 

that  you were involved in,  that  Mr Singh was involved in and 

Mr Gama to a lesser extent  were contracts that  were used as 

a vehic le for money laundering.   I  have put  al l  of  th is to you.    

MR MOLEFE:   A l l  of  them? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No I  d id not  – I  said some not  al l  

contracts obviously – contracts.  And we have been through 

the evidence.  

 Now assuming that  the Gupta’s  were involved in  

money laundering to an abuse of  the procurement system 

presumably those people that  al lowed that  I  ask you 20 

presumably there would be some kind of  quid pro quo i f  

those people were compl ic i t .   Would you agree wi th me? 

MR MOLEFE:   What d id you say? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  am not  suggest ing when I  put  th is 

proposi t ion to  you that  you were compl ic i t  in the money 
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laundering but  i f  there were Transnet  managers that  were – 

that  enabled i t  presumably they needed to be some kind of  

quid pro quo? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  cannot comment – I  do not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because you see … 

MR MOLEFE:   Is that  an assumpt ion that  you making?  That  

there would have been a quid pro quo? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  I  would ask you to – one assumes 

that  i f  you compl ic i t  in money laundering and you faci l i tat ing 

i t  as a manager you need to get  something in return.  10 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As a general  proposi t ion.   Correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   I  do not  know how those things work Mr 

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So just  leaving Mr Gigaba aside for a  

moment and just  focussing on you and Mr Singh.   He was 

your CFO, correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And when the two of  you to Eskom you 

were replaced – swopped with Mr Gama and Mr Peter? 20 

Correct? 

MR MOLEFE:   Yes,  yes,  yes.   I  th ink that  is what happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja and what these three dr ivers do to a 

greater or lesser extent  is they impl icate al l  of  you in … 

MR MOLEFE:   Who? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   These three dr ivers.   They impl icate al l  

of  you to a greater or lesser extent  in vis i t ing the Gupta ’s 

and that  did not  apply necessari ly  to Mr Gama but  v is i t ing 

the Gupta’s in some instances and… 

MR MOLEFE:   So what do they impl icate me in? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  there is the statement.  

MR MOLEFE:   Ja the – what do they impl icate me in? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  what you – and just  bear wi th me 

for a moment.   They al l  in relat ion to you put  you at  the 

Gupta res idence.   A man gives some evidence about the fact  10 

you say I  deny that  I  came with a pul l  sports bag back to the 

car.   I  deny that  I  gave Ajay Gupta a leather bag.   I  deny that  

there was money in … 

MR MOLEFE:   So what – what do they impl icate me in I  just  

want to understand that? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What they point  to is you carrying 

large amounts of  money certain ly  in relat ion to the cel l  

phone issue.   What I  am trying to get  at  Mr… 

MR MOLEFE:   Ah no.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  20 

MR MOLEFE:   You t ry ing to get  to that  the Gupta ’s gave me 

money? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Just  bear wi th  me for a moment .   What  

we – what we do know is they certainly say d irect ly that  Mr 

Singh received bags of  money and they say Mr Singh took 
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the money to Knox Vaul ts.  

MR MOLEFE:   To? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Knox Vaul t .   You did not  have a safety 

deposi t  there? 

MR MOLEFE:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Singh’s replacement Mr Peter 

dr iver ’s also give l imi ted evidence about  h im going to the 

Gupta residence but  they also speak about bags going to the 

Knox Vaul t .   That  was his replacement.  

 You have read no doubt or l istened to the dr iver ’s  10 

evidence in  relat ion to Mr Gama where that  dr iver  g ives 

evidence of  lots of  cash being found in relat ion to Mr Gama.  

 You have seen that  ev idence.  

 What t ies the four of  you together is that  you had at  

least  some connect ion wi th the Gupta’s.   You had by far the 

st rongest  one.   And that  there is ei ther d i rect  evidence on 

large money t ransact ions and co l lect ions or  ind irect  

evidence l ike in your case where the dr iver says he had a 

hal f  fu l l  bag of  R200 notes.  

MR MOLEFE:   But  he speci f ica l ly says i t  d id not  come from 20 

the Gupta ’s and I  deny that  there was ever a large sum of  

money in my bag.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Were you ever  given money by Mr 

Singh? 

MR MOLEFE:   No I  cannot recal l  that .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   When you say you cannot recal l  might  

you have? 

MR MOLEFE:   No I  cannot recal l  that .   I  mean maybe for 

lunch or something I  do not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No that  is not  what I  am asking Mr 

Molefe.  

MR MOLEFE:   No I  was never given – l ike how much? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  you tel l  me.  

MR MOLEFE:   No I  was never given money by Mr Singh 

unless i f  you are referr ing to maybe we were somewhere or I  10 

needed a R100.00 for lunch or  I  do not  know.   But  I  was 

never given money by Mr Singh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Just  on th is issue of  – of  

replacements.   I  mean you have seen the dr ivers statements 

in re lat ion to Mr Peter.   I f  my memory serves me correct ly he 

took him on I  th ink i t  is 15 occasions to a restaurant  in  

Turffontein where he had lunch wi th Mr Essa.  

MR MOLEFE:   I  have not  seen that  no.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  let  me perhaps take you there.   

We were deal ing wi th – wi th Witness 3 let  me take you to 20 

that  – to that  paragraph.  

MR MOLEFE:   So you say Witness 3… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am sorry we normal ly take a short  

adjournment af ter  two hours we have been here for three – 

just  over three hours now maybe we should have a ten 
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minutes adjournment.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  us take just  ten minutes 

adjournment.   We wi l l  resume at  twenty f ive past  f ive.   We 

adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.   Your  m ic .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you .   Do you s t i l l  have the  10 

bund le  BB-14(d)  open,  do  you?   

MR MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  sa id  I  jus t  re fe r  you to  the  one 

paragraph tha t  you quest ioned.   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  

page 133?  

MR MOLEFE :    O f  th is  one,  BB-3?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The one . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    14(d) ,  the  one we have been in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The one we were  us ing  be fore  the  break.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.   Page?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 133.   You w i l l  see  a t  pa rag raph 

64 tha t . . .  tha t  he  t ranspor ted  Mr  P i ta  on  approx imate ly  15  

occas ions to  th i s  res taurant  in  Tur f fon te in  fo r  meet ing  w i th  

Mr  Essa.  

MR MOLEFE :    Page 133?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   They wou ld  have ex tended  

lunches and they wou ld  dr ink  a  lo t  o f  a lcoho l .   There  aga in ,  

you see Mr  Essa fea tur ing  prominent ly,  no t  so?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    DCJ,  we have no fu r ther  quest ions 

fo r  Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    Oh,  he  j us t  wanted to  show me tha t  

parag raph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Yes.   Thank you.   We a re  go ing  to  

ad journ  bu t  you –  ar rangements  w i l l  be  made and I  am 

inc l ined to  th ink  tha t  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  se t t lement  

agreement ,  you may have to  come back bu t  I  w i l l  a l low the  

Lega l  Team to  compose –  teams f rom both  s ides to  d iscuss  

i t  bu t  i t  seems to  me tha t  m ight  be  des i rab le  in  wh ich  case,  

to  the  ex ten t  tha t  your  counse l  m ight  w ish  to  re -examine,  

tha t  cou ld  be  done a t  tha t  s tage.   Is  tha t  f ine?  

COUNSEL :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  d id  you w ish  to  re -examine today i f  20 

you p lan  to?  

COUNSEL :    Cha i r,  I  have not  consu l ted  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  

about  the  need fo r  re -examinat ion .  

MR MOLEFE :    Okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Then we can  

hear  la te r  on  i f  you  th ink  there  i s  a  need.  
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COUNSEL :    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cou ld  make the  request  then.  

COUNSEL :    [No  aud ib le  rep ly ]  [m icrophone not  sw i tched 

on]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you very  much  

Mr  Mole fe  fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  g ive  ev idence.   As  I  say,  

you probab ly  m ight  come back bu t  your  lega l  team and the  

Commiss ion ’s  Lega l  Team wi l l  ta lk  about  the  par t  tha t  

remains  tha t  you  wanted to  ge t  a  chance to  look  a t  and 

then we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there  bu t  thank you very  much fo r  10 

ava i l ing  yourse l f .  

MR MOLEFE :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  go ing  to  ad jou rn  fo r  the  day and  

tomorrow morn ing  we w i l l  s ta r t  a t  ha l f -past  n ine  and I  w i l l  

hea r  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence tomorrow.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .   I  am sor ry.   I  th ink ,  

Mr  Myburgh,  i s  there  no t  someth ing  you are  fo rge t t ing  tha t  20 

the  secre tary  wan ted to  say.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  ja . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You to  dea l  w i t h .   I  am sor ry.   I t  shou ld  

no t  take  long.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  I  do  apo log ise  fo r  hav ing  
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fo rgo t ten  about  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mole fe ,  there  i s  one th ing  tha t  I  

want  to  ra ise  w i th  you.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  i s .   Yesterday you sa id  tha t  

–  we were  speak ing ,  as  I  reca l l ,  about  Mr  J iyane.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Or  someone who you sa id  cou ld  g ive  

ev idence.  10 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i t  was  in  tha t  contex t  tha t  you  

sa id :    

“ I  w i l l  g ive  h im your  ce l l  phone number,  Cha i r.   

Because the  secre tary  i s  no t  very  he lp fu l  

because he has  issues.   I  th ink  i t  has  to  do  

w i th  the  fac t  tha t  he  once los t  a  tender  and 

los t  the  cour t  case. . . ”  

 You remember  say ing  tha t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now you are  speak ing  o f  the  cur ren t  

Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion?  

MR MOLEFE :    Reverend Malese la?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  i t  i s  P ro fessor  Malese la .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    You unders tand the  ser iousness o f  

what  you sa id  about  h im? 

MR MOLEFE :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    “He is  no t  very  he lp fu l  because he  

has issues.   I  th ink  i t  has  to  do  w i th  the  fac t  

tha t  he  once los t  a  tender  and los t  the  cour t  

case. . . ”    

 What  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  I  do  th ink  so  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE :    I f  I  can  exp la in?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes?  

MR MOLEFE :    P ro fessor  Malese la  was pa r t  o f  a  

consor t ium o f  Weste rn  House tha t  was b idd ing  fo r  a  

nuc lea r  p ro jec t  a t  Eskom.   Western  House is  an  Amer i can  

nuc lea r  company tha t  was b idd ing  fo r  work  a t  Koeberg  and  

they los t  tha t  dea l  be fore  I  a r r i ved a t  Eskom.  

 When I  a r r i ved a t  Eskom,  he  approached me 

numerous t imes to  in te rvene in  the i r  favour.   Eventua l l y,  

Weste rn  House went  to  cour t .   The mat te r  went  as  fa r  as  20 

the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t .   I t  was he ld  by  yourse l f ,  ac tua l l y  

Cha i rperson,  a t  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t .  

 And I  th ink  s ince  tha t  t ime,  Pro fessor  Malese la  

has go t  a  someth ing  to  g r ind  w i th  me because the  way I  

in te rpre ted  the  subpoenas and the  no t ices  as  they came 
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one a f te r  anothe r,  no t  respond ing  to  our  cor respondence 

when we asked about  what  mat te r  we a re  coming to  ta lk  

about .   We comp la in t  about  the  fac t  tha t  the  Commiss ion  

was not  respons ive .    

 My fee l ing  was because o f  the  Weste rn  House  

mat te r,  P ro fessor  Malese la  i s  no t  tak ing  i t  ou t  dur ing  –  now 

dur ing  the  Commiss ion  and tha t  h is  behav iou r,  cer ta in ly,  

towards me,  in  the  contex t  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  i s  in fo rmed  

by  h is  d issa t is fac t ion  tha t  I  was not  ab le  to  in te rvene on  

h is  beha l f  on  the  Weste rn  House mat te r.   That  i s  how I  fe l t .    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  Mole fe ,  jus t  so  tha t  I  

unders tand th is .   You say –  your  –  you had bad 

exper iences w i th  Pro fessor  Malese la  a t  the  Commiss ion .   

In  what  respect?  

MR MOLEFE :    Perhaps my a t to rney can exp la in .   I  mean,  

when we rece ived  the  subpoena . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes?  

MR MOLEFE :    When we rece ived the  subpoena in  

December,  fo r  example ,  we –  the  subpoena d id  no t  say  

whethe r  i t  was a  Transnet  o r  Eskom mat te r.   And we were  20 

not  su re  what  i t  was about .    

 In  fac t ,  we were  s t i l l  wa i t ing  on  submi t t ing  the  

documents  tha t  were  requ i red  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  10  fo r  

bo th  Transnet  and Eskom.  

 And then we go t  the  subpoena and then the 
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Commiss ion  went  dead.   They d id  no t  te l l  us  whethe r  i t  was  

Transnet  o r  Eskom.   We wro te  numerous le t te rs  ask ing :   

What  a re  we coming to  appear  here  fo r?   And those were  

no t  answered,  r igh t  th rough December  and January.  

 We appeared he re  on  the  15 t h  o f  January,  a f te r  

hav ing  been to ld  –  perhaps about  a  week before  tha t  i t  was 

indeed go ing  to  be  on  Eskom.   And  on ly  the  documents  tha t  

were  g iven to  us ,  were  g i ven to  us  about  a  week be fore  we 

came.  

 On the  15 t h  when  we ar r i ved here ,  the  f i rs t  th ing 10 

he sa id  was:   Wel l ,  we jus t  go t  an  ind i ca t ion  o f . . .   I  th ink  

there  was even a  meet ing  w i th  yourse l f ,  Cha i rpe rson,  in  

chambers  to  d i scuss the  fac t  tha t  the  Commiss ion  had not  

ind ica ted  what  th is  mat te r  was go ing  to  be  about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  cannot  remember. . .   Wel l ,  counse l  w i l l  

normal ly  come and see me in  chambers  bu t  I  cannot  

remember  whethe r  i t  was about  tha t  o r  no t .  

MR MOLEFE :    I  am not  the  on ly  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may have been.   I  do  no t  know.  

MR MOLEFE :    [ laughs]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may have been.   I  do  no t  know.   H ’m? 

MR MOLEFE :    Yes,  bu t  then we –  in  the  end,  I  remember  

us  s i t t ing  around the  tab le  and Advocate  Masuku say ing  to  

Mr  Mole fe ,  a t to rney Mole fe ,  tha t :   Perhaps you shou ld  wr i te  

a  le t te r  d i rec t l y  to  the  Cha i rperson.   And tha t  i s  what  we  
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d id .   And tha t  i s  eventua l l y  how we got  a  response.    

 But  our  co r respondence to  the  Secre ta ry  to  

ind ica te  what  ma t te r  i s  was about ,  r igh t  th rough December  

and January  and  the  manner  i n  wh ich  we were  t rea ted  by  

the  Secre tary  le f t  a  lo t  to  be  des i red  Cha i r.    

 And the  on ly  conc lus ion  tha t  I  cou ld  a r r i ve  a t  

was because he  was aggr ieved  tha t  he  had los t  the  

Weste rn  House dea l  and tha t  I  had not  in te rvened as . . .   a t  

tha t  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  ask  you Mr  Mole fe?   You. . .   10 

There  was a  de lay  in  adv is ing  you as  to  whether  the  

summons app l ied  to  Transnet  o r  Eskom? 

MR MOLEFE :    I  do  no t  th ink  i t  is  necessary  to  spr ing  to  

h is  de fence Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR MOLEFE :    I  do  no t  th ink  i t  is  necessary  to  spr ing  to  

h is  de fence.   A l l  I  am say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am not  spr ing ing  to  h i s  de fence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .   Mr  Myburgh is  no t  spr ing ing .   

He wants  to  f ind  ou t  exact ly  what  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MOLEFE :    No,  even the  fac t  tha t  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR MOLEFE :    And Mr  Myburgh wants  to  go  th rough them 

aga in .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on.   Le t  us  no t  speak a t  the  same 

t ime.   He is  seek ing  c la r i f i ca t ion  as  to  what  i t  i s  tha t  made 

you th ink  l i ke  th i s .   Yes? 

MR MOLEFE :    I  have jus t  sa id  exact ly  what  made me fee l  

l i ke  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  jus t . . .   I  am t ry ing  to  

unders tand. . .   So I  do  unders tand  tha t  you say tha t  there  

was a  de lay  in  te l l ing  you as  to  whether  the  summons 

app l ied  to  Transnet  o r  Eskom.   Ja ,  I  fo l low and you say  

tha t  happened in  December /January.   Then . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MOLEFE :    I t  was not  jus t  a  de lay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes?  

MR MOLEFE :    I t  was . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No rep l y?  

MR MOLEFE :    No response to  ou r  communica t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE :    R igh t  th rough the  month  o f  December.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR MOLEFE :    Which  caused a  lo t  o f  anx ie ty  and what  a re  

we do ing ,  what . . .?   And a t  the  same t ime we had to  rep ly  20 

w i th  a  Sect ion  10  Not ices  and  ye t  the . . .   And then,  

eventua l l y,  they  sa id  i t  i s  about  Eskom and then we were  

requested the  documents  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mole fe ,  i f  you  jus t  bear  w i th  me,  

though.   I  unders tand tha t .   Then you ta lk  about  o ther  
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t rea tment .   I s  i t  con f ined to  the  fa i lu re  to  respond  to  tha t  

cor respondence?  That  i s  rea l l y  a l l  I  want  to  know.  

MR MOLEFE :    No,  i t  i s  jus t  the  genera l  demeanour  f rom 

the  Secre tary ’s  o f f i ce .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    What  do  you mean the  genera l  

demeanour?  

MR MOLEFE :    Exact ly  tha t .   The a t t i tude re la t ing  to  our  

mat te rs  a t  the . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you need to  a r t i cu la te  tha t .   I  do 

no t  unders tand.   I  mean,  you do no t  dea l  d i rec t ly  yourse l f .  10 

MR MOLEFE :    Bu t  the  need fo r  a r t i cu la t ion  is  to  what  end? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The need fo r. . .?  

MR MOLEFE :    To  ar t i cu la te  i t .   To  what  end?  Because I  

am not  ins t i tu t ing  any lega l  p roceed ings or  anyth ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  you make  a  ve ry  se r ious 

a l legat ion  in  pub l i c  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . tha t  bears  the  Secre tary  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    And I  w i l l  repeat  i t .   And Cha i r,  I  w i l l  l eave 20 

i t  a t  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You want  to  leave i t?  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  one th ing  Mr  Mole fe  i s  tha t  we 

need to  unders tand what  i t  i s  tha t  you are  accus ing  the  
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Secre tary  o f  hav ing  done.   F i r s t l y,  because the  s ta tement  

yesterday was made in  pub l i c .   He a lso  needs to  know.   

But  we a lso  need  to know so tha t  we can unders tand.   So 

tha t . . .  bu t  as  I  unders tand i t .   You are  say ing ,  the  conduct  

on  h is  par t ,  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  has –  wh ich  p rompted you to  th ink  

tha t  he  had a  negat ive  a t t i tude towards you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .because you  d id  no t  in te rvene some 10 

years  back . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .when he had  ask you to  in te rvene in  

regard  to  the  Wes tern  House mat te r.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say the  conduct  on  h is  par t  i s  the 

fac t  tha t  he  d id  no t  ove r  the  who le  o f  December  respond to  

cor respondence tha t  sought  c la r i f i ca t ion  on  cer ta in  –  on  

the  mat te r  o f  th is  summons or  subpoena.  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  p rompted you to  t h ink  l i ke  

tha t .  

MR MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MOLEFE :    And jus t  to . . .   I  was not  lay ing  a  fo rmal  
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compla in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no .  

MR MOLEFE :    I  am jus t  answer ing  to  the  quest ions tha t  

you are  ask ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No o ther  quest ions Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Ja-no,  I  th ink ,  a t  leas t  i t  i s  c la r i f ied  

what  i t  i s  o r  wha t  i t  i s  and then we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there .   

Okay.   Thank you  very  much.   We ad journ .  10 

MR MOLEFE :    Thank you Cha i r.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 11 MARCH 2021  

 

 

 

 

 


